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President’s
Review

2014 HIGHLIGHTS
2014 was the second year for the four-year
Olympic cycle and this saw a number of
significant achievements both on and off the
field of play.
There were many firsts for the sport and the
BWF in 2014. Ten highlights for the year
were:

The development and change in the last
five years since 2009 in particular, has been
amazing. We have witnessed extraordinary
evolution in the sport and BWF, highlighted
by the following:

By any measure, 2014 was another very
productive and successful year for the BWF
and the sport. I am very proud of our collective
achievements in this second year of my term
as BWF President and I very much look
forward to working together throughout 2015.
In 2014, the BWF marked its 80th anniversary.
The organisation was established at a
meeting in London on 5 July 1934 with nine
founding Members - Canada, Denmark,
England, France, Ireland, Netherlands, New
Zealand, Scotland and Wales.
From this modest beginning, the sport
and the BWF have grown enormously
over the last 80 years. We now have 182
Members, we are both an Olympic and
Paralympic sport and badminton events
are broadcast globally to 300 million
households in more than 160 countries.

•

Stronger and more robust regulatory
systems to ensure good governance of
the sport and the BWF.

•

Stronger and more consistent brands –
events and corporate identity.

•

Enhanced partnerships with BWF
Members and event hosts delivering
consistent and high quality international
events.

•

Global television reach for badminton with
extensive new media and communications
platforms.

•

A large and well-connected global fan
base of more than 400 million and
emerging household names.

•

Significantly increased value of BWF
event properties.

•

Enhanced income streams through
event-based commercial and media
agreements.

•

Embracing para-badminton – increasing
diversity.

•

Greater investment in the development of
the sport and the development of youth.

There is no doubt that badminton and the
BWF are in a good space, but as we look
towards Rio 2016 and beyond to Tokyo 2020,
we must remain focused on our strategic
priorities and continue the extraordinary work
of the last five years.

1 The first year in partnership with global
insurance giant, MetLife, as title sponsor
of the MetLife BWF World Superseries.

2 The introduction of Hawk-Eye technology
and the Instant Review System that gives
players an opportunity to challenge linejudge calls.
3 Badminton Australia hosts its first BWF
World Superseries event in Sydney, with
the 12 leg series now being staged in
three continental confederations - Asia,
Europe and Oceania.
4 Japan winning the Thomas Cup - the
World Men’s Team Championships - for
the first time in a spectacular display
by its youthful team in Delhi in May.
China taking an unprecedented 13th
Uber Cup for the World Women’s Team
Championships win out of the 25 editions
of the event to date.
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5 Implementation of the Rio 2016 Legacy
Programme to ensure a positive legacy
from hosting the first Olympic Games
in South America. This enhanced
development projects BWF had been
undertaking in Rio and Brazil since
2010. The project includes a BWF
Rio 2016 Project Manager stationed
in Rio, engagement of an events,
communications and media company
in Rio and the delivery of a wide range
of badminton activations and badminton
awareness-raising activities in Rio.

I wish to acknowledge and thank Paul Kurzo,
Vice-President Para-Badminton and all the
Members of the Para-Badminton Committee
and Commission for their expertise, hard
work and commitment to ensuring that parabadminton is in a strong position to take full
advantage of its new status as a Paralympic
sport.
There is much work still to do, however the
athlete pathway is now complete for our
para-badminton players. They can look
towards the possibility of qualifying for future
Paralympic Games.
BWF and our Membership must continue to
work diligently to help badminton athletes with
an impairment to realise their dream and to
offer training, development and competition
programmes that can hone their talent and
make them among the best in the world.

PARTNERSHIPS

6 A first-ever World Championship title for
Spain, with Carolina Marin’s defeat of
number one seed Li Xuerui 17-21, 21-17,
21-18 in spectacular style in Copenhagen
in August having defeated two other
seeded players on the way to the podium.

These highlights are reported on in detail
within the annual report.

BADMINTON – A
PARALYMPIC SPORT
One of the main highlights of the year was
the announcement by the International
Paralympic Committee (IPC) that badminton
was included as a sport for the Tokyo 2020
Paralympic Games.
Since 2010 the BWF had worked on strategic
initiatives to ensure the sport was in a strong
position for the application which was lodged
in July 2015. I was honoured to be presenting
to the IPC Governing Board in Berlin in early
October and then to hear a few days later that
badminton was included in the first 16 sports
confirmed form the Tokyo 2020 Paralympic
Games.

Success in sport is very much enhanced
by partnerships and collaborations with key
stakeholders.
Our Membership is central to the sport’s
success. I wish to acknowledge and thank the
BWF Membership for its continuing strength
at a national level in promoting, developing
and regulating the sport and providing athlete
pathways to an international level.
Hosting international competitions is a
critical part of our business. BWF works in
partnership with a range of hosts for World
Superseries events and BWF Major Events.
I would like to acknowledge the hosts of
the BWF World Superseries – thank you
to our Members from Australia, China,
Denmark, England, France, Hong Kong,
India, Indonesia, Japan, Korea, Malaysia and
Singapore.

7 Badminton became a Paralympic
sport with the International Paralympic
Committee (IPC) announcing in October
that badminton is one of the sports for the
Tokyo 2020 Paralympic Games.
8 The first of a four year partnership with
Dubai which saw the BWF Destination
Dubai World Superseries Finals being
hosted there for the first time in December
2014.
9 The 80th implementation of BWF’s Shuttle
Time Schools Badminton Programme
and the resources now translated into 14
languages.
10 BWF signs energy giant Total as title
sponsor for BWF Major Events in a fouryear partnership (2015-2018).

In December, Dubai hosted the Destination
Dubai BWF World Superseries Finals in
impressive fashion. I very much enjoyed
being in Dubai with the best of the best – our
top eight players and pairs in each of the five
disciplines. It was a truly memorable week
of world-class badminton, and world-class
hospitality. I wish to thank our hosts, Falcon
and Associates and the Dubai Sports Council
for greatly enhancing our season-ending
Finals and for their generous hospitality of
the players and officials.
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The year 2014 was also exceptional for our
Major Events with spectacular performances
on court by our athletes, the details of which
are provided elsewhere in this report. Sincere
appreciation to our Major Events hosts for
again delivering world-class tournaments for
not only the players, but also for hundreds of
millions of fans watching globally.
•

Badminton Association of India – BWF
Thomas Cup & Uber Cup Finals

•

Denmark Badminton Association – BWF
World Championships

•

Badminton Association of Malaysia –
BWF World Junior Championships

BWF and its hosts cannot deliver
consistently high-quality events without our
corporate, commercial and media partners
and broadcasters. BWF enjoys a special
relationship with its commercial and media
partners and I would like to acknowledge and
thank them:
•

MetLife

•

Total

•

Li-Ning

•

RedBull

•

Chery

education and awareness programmes
for players and entourage Members,
initiate investigations and report alleged
attempts to influence the outcomes of
matches and to manage cases of alleged
match fixing or doping.
2. Signing up to the International Olympic
Committee’s Integrity Betting Intelligence
System (IBIS) which enables BWF
to access an extensive network of
monitoring and data-sharing across
sports, event owners and the major
sports-betting entities.
3. Re-committing to the World Anti-Doping
Code 2015 and developing and publishing
the WADA-approved BWF Anti-Doping
Regulations 2015.
The BWF Membership can expect to hear
more about this in 2015, but I would like to
remind our Membership that they also have
an obligation to educate players, entourage
Members and administrators, and to monitor
and implement anti-doping and anti-matchfixing strategies to ensure the integrity of
our sport and to protect the rights of clean
athletes.

TOWARDS 2016

We look forward to 2015 and working
together on events before and during the
Olympic qualifying period.

There is much to look forward to this year. By
the time we host the 2015 Members Forum
and AGM in Dongguan, China in May, the
Olympic qualifying period will be underway
and we will be looking towards Rio 2016
Olympic Games.
This year is one where the preparations for
Rio are important to ensure our sport is well
prepared technically. It is also a year where
BWF will continue to invest in its Rio 2016
legacy programme.
The BWF has been working with the
Organising Committee to ensure an
excellent badminton event in 2016. We
remain committed to working with the hosts
throughout 2015 and 2016.

The BWF took a number of steps in 2014
to enhance our fight to ensure the rights of
clean athletes and to ensure the integrity of
badminton in these two areas. These were:
1. Setting up an Integrity Unit within the
BWF operational structure to develop

It was a great pleasure at the last Annual
General Meeting in Delhi, in May 2014, to
welcome a new Honorary Life Vice President
to the BWF following the unanimous decision
by the AGM. Dr Kang Young Jung, most
recently retired President (2005 -2013) came
onto the stage to a standing ovation, with the
Membership recognising his contribution to
the BWF and to badminton.
Dr Kang’s contribution was truly remarkable.
His passion for, and commitment to the
development of badminton has a long history
at the national, continental and world level.
During his 8 year Presidency - the BWF
went through the most significant periods of
growth in its 80 year history – I have referred
to this in my report. The rise - and rise in the
status of badminton and the BWF was due
to strong leadership, good governance, key
partnerships and a strategic approach under
Dr Kang’s leadership. Dr Kang’s leadership
helped to establish the conditions for “best
practice” - and excellence for the sport and
the BWF.

INTEGRITY OF SPORT
There are two major risks to the integrity of
sport – doping and match fixing including
related illegal activities to influence the
outcome of matches. Although we do not
have evidence that suggests our sport has a
systemic problem in either of these areas, we
would be naive to think badminton is immune
to such activities.

DR KANG
YOUNG JOONG
HONOROARY LIFE VICEPRESIDENT

We also look forward to further progressing
with development and awareness-raising
activities in partnership with the Brazil
Badminton Federation, Rio Badminton
Association and the communications, event
and media company we have contracted to
work towards a high level of awareness of
the sport before the Opening Ceremony next
year.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
There are many people and organisations
that work towards the success of badminton
and BWF.
I wish to highlight a few key people who guide
the work of the BWF and consistently deliver
great outcomes for badminton and the BWF.
I wish to thank the Deputy President Gustavo
Salazar Delgado, my Council colleagues,
the Chairs of all our Committees and
Commissions and Secretary General Thomas
Lund and his staff; my deepest appreciation
to everyone for your commitment to the BWF
and our sport.
I very much look forward to working with you
all in 2015 in the lead-up to Rio 2016 Olympic
Games.

POUL-ERIK HØYER
BWF PRESIDENT
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5 JULY 1934

THE
INTERNATIONAL
Badminton
Federation is founded. The Badminton
Association
(forerunner
to
today’s
BADMINTONEngland) convenes a meeting
of national associations. Delegates from
Canada, Denmark, England, France, Ireland,
the Netherlands, New Zealand, Scotland and
Wales approve the proposal for a world body.

1948-1949

The World Men’s Team Championships for
the Thomas Cup, proposed by legendary
player and administrator Sir George Thomas,
takes off with ten nations competing in the
first event. Malaya wins the final 8-1 over
Denmark in Preston, England, in 1949.

1956

The World Women’s Team Championships
for the Uber Cup is proposed by England’s
Betty Uber. Eleven nations compete in the
first edition, with USA emerging victorious
over Denmark 6-1 in Lancashire, England.

1962

Badminton debuts at the fourth Asian Games
in Jakarta, Indonesia. The hosts pocket three
of the four titles (Mixed Doubles added in the
next Asian Games).

1972

Badminton played as an exhibition sport in
the Olympic Games in Munich.

1977

First World Championships held in Malmo,
Sweden. Denmark dominates with three
titles, including Flemming Delfs and Lene
Koppen as singles champions.

1978

A breakaway group emerges in IBF over
the issue of China’s recognition. The World
Badminton Federation (WBF) is formed.

1979

First prize-money tournament – Friends’
Provident Masters – staged at Albert Hall,
London, heralding the era of professional
badminton. Champions Prakash Padukone

1934 – 2014

2006

Revolutionary change in scoring system as
IBF introduces a new rally points system of
21x3 at the Thomas & Uber Cup qualifiers in
February 2006. The Council meeting in May
approves the new system. The International
Badminton Federation is re-christened the
Badminton World Federation (BWF).

2007

A World Superseries circuit starts,
encompassing
the
most
prestigious
tournaments internationally.

2008

Introduction of the year-ending Superseries
finale called the BWF Superseries Masters

Finals, with only the top eight players invited.
It’s renamed BWF World Superseries Finals
in 2009.

2011

BWF schools’ badminton programme –
Shuttle Time – starts in Tonga, training
teachers and coaches how to introduce safe
and fun badminton to children. Shuttle Time
is now in more than 65 countries across all
five continents. The latest is Shuttle Time
Dubai which was launched this week.

2011

Five Superseries events given Premier status
and it becomes mandatory for top players to
compete in them. In June, BWF becomes the
international federation responsible for para-

badminton. BadmintonWorld.TV – BWF’s
online channel – is launched in August and
gains quick popularity, currently boasting
more than 60 million views and featuring more
than 2,500 videos on tournaments, players,
para-badminton, Shuttle Time, coaching and
sponsorship-related promotions.

2012

BWF unveils a new logo to reflect its modern
brand identity – contemporary, strong and
efficient – with the letters set in a ‘holding
device’ in the shape of a stylised shuttle.

2013

The BWF Membership elects a new Council
and new President, Poul-Erik Høyer of
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(India) and Lene Koppen win princely sums
of GBP 3,000 each!

1981

Re-unification is successful as WBF merges
with IBF. China enters the IBF fold and makes
an impact at the inaugural World Games,
winning four of five titles.

1984

Thomas and Uber Cup tournaments take
place simultaneously for the first time; format
reduced from best-of-nine to best-of-five
matches.

1985

On 5 June in East Berlin, the International

Denmark – Men’s Singles champion at the
Atlanta 1996 Olympic Games. He succeeds
Dr. Kang Young Joong of Korea. A record six
women attain seats on the Council. China’s
Lin Dan claims an unprecedented fifth BWF
World Championship while Ratchanok
Intanon of Thailand becomes the youngest
singles world champion at age 18, wresting
the women’s title.

2013

The instant review system debuts at the BWF
World Superseries Finals in Kuala Lumpur in
December, helping players and officials use
technology for more accurate line calls (in
early 2014, Hawk-Eye contracted to provide
IRS services). Lee Chong Wei makes historic
first challenge – successfully! Meanwhile,
Monaco becomes BWF’s 180th Member.

Olympic Committee (IOC) accepts badminton
as a full Olympic sport to be played officially
in the Barcelona Olympic Games in 1992.
Badminton is also chosen as a demonstration
sport for the Seoul Olympic Games in 1988.

husband and wife) becoming badminton’s
‘golden couple’. They win the singles gold
medals – the first Olympic medals for
Indonesia in any sport. Meanwhile, the World
Junior Championships are started.

1989

1996

World Team Badminton Championships for
Sudirman Cup held in Jakarta alongside the
individual World Championships. Cup named
in honour of PBSI founder, Dick Sudirman.

1992

Historic year as badminton joins the Olympic
Games programme at the Barcelona Olympic
Games. Four events are held with Indonesia’s
Allan Budikusuma and Susi Susanti (now

2014

The 126th IOC Session in Sochi, Russia,
confirms BWF President, Poul-Erik Høyer
as an IOC Member. The President joins two
other BWF Council colleagues who have
this honour Li Lingwei (2012) and Dagmawit
Girmay Berhane (2013).

2014

Era of significant growth in commercial
partnerships. Global insurance company,
MetLife, signs as title sponsor for BWF World
Superseries for four years (2014-2017).
MetLife was preceded by healthy-lifestyles
brand, OSIM. In 2013, Li-Ning, RedBull
China and Chery became Major Events
sponsors until 2016 while IMG Media also
agreed a four-year contract (2014-2017) for

Mixed Doubles added to badminton’s
Olympic programme and bronze medal playoffs are introduced.

2003

Sudirman Cup becomes a stand-alone event.

2005

In June, the headquarters of IBF moves from
Cheltenham, UK, to Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

the centralised media rights of BWF Major
Events, BWF World Superseries and the
new BWF Grand Prix Gold series. The Star
Australian Badminton Open makes Oceania
the third host confederation in the MetLife
BWF World Superseries.

APRIL 2014

BWF and the Dubai Sports Council announce
a partnership to host the BWF Destination
Dubai World Superseries Finals in the
emirate from 2014 to 2017 and to launch,
Shuttle Time Dubai, in schools and clubs to
develop badminton.

5 JULY 2014

Happy 80th Birthday, BWF!
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there was a need to continue upgrading the
level and number of staff, especially in the
commercial and events areas, in order to
ensure that the events team is able to service
the increased number of tournaments and the
increased delivery obligations to commercial
partners.
The
commercial,
marketing
and
communications areas were combined into
a new department under the leadership of
Owen Leed as our new Commercial and
Marketing Director.

SECRETARY
GENERAL’S
REPORT

Since the last AGM, the following people
joined the BWF:
•

Owen Leed (Commercial and Marketing
Director) – Marketing Department

•

Ruvian Ruslan (Tournament
Manager – Events Department)

•

Matt Judson (Tournament Series Manager
– Events Department)

•

Pierre Sibert (Archives Officer
Administration Department)

Series

-

an upgrading of the technical servicing of
BWF World Superseries and BWF Major
Events. 2014 also saw the start of a new
four year relationship with the inaugural BWF
Destination Dubai Superseries Finals being
hosted in Dubai and an increasing need to
resource the areas of para-badminton and
anti-doping.
With less than two years to the Rio 2016
Olympic Games the year also saw greater
focus on getting the technical elements of
the Rio 2012 badminton programme on track
and the implementation of a Rio 2016 Legacy
Programme.
Having the right structure and personnel
– both number and quality, is essential for
the BWF to deliver all the requirements
across the various operational areas in an
environment with increasing demands on the
expertise and servicing.
In 2014, the BWF increased its capacity
to deliver on its obligations to commercial
partners and to hosts of our events through
increased human resources in these areas.

Apart from the on-going servicing of the
BWF Membership throughout 2014 including the Forum, AGM as well as the
servicing of Council meetings, committees,
commissions and working groups - the year
saw a number of new initiatives in the events
and commercial areas which placed greater
demands on the management team to a
deliver positive outcomes for the sport, BWF
and its partners.
The year saw the new Grand Prix Gold
Series get underway and there was also

PERSONNEL AND
STAFF STRUCTURE
In 2014, there were a number of changes
in the office staffing as well as changes
to the structure in the areas of commercial
/ communications & marketing as well as
integrity of the sport – anti-match fixing and
anti-doping with the establishment of a new
Integrity Unit within the BWF operational
structure.
With the significant growth in commercial
revenues and greater demands on servicing

As we work through the first few months of
2015, we are in a recruitment phase and
expect to have the following roles filled by the
2015 AGM:
•

Events Officer

•

Para-Badminton Officer

•

Administration Officer

•

Development Officer

•

Educational
Resources
(Development Department)

•

Personal Assistant to the Secretary
General.

Manager

With new recruitment of replacement staff
and increased staffing levels, the target is to
have 29 staff by mid 2015.

BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2014

BWF OFFICE LOCATION
AND REGISTRATION
As reported in 2014, the Council has in
principle decided to buy an office space in
Kuala Lumpur instead of have rental space.
The objective is to ensure adequate office
space for current and longer term staffing
needs and also to secure an investment
that will provide a higher yield on BWF cash
reserves – as well as cost savings on rental.
Alongside the consideration around buying
an office space, the BWF Council initiated a
process with the Malaysian Government to
establish a longer term registration of BWF
as an “International Organisation” domiciled
in Malaysia, under an Act of Parliament
connected to the Foreign Ministry. This
registration would automatically provide a
longer term tax exemption and will be a better
and more appropriate registration method for
an International Sports Federation.

The process to register the BWF as an
International Organisation has been ongoing
for the last two years. The BWF Council has
therefore decided not to make the investment
in property/office space before there is
greater certainty over the tax exemption
status and the registration process has been
finalized.

DIGITAL PLATFORMS – BWF
WEBSITES AND EXTRANET
In early 2014, the BWF embarked on a major
IT project and sourced through a tender
process a digital partner that assisting us to
deliver a new digital platform for BWF.
The current digital platform is not servicing
our consumers or our stakeholders in a
way which is efficient nor scalable given our
recent growth and current targets. The BWF
launched a new digital platform project in 2014
to make some major changes to our content
structure and operational workflows that will
in turn provide enhanced engagement for
fans and deliver organisational efficiencies.
BWF’s mission is to expand further, not
only in terms of fan base, participation and
broad appeal, but also through operational
efficiency. Digital innovation is where we
see our next opportunity, offering quality
support and automated services, maximising
efficiency across the organisation and
delivering better online experiences to
badminton fans.
Overall the IT-project takes a holistic
approach to assist the administration of
badminton across the whole organisation,
operating at different organizational levels.

The project involves two major areas:
1 The development and launching of three
new websites and four sub-site.
2 The development of a BWF Extranet to
increase operational efficiencies across
the organisation.
The websites / sub-site that are being
implemented are:
1.

2.

3.

4.

Fan Site – the entry point for fans,
players, sponsors, media ( launched in
March 2015)
•

BWF World Superseries
(launched in October 2014).

subsite

•

BWF World Championships subsite
(to be launched in June 2015).

•

BWF World Team Championships
sub-site (to be launched in October
2015)
Corporate Site – servicing Members,
Continental Confederations MA and
CC administrators, business partners,
officials (launched March 2015).
Training & Development – coaches,
technical officials, classifiers, players,
teachers, tutors / educators (to be
launched in August 2015).
Shuttle Time micro-site – schools
teachers, tutors, trainers, Members
implementing Shuttle Time programmes
(to be launched in August 2015).

The BWF Extranet is where we seek aims
to ensure a higher degree of efficiency
when dealing with workflows across other
activity and functional areas in the BWF.
This will involve staff, Council, Members
and Continental Confederations, technical
officials, classifiers, hosts of tournaments
and AGMs having access to the extranet
and using this as a tool to undertake tasks
linked to BWF activities and workflows. The
extranet will be launched late in 2015.
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summer sports federations which have
already joined IBIS. The timing is in line with
the up-coming Olympic Qualifying Period and
the Rio 2016 Olympic Games.
The work of the Integrity Unit will focus on
four key areas:
Rules, Regulations & Jurisdiction
1. To have a clear and robust set of
regulations dealing with anti-match
fixing.
2. To ensure appropriate powers to
investigate
and
initiate
judicial
processes.

MEETING SUPPORT – AGM,
COUNCIL, EXECUTIVE
BOARD, COMMITTEES

Key actions completed in 2014 around antidoping were:
•

drafted and published the BWF AntiDoping Regulations 2015

•

maintained a Registered Testing Pool
(RTP) of approximately 70 players for
the purposes of conducting out-ofcompetition testing – the names and
criteria for inclusion in the RTP is on the
BWF website.

2014 saw the Members Forum and AGM
being hosted in New Delhi on 24 May 2014 in
conjunction with the Thomas and Uber Cup
Finals.

•

had a targeted out-of-competition and incompetition testing programme.

•

increased the number of samples / tests
it conducted compared to 2013.

The Council met three times during 2014:

•

declared a number of “Filing Failures”
and “Missed Tests” against players who
had not complied with the “Whereabouts”
requirements.

•

conducted a range of education and
awareness activities with an emphasis on
youth.

The BWF Secretariat is responsible for the
day to day servicing of the BWF Council,
Executive Board and the Committees and
Commissions as well as the preparation for
the AGM’s and Members Forum.

•

7 – 8 March 2014 – Birmingham, England

•

26 – 30 May 2014 – New Delhi, India

•

10 – 14 November 2014 - Lima, Peru

ANTI-DOPING

More information on the Anti-doping
Programme is contained in the Administration
Committee report.

ANTI-MATCH FIXING
2014 was an important year for antidoping as it was a year to get ready for the
implementation of the World Anti-Doping
Code 2015.

Late in 2014, the BWF established an
Integrity Unit, an operational unit within the
Secretariat that focuses on the integrity of
the sport. This operational unit is responsible
for all aspects of anti-doping and anti-match
fixing.

BWF as a signatory to the Code has a
number of obligations and in 2014, the
key task was to review its anti-doping
programmes in readiness from the 1 January
2015 implementation of the Code.

In November 2014, the BWF reaffirmed its
commitment to fighting illegal betting, match
fixing and corruption in sport by signing up
to the International Olympic Committee’s
Integrity Betting Intelligence System (IBIS).

The main task was to draft and put in place
new Anti-Doping Regulations which are
compliant and in-line with the Code. This
was completed in December, and WADA
approved the new Anti-Doping Regulations.

This intelligence-sharing digital platform,
enables BWF to access an extensive network
of monitoring and data-sharing across sports,
event owners and the major sports-betting
entities.

The BWF Anti-doping Regulations apply to
players and player support personnel who
are Members of BWF Members, or of any
BWF Associate Members, or of any Member
or affiliate organization of any BWF Member
or BWF Associate Member (including any
clubs, teams, associations or leagues).

The objectives of the implementation of IBIS
are to:

BWF Members have obligations under the
Anti-Doping Regulations, including educating
its players, player support personnel and
administrators.

•

safeguard sports from the threat
connected to illegal sports betting.

•

support international federations and
multi-sport
event
organisers
with
intelligence and information exchange.

•

create a framework for transparency,
confidentiality and trust across all users.

BWF joined the seven Olympic winter sports
federations and a growing number of Olympic

Intelligence Gathering &
Reporting
1. To develop systems for intelligence
gathering.
2. To collaborate with law enforcement
agencies where BWF does not have
jurisdiction.
3. To efficiently report cases through the
appropriate channels – IBIS/Police/AntiCorruption Commission/BWF Judicial
Bodies.
Tournament Setup
1. To implement tournament based
monitoring systems to reduce the
potential of match fixing activities.
Education, Communication &
Awareness
1. To ensure consistent messaging on the
integrity of badminton directed at all
levels of the sport with a key focus on
players and the entourage.
2. To develop a systematic values based
“integrity of badminton” education
programme that targets players,
entourage, technical officials, BWF
events staff, hosts.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
On behalf of the BWF office and the staff, I
would like to sincerely thank BWF President,
Poul-Erik Høyer, Deputy President, Gustavo
Salazar, the Chairs of Committees, and the
Council for their continued support in the day
to day management of the BWF operations.
I would like to thank the management group
and all the staff for their professionalism and
continuous support in developing the BWF
organization and ensuring the many projects
and tasks are completed with high quality and
efficiency, and always with the aim to provide
value for our players, Member Associations
and badminton in general.
BWF staff have worked tirelessly throughout
the whole year and made sure that BWF
continuously improved as an organization.
The staff makes a huge commitment to BWF
and have a passion for badminton to ensure
a continued development.
Thank you to All!

THOMAS LUND
SECRETARY GENERAL
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CONSTITUTION & ETHICS
WORKING GROUP
There were three key actions in 2014 that
came out of the work of the Constitution
and Ethics Wroking Group. This working
group aims to continuously improvement the
constitution and other rules and guidelines
related to governance processes of the BWF
.

ADMINISTRATION

MemberSHIP ISSUES

2014 was yet another busy year for the
Administration Committee which saw a
continuing review of elements of the BWF
Statutes, the hosting of the fourth Members
Forum and the 75th AGM in Delhi, India as
well as the oversight of a number of key
areas including legal, the annual awards and
the museum project.

MemberSHIP
Two new Associate Members joined the
BWF in 2014. The BWF welcomed the Ligue
de Badminton de Martinique and Ligue de
Badminton Réunion following the Council
meeting of 14 November 2014. With these
new Associate Members, the BWF now has
a Membership of 182, of which seven are
Associate Members:
•

Africa – 37 Members (plus one Associate
Member)

•

Asia – 41 Members (plus two Associate
Members)

•

Europe – 52 Members

•

Oceania – 12 Members (plus three
Associate Members)

•

Pan America – 33 Members (plus one
Associate Member)

Throughout 2014, the BWF continued to
have a few issues regarding Members
continuing to fulfil the on-going requirements
of Membership as described in Articles 8.1
– 8.9 of the BWF constitution. Generally,
issues related to government interference in
sport at a national level.
The BWF continues to monitor issues around
on government interference as they appear.
The BWF is also committed to working with
the Membership to ensure good governance
are applied globally to all organisations in
badminton at a national and regional level.
BWF will strive to provide leadership around
integrity, accountability and transparency.

1 In May in Delhi, the BWF President
hosted a Continental Confederation’s
President’s meeting (also attended by the
Secretaries General) in order to further
clarify the relationship between the BWF
and the Continental Confederations and
to seek a better understanding of the
role of the Continental Confederations
in relation to the work of the BWF. The
meeting also helped to clarify the wording
in the BWF constitution which defines this
relationship.
2 In August in Copenhagen, the Constitution
and Ethics Working Group met to review
the outcomes of the President’s meeting
and to review clauses of the constitution
that looked at Membership (Clause 8) and
Continental Confederations (Clause 9).
3 In November in Lima, the Council
approved:
•

Amendments to the constitution
as proposed by the Constitution &
Ethics Working Group – these would
go forward to the 2015 AGM for
consideration by the Membership.

•

Guidelines for Elections
- which
covered
general
conduct
and
principles for election campaigns,
a template for a profile for election
candidates,
presentation
of
candidates, gifting and benefits to
Members, neutrality of BWF staff and
what to do about potential breaches.

•

Guidelines for Organisations Bidding
to Host BWF Major Events.

•

Guidelines for Complaints to the BWF.
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and National Anti-Doping Organisations must
play in educating their top level and youth
athletes on their obligations under the AntiDoping Regulations.

ANTI-DOPING COMPLIANCE
BWF as a signatory to the World Anti-Doping
Code remained Code compliant throughout
2014. The Administration Committee ensures
administrative oversight on compliance with
the Code.

ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING 2014

1.

2014 was the first full year following the
election of the new Council (2013 – 2017) in
May 2013.

3.

Being a non-election year, there were
fewer Members at the Forum and Annual
General Meeting in 2014 (55% of the voting
Members) compared to 2013 (80% of the
voting Members).
BWF offered for the second time, a travel
grant for one delegate per Member to travel
to the AGM.
BWF continued its policy of paying for three
nights accommodation in the host hotel if the
delegate attended the Forum and AGM.
For the third time, the BWF had simultaneous
interpretation at the AGM from English into
four languages – Spanish, French, Russian
and Arabic.
The Membership elect in Delhi in May, a
new Council Member, Anton Subowo from
Indonesia. The Council no consists of diverse
representation of 27 Members coming from
24 nations.

MemberS FORUM 2014
The fourth BWF Member’s Forum was
hosted in Delhi, India on Friday 23 May 2014
and this was a great success. Every year, the
quality of the content and engagement by
Members improves.
In 2014, Claudia Bokel, IOC Member and
Chair of the IOC Athletes’ and Chris Solly,
Director of World Academy of Sport were
the two key note speakers and they lead an
impressive line-up of presenters covering a
diverse range of topics including:

Work of the IOC Athletes Commission /
IOC Entourage Commission
Participation to Podium - Player
Pathways to Success
Legacy for Rio 2016 Olympic Games

2.

4.

•

Marketing Badminton in Brazil

•

Badminton Legacy – Development

•

•

Overview

•

Case Study - Badminton Ireland

•
5.
6.
•
7.
8.

Rio 2016 Games Preparation
Shuttle Time Schools Badminton
Programme

•

In late 2014, the BWF adopted new AntiDoping Regulations which are in-line with the
new World Anti-Doping Code which came
into effect on 1 January 2015.
The amended World Anti-Doping Code 2015
brings with it a new focus and energy in the
fight against doping in sport. It focuses on
protecting the rights of clean athletes. As we
reported last year, some of the key changes
emphasize the following:
1.

INVESTIGATIONS – the importance of
investigations and the use of intelligence
in the fight against doping.

2.

COLLABORATIONS - Improving the
cooperation between BWF and National
Anti-Doping Organisations (NADO’s) in
BWF’s testing programmes to enhance
efficiency and effectiveness and to share
intelligence, testing plans and support
of athlete monitoring programmes.

3.

ENTOURAGE - prosecuting athlete
support personnel who play a role in
doping in sport (investigations and
evidence playing a key role in securing
the necessary evidence to successfully
prosecute entourage Members).

4.

SMARTER TESTING – a stronger
emphasis on “more intelligent testing”
strategies – more efficient, more
effective and smarter approaches that
realise better results and efficiencies.

5.

EDUCATION – planning and delivering
values-based education programmes
which focus on prevention and
deterrence. BWF will work in close
cooperation with the relevant NADOs to
improve the reach of such programmes
and to bring more resources to the
badminton elite athlete population –
particularly targeting youth. There is
a requirement also for BWF Members
to take responsibility for education of
national level players.

Case Study – PBSI – Badminton
Indonesia
Rally Against Doping – BWF AntiDoping Programme
Legacies – Bidding for and Hosting
Major Events
Badminton Australia
Badminton Scotland
Membership Development / Capacity
Building
Scoring System Overview

LEGAL CASES 2013
There was one legal case in 2014 which
involved the BWF being taken to the Court
of Arbitration for Sport over a ruling of
the Doping Hearing Panel on the case of
two players receiving three Whereabouts
Failures within 12 months. Following
significant new evidence coming to light, the
case was withdrawn and a revised ruling was
handed down by the Hearing Panel which
recommended a case be bought against the
players Association for a lack of duty of care
in managing the Anti-Doping Whereabouts
Programme.
This case highlighted the important role of
education in anti-doping programmes and
the important role that Members Associations
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BWF DIGITAL MUSEUM

AWARDS

Nominees for Male Player of the Year 2014
were:

The Membership got a sneak preview at
the 2014 of the BWF Digital Museum which
involves a 3D user experience as well as
a website that captures some of our rich
badminton heritage.

The following nominations and awards were
approved by the BWF Council at its meeting
of 14 November 2014 in Lima, Peru.

•

Chen Long (CHN)

•

Lee Yong Dae (KOR)

•

Lin Dan (CHN)

•

Yoo Yeon Seong (KOR)

•

Zhang Nan (CHN)

The development of the website housing
the Digital Museum was completed through
a collaboration between the Russian
Badminton Federation and the Academic
Education and Research Centre of the
Russian Academy of Science, Lomonosov
Moscow State University.
The online digital museum platform,
which BWF plans to launch in May, will
make historical articles and information of
significance, accessible to all, online.
The BWF would like to acknowledge and
thank Council Member, Dr Sergay Shakhray
and the Russian Badminton Federation
for their most valuable contribution to this
project.

PLAYER OF THE YEAR
AWARDS
At a Gala Reception held at the Four
Seasons Dubai, just prior to the Destination
Dubai BWF World Superseries Finals in
December, Chen Long (CHN), Zhao Yunlei
(CHN)and Akane Yamaguchi (JPN) walked
away with the three prestigious Player of the
Year awards.
China’s Chen, who claimed his first World
Championships title this year, won the Male
Player of the Year while compatriot Zhao
Yunlei, a double titlist at the BWF World
Championships, was named Female Player
of the Year and Japan’s Akane Yamaguchi,
the two-time World Junior Champion who was
runner-up at the China Open Superseries
Premier 2014, retained her Most Promising
Player of the Year award.

Nominees for Female Player of The Year
2014 were:
•

Li Xuerui (CHN)

•

Christinna Pedersen (DEN)

•

Wang Shixian (CHN)

•

Wang Yihan (CHN)

•

Zhao Yunlei (CHN)

Nominees for the Eddy Choong Most
Promising Player of the Year award 2014
were:
•

Akane Yamaguchi (JPN)

•

He Bing Jiao (CHN)

•

Rosyita Eka Putri Sari (INA)

•

Chen Qingchen (CHN)

•

Lin Gui Pu (CHN)
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OTHER AWARDS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The BWF wishes to congratulate the following
recipients of awards in 2014.

Finally, I would like to thank the Deputy Chair
of the Committee, Gregory Verpoorten, and
all Members of the Administration Committee
for their contributions, wise counsel and
support.

President’s Medal
•

Mr Minoru Yoneyama (JPN)

Lifetime Achievement Award
•

John Havers (ENG)

•

Wang Wenjiao (CHN)

Distinguished Service Award
•

Prof Dr Puzant Kassabian (BUL)

•

Mike Walker (CAN)

Meritorious Service Award
•

Audley Astwood (JAM)

•

Dr. Kingsley Ford (JAM)

•

Daniel Gosset (BEL)

•

Dieter Kespohl (GER)

•

Lung Wing Kwong (HKN)

•

Gerd Pigola (GER)

•

Marcia Ramikie-Williams (JAM)

•

Hideo Takahashi (JPN)

•

Tan Sri Ir (Dr) Mohamed AlAmin Abd Majid (MAS)

•

HRH Tengku Kamil Ismail
Tengku Idris Shah (MAS)

•

Bujung Witarsa (BRA)

•

Wan Mohammed Haji
Wan Awang (MAS)

•

Junichiro Yamada (JPN)

Women in Badminton
•

Val Nesbitt (AUS)

Certificate of Commendation
•

Sports Development
Foundation (JAM)

VISHU TOLAN
ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
Vishu Tolan (Chair)
Gregory Verpoorten (Deputy Chair)
Geraldine Brown
Lawrence Chew
Raj Gaya
Mehdi Karbasian
Nora Perry
Sergey Shakhray
Ranjit de Silva
Lim Teong Kiat
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of Sport. This aimed to improve Member’s
ability to:

DEVELOPMENT
AND SPORT
FOR ALL

•

Continued collaboration with the five
Continental Confederations (CCs) in
the planning and implementation of
development regionally.

•

Continued focus on key strategic areas
identified in the BWF strategic plan 2012
– 2016.

STRATEGIC PLAN
2012 – 2016
The development section of the strategic
plan has the following priorities.
STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
1. Schools Badminton
2. Coach Education
3. Player Development
4. Membership and CC Development
OTHER PRIORITIES

	
  

OVERVIEW
This report covers the main areas of work
undertaken on behalf of the Development
and Sport for All Committee during 2014.
The year was a productive year with the main
focus being on the following key areas:
•

Implementation of Shuttle Time Schools
Badminton Programmes.

•

Development and implementation
educational resources and courses.

of

•

Olympic Solidarity

•

Facilities and equipment

•

Tournament
organiser
training
in
coordination with the Events Committee
to support / develop event organisers

•

Technical officials (TOs) training in
coordination with the Events Committee
to develop the pool of TOs

•

University Badminton

In the first two years of the plan the main
focus has been on the first three Strategic
Priorities of our Strategic Plan.
2014 saw the focus move to the 4th Strategic
Priority “capacity building” of our Members
through our partnership with World Academy

•

Plan and implement
programmes.

development

•

Manage their affairs at the operations and
governance levels.

•

Develop tournament
pathways for players.

•

Support personnel in all these areas.

structures

and

KEY FOCUSES - 2014
•

Year three of Shuttle Time implementations
– supported by the employment of new
Development Manager – John Shearer.

•

Development of Coach Level 3 resources.

•

Piloting and launching of the ex-players
coach education programme.

•

Development of Administration level 1
and level 2 resources for Members.

•

Development of Event Management level
1 and level 2 resources for Members.

•

Design and piloting of a Player Pathway
programme.

•

Year two of Player Development Strategy
implementation.

CALLABORATIONS
– Continental
CONFEDERATIONS
The annual workshops of the Continental
Confederations (CCs) and the BWF
Development Department took place from 8
– 10 September 2014 in Kuala Lumpur. The
key focuses of the workshops were:
•

Implementation of new resources for
Members.

•

Financial reporting model.

•

HR development and CPD (Continual
Professional Development) opportunities
for staff.

•

BWF’s new digital platform – websites
and extranet.

•

New projects and discussions on the
potential priorities for 2016-2020 strategic
plan.
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CC Grants

2014

2014

2014

CC / Number of Members

Base Level

Programme / Activity Funding
(Capped maximum)

Player Development
Programme Funding

Africa

(37)

$

260,601

$

115,057

$

50,000

Asia

(41)

$

328,377

$

124,254

$

50,000

Europe

(52)

$

347,567

$

147,240

$

50,000

Oceania (12)

$

113,635

$

57,586

$

50,000

Pan Am (33)

$

244,820

$

105,863

$

50,000

$

1,295,000

$

550,000

$

250,000

The following should be highlighted regarding
the CCs and our system of support:
•

Continuing strong working relationships
with the CCs.

•

Goal alignment - strategic priorities for
development are in-line – schools /
coach education / player development /
Membership development.

•

CC development grants system is central
to success of regional development.

•

Critical success factor – the workforce
‐ having the right people ‐ and the right
structure for development - having
enough people in development roles.

The system of development grants requires
the CC to meet a number of conditions to
receive the grants including:

•

BWF and the CCs are systematically
supporting the implementation of Shuttle
Time with Members.

•

Submission of annual development
plans and budgets with the priorities for
development being the same as the BWF
(see previous page).

•

The goal is sustainable implementation of
Shuttle Time.

•

Reporting against the goals in the plan
twice a year.

•

Submission of annual audited accounts.

•

Having an office with development
staff to manage the implementation of
development regionally.

Some of the funding provided by the BWF
supports office operations and staffing. A
summary of the available funding for 2014 is
provided above.

SHUTTLE TIME
SCHOOLS BADMINTON
IMPLEMENTATION

	
  
Schools

	
  

Badminton is a Strategic Priority
2012 - 2016.
•

Each CC has schools badminton as a
priority activity.

•

Materials are freely available on BWF
website – in multiple languages.

The Shuttle Time programme continued to
expand globally in 2014. As of December
2014 there were a total of 80 countries
implementing Shuttle Time. As well as new
implementations, there has been a focus to
ensure the sustainability of existing projects
through individual planning and setting of
targets with each CC/country. The training of
regional Shuttle Time Tutors has played a vital
role in sustaining projects globally. The team
of Shuttle Time Tutors increased to over 850
in 2014. Shuttle Time Tutors are qualified to
deliver Shuttle Time training to school teachers
and physical education staff in schools.
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CC

Number of Members
Implementing ST

Africa

10

Asia

22

Europe

20

Pan Am

20

Oceania

8

Total

Video Clip Voiceover
The Shuttle Time manuals and lesson plans
are supported by 92 instructional video clips
which are available through BWF’s YouTube
channel, BadmintonWorld.TV.

•

Presentations for Lecturers / Course
Tutors

•

Supporting
worksheets

Material

–

including

With over 600,000 views, these videos
play an important role in providing teachers
with a visual and audio description of each
activity in the lesson plans. BWF have started
working on a process to provide the Shuttle
Time video clips with voiceover in Spanish,
French and Arabic.

80
Additional Shuttle Time
Resources
BWF has developed the following resources
to support CCs and Members with the
delivery of the Shuttle Time programmes:

Shuttle Time - 15 Languages
The Shuttle Time Teachers Manual and
Lesson Plans have now been translated into
15 languages. Shuttle Time resources are
now available in the following languages:
Arabic, English, French, German, Hungarian,
Indonesian,
Italian,
Persian,
Polish,
Portuguese/Brazilian, Mandarin, Russian,
Slovenian, Slovak and Spanish.

Shuttle Time University Course
The BWF has developed a new 20-hour
course which can be delivered to university
students undertaking teaching and physical
education degree courses. The university
course will support the sustainability of
Shuttle Time by targeting physical education
teachers before they leave university to
teach sport in schools. Members can now
offer courses that target existing teachers
in schools and teachers in training at
universities.

•

Shuttle Time Schools Badminton poster

•

Shuttle Time Schools Badminton flyer

•

Shuttle Time University Course poster

•

Shuttle Time University Course flyer

•

Shuttle Time Promotional video clip

•

‘This is Badminton’ Teachers video clip

•

Shuttle Time DVD- Containing all 92
Instructional Video Clips

Additional languages versions, including
Serbian/Croatian are being produced.

The university course was piloted with a
group of 20 teaching students from Trinity
University, Ireland in May 2014. Following
the pilot and having received feedback from
course leaders and students, amendments
were made to the course content and
resources. The course material has been fully
desktop published and will be made available
to universities in 2015. Translation of the
Shuttle Time University Course material has
commenced in German, French and Spanish
language versions. Shuttle Time University
Course resources are:
•

Course Description

•

Course Lecturer Guidelines

	
  

Shuttle Time Next Steps
•

•

	
  

Shuttle Time Microsite and Social
Media Channels - BWF’s new Shuttle
Time microsite will go live in August 2015.
Targeting teachers, the new microsite will
be regularly updated with competitions,
stories, new activities, photos and videos.
There will also be dedicated Shuttle Time
Facebook and Instagram pages.
Shuttle Time App - BWF will start the
process of producing a high quality
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and user-friendly Shuttle Time App, that
engages users and can be accessed
globally through multiple platforms.

	
  

	
  •

Competition Guidelines - BWF will
develop a resource which can be used by
Members, universities and schools to run
their own Shuttle Time competitions in a
variety of formats.

•

Shuttle Time Youth Leaders AwardBWF will develop and pilot a new Shuttle
Time Youth Leaders Award for Senior
Secondary Pupils. The course will
provide pupils with opportunities to learn
and teach Shuttle Time activities, while
also a introducing a broad range of skills
required in everyday life.

	
  

	
  

•

Stringing Machines - In 2015 BWF will
provide stringing machines for some key
projects and an instructional video clip
to support the repair and re-stringing of
rackets that have been provided as part
of the Shuttle Time Programme.

•

Badminton-Cross-Curricular
Educational Links - BWF will investigate
how links can be made between
badminton and other school subjects.
These links will aim to increase the
presence of the sport in schools globally.
The vision is to position badminton as a
sport that is not only taught in Physical
Education classes, but in other subject
areas also. BWF’s new Shuttle Time
microsite will be utilised as a platform
for sharing cross-curricular content with
teachers.

Shuttle Time Equipment Donation
Project
In February 2014, BWF circulated information
to BWF World Superseries and Grand Prix
Gold tournament hosts detailing a new
Equipment Donation initiative. The project
is designed to support less well-resourced
Shuttle Time projects being delivered in
countries that are in need of equipment. The
table above highlights those countries that
incorporated Equipment Donation into their
events in 2014.

Member

Tournament

Date

Country Adopted

England

Yonex All England Open

4-9 March 2014

Ghana

Australia

The Star Australian Open

24-29 June 2014

Tonga

Denmark

Li-Ning BWF World
Champioships
Yonex Denmark Open

25-31 August 2014

Kenya

Belgium

Yonex Belgium
International

10-13 September
2014

Zambia

Netherlands

Yonex Dutch Open

7-12 October 2014

Bosnia-Herzegovina

Hong Kong

Yonex-Sunrise Hong Kong
Open

18-23 November
2014

Cambodia

Ireland

Irish Open

3-6 December 2014

Lesotho

For each participating country, BWF
coordinated the display of Equipment
Donation branding with tournament hosts
and provided logistical support relating to the
transportation of all donated equipment.

In total over 1000 pieces of second hand
equipment, including rackets, shoes, bags
and clothing were donated in 2014. It is
expected that there will be an increase in the
number of countries incorporating Equipment
Donation programmes into their events in
2015.
BWF would like to thank Yonex Co Ltd. for
their contribution of portable nets, rackets
and t-shirts to support BWF’s Equipment
Donation Project.

14-19 October 2014

•

Key stakeholders were categorized into
internal (Members and CCs) and external
(NOC’s, NGO’s, NUSF’s (national
university and continental level university
organisations),
sports
and
health
ministries).

•

Shuttle Time targets fundamentally a nonbadminton audience therefore the need
to enhance the communication strategy
outside the existing network where
universities and their sports federations
become a key element as they include
physical education professionals who
become multipliers of the programme in
their own backgrounds.

•

Relevance of a social media presence to
reach the external targets. To generate
engagement it is fundamental to be
constant and systematically providing
relevant content, rather than just sharing
noise.

Shuttle Time Communication
Strategy
In addition to the appointment of John Shearer
as Development Manager, responsible
primarily for the Shuttle Time programme,
we also created a six month internship to
develop our communication strategy for
Shuttle Time. The post was taken by Daniela
Perez Mendez, who worked in KL from the
beginning of the year through to July.
This process started with the definition of the
project’s objectives, followed by a research
period to identify and define the target
audiences. Marketing objectives were also
identified, along with a contact list of potential
stakeholders worldwide.
Project Findings
•

A two-fold strategy to be implementedonline and traditional communication
channels.

An example was a Facebook Ad pictured:
•

Source: Facebook Ads

•

Clicks: 1200

•

Reach: 199 555

•

Click-Through Rate: 0.131%

•

Maximize the functionality of the
revamped website and Shuttle Time
microsite.

•

Maximize the promotion at BWF events.
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•

•

Project Management - determine a
community manager responsible to
reach, attract and generate interest on
Shuttle Time, ensuring that every piece
of information reaches all the different
audiences.

During 2014 the number and frequency of
Level 1 courses delivered showed a marked
increase, with the majority of Olympic
Solidarity courses being offered as BWF
certified courses.

This person will dedicate 2-3 hours daily
on the implementation of the strategy
and moderate the user generated
content to appropriate internal/external
stakeholders, which includes following up
and nourish the relation established with
Members, continental confederations,
NGO’s, NUSF’s and Universities.

Three of the continental confederations have
now also run Level 2 courses with increased
activity planned for 2015. As you will see from
the statistics below, there is a considerable
amount of interest in the resources at all
levels and we are already receiving a high
level of requests for the Level 3 resources
which have yet to be launched.

COACH EDUCATION

Strategies for BWF Coach
Framework Implementation:

The adapted course designed for ex-players
was successfully piloted at the end of
November 2014 in Milan, Italy, in partnership
with Badminton Europe. The activity has
already created interest amongst recently
retired players and current players looking to
prepare for a coaching career on retirement.

Education

Strategy 1
To work closely with CCs to support the
implementation of Coach Education courses
in selected Member Associations – a wellplanned, systematic approach.
Strategy 2
To ensure all Olympic Solidarity funded
National Technical Courses for coaches at
an entry level use the BWF Coach Education
resources.
Strategy 3
To make the coaching resources and support
material freely available on the BWF website
for any Members, coaches or administrators.

BWF also supported, in partnership with
Badminton Denmark for the delivery of the
World Coaching Conference which was
held in Copenhagen in conjunction with
the World Championships. The event was
well supported with more than 90 coaches
attending from 27 countries. BWF is currently
discussing with PBSI to follow up the success
of this event with an enhanced format to be
held in Jakarta with the World Championships
2015.
Coach Education in Numbers
•

5 - resources available in 5 Languages
(with other language versions to come)

•

3400 – the number of downloads of the
Level 1 resources

•

550 – Level 1 certified BWF coaches

•

1,000,000 – views of online Level 1 video
clips

•

1000 – the number of downloads for the

Level 2 resources
•

50 – Level 2 certified BWF coaches

•

500,000 – views of online Level 2 video
clips

PLAYER DEVELOPMENT
The aims of the programme are:
•

To create a clear, achievable and well
supported pathway for talented players
from less developed and developing
Members.

•

To increase the number of Members
regularly participating in international
competition.

•

To increase the universality at CC
Championships.

•

To increase the universality of BWF top
200 World Ranking.

•

To ensure new Members are eventually
being

represented

in

the

World

Championships.
Each CC has developed a model that fits
the particular needs of the region and
compliments any existing player development
programmes / strategies already in place.
Learning from year one of this funding was
applied to the 2014 plans and monitoring
of participating players was emphasized as
a priority. BWF is making a considerable
investment with this project and it is important
that systematic monitoring and evaluation
are included in all plans. Each CC delivered
their specific programmes in 2014, but time
will be required to assess the benefits, and
success of the projects in the longer term.

BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Equipment Donation
Project 2014
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SPORTS SCIENCE RESEARCH GRANTS
PROGRAMME
The seven projects which were approved for funding in 2013/14 each
submitted their reports during 2014. Adrian Lees, a Member of our
Sports Science Commission was project coordinator and I would like
to take this opportunity to thank him for the time he has dedicated to
this role.
The two most promising projects were selected to present their
findings at the World Coaches Conference in Copenhagen, which
was held in conjunction with the BWF World Championships 2014.
The projects which were presented were:
•

The coupling between gaze behaviour and opponent kinematics
during successful anticipation of badminton serves. Presented by
David Alder – John Moores University Liverpool.

•

Impact of an eight week plyometric training programme on jump
parameters of junior badminton players. Presented by Professor
Hanno Felder – Saarland University, Germany.

2013/14 Funded Projects
BWF
Funding
Provided

Status

Biomechanics
Masters

$4,000

Grant

Wales

Physiology
Masters

$3,000

Grant

Cruzeiro do
Sul University

Brazil

Physiology
PhD

$5,000

Grant

Sultan Idris Ed
University

Malaysia

Masters

$10,000

Grant

John Moore
University
Liverpool

England

Psychology
PhD

$12,987

Grant

Edith Cowan
University

Australia

Masters

$2,800

Grant

Coventry
University

England

Nutrition
Staff project

$6,972

Grant

Institution

Country

Saarland
University

Germany

Cardiff Met
University

Discipline/
Study Level

2014/15 Research Grant Awards
Seven projects were approved by BWF’s Sports Science Commission
for 2014/15 funding. They were selected from 25 applications which
were received from five continents. This is the second year that the
BWF has awarded grants to assist in the funding of applied sports
science research in badminton. The seven projects selected are:
1. Topic: Player Development and Coaching in Four
Leading Badminton Nations
Institution: Leeds Metropolitan University
The project aims to identify and examine good practice in player
development and coaching in four world leading badminton nations
(The countries being considered are: China, Denmark, Korea,
Indonesia, India and Japan). The study focuses on providing case
studies of player development and coaching systems, identifying
principles and models of good practice to inform system development,
opening up knowledge of good practice to other countries and
undertaking comparative analysis between systems.

2. Topic: Relationship between Developmental
Activity and Skill Acquisition
Area: Sports Psychology
University: Liverpool John Moores University
The project examines the amount and types of developmental activity
engaged in by elite adult badminton players and their association to
acquire skill. As physical preparation and fitness in badminton are
relatively homogenous for elite players, it is skill and other psychological
attributes that tend to differentiate players. While physical preparation
of players is underpinned by scientific principles, the training of skill
and psychological attributes are less so. Scientific knowledge about
the developmental activities of elite badminton players can be used
to identify sub-optimal developmental activity and training pathways.
Further, it can be used to design optimal pathways for aspiring players
to enable them to expedite skill acquisition and achieve expertise.
3. Topic: Estimation of Energy Expenditure While
Playing Under New Scoring Systems
Area: Physiology/ Match Analysis
Institution: Department of Biomedical Sciences for
Health, University of Milan
The study is to define the physiological demands and activity profile
of badminton players during the current ‘3x21’ and the (proposed)
‘5x11’ scoring system matches. For the first time the relationship
between HR (heart rate) and V’O2 (maximal oxygen consumption)
during badminton specific tasks will be compared with laboratory tests
in order to validate HR as an indirect V’O2 estimation method. In the
meanwhile, accelerometry will be validated as a method to assess the
energy expenditure in badminton activities. The results of this study
are expected to provide an integrated approach for the evaluation of
badminton players during matches and training sessions.
4. Topic: Influence of Technique on Smash Speeds
and Consistency
Area: Biomechanics and Motor Control
Institution: School of Sport, Exercise and Health
Sciences, Loughborough University
This study will seek to understand why, although modern badminton
is focused on power and attacking play, some individuals smash the
shuttle harder than others. It will also look at the important aspect of
consistency. Elite badminton players will be studied to explain the key
techniques that influence the variation in shuttle speed.
5. Topic: Strength Ratios in Junior and Elite
Badminton Players
Area: Biomechanics, practise, training science,
sports medicine
Institution: Institute for Sport Science (Saarland
University); Olympic Training Centre RhinelandPalatinate; University of Applied Sciences; Sports
Medicine Department (Diakonie-Hospital)
The study aims to throw more light on specific strength ratios in
badminton, and to investigate whether these values/ratios (especially
shoulder and arm muscles) have an effect on a sport-specific
movement pattern such as a smash. There are conflicting findings on
the influence of specific physical activity on strength ratios and this
study aims to address that, since strength ratios of specific muscle
groups are used with junior and elite athletes to assess the risk of
injury and to guide rehabilitation.
6. Topic: Frequency, Location and Severity of Acute
and Overuse Injuries in Junior Players
Area: Sports Injuries/ Injury Prevention
Institution: Faculty of Kinesiology, University of
Zagreb
The study aims to investigate the specific epidemiology of acute
and overuse injuries in junior players and link them to possible
anthropometric or motor deficiencies. The study will deal with the
frequency, location and severity of acute and overuse injuries in junior
badminton players (17 to 19 years). The most common situations
of injury will be studied, as will possible correlations between their
anthropometric status and foot alignment. In addition, differences in
explosive strength between injured and non-injured junior players
will be evaluated. The results will contribute to the exact planning of
effective preventive training procedures in junior players.

BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2014
7. Topic: Use of Badminton as a Tool to Improve
Health and Fitness
Area: Exercise Physiology
Institution: St Marys University
The research will focus on the use of badminton to improve physical
health outcomes. This research will study the use of badminton as
a tool to increase people’s physical fitness levels through weekly
badminton sessions. The physical demands of the sport and the ability
for those of all experience levels to enjoy and participate suggest
badminton may be a possible tool in increasing physical activity and
improving the health of people.

Statistics

OLYMPIC SOLIDARITY (OS)
The main opportunities for badminton are:
•

National Technical Courses (coaching courses).

•

Rio 2016 Athlete Scholarship Programme.

•

Individual residential coach development courses.

Number of Applications

Submissions Batch 1- 23.06.2014

20

Submissions Batch 2- 23.07.2014

21

Submissions Batch 3- 23.08.2014

1

Submissions Batch 4 - 21.1.2015

6

Total Submissions

48

Africa

5

Asia

19

Europe

15

Oceania

0

Pan Am

9

Total Countries

27

MemberSHIP CAPACITY BUIldING - 2014 PROGRESS

	
  

	
  

2014 has seen the development of our partnership with the World
Academy of Sport. As previously stated the focus for 2014 has been
around the development of resources to assist the capacity building
of our Member Associations.
2014 Progress
Olympic Solidarity received a considerable increase in the amount
of funding available for the quadrennial 2013 - 2016 ($310million
in the last four years versus $435 million for this quadrennial). This
money is split between the NOCs – but it effectively means an extra
opportunity for badminton (and all other sports) if our Members
are active in applying to host Olympic Solidarity courses. We must
therefore continue to encourage and support our Members to apply
for OS funded activities through their NOCs.

•

Development of online event management resource – pilot
planned for 2015

•

Development of Level 1 event management course – pilot planned
for 2015

•

Development of online administration resource – pilot planned for
2015

•

Development of Level 1 administrator course – pilot planned for
2015

•

Development and delivery of pilot player pathway programme.

Total Olympic Solidarity Funded Courses / Activities
- 2014
•

5 National Coach Courses: ARM, BIH, GUA, PER, ROU

•

2 National Structures Courses: NZL, POL

•

1 Sports Science Scholarships: ETH

•

6 Youth Olympic Games Scholarships: CGO, GHA, POL (2), SEY,
TUR

•

4 Youth Olympic Games Bridging Grants: IRE (2), ISR, SRI

•

5 Rio 2016 scholarships (confirmed to date): ISR, TUR (2), IRE (2)

Athlete Scholarships – Rio 2016 Qualification
The scholarship programme for Rio qualification has now commenced
and will be operational from 1 September 2014 until 31 August 2016.
Key dates are:
•

1 September 2014: programme operational and first batch of
Scholarship activated.

•

1 January 2015: second batch of scholarships activated.

The objective of this programme, designed for elite athletes, is
qualification for the Rio Olympic Games. The main criteria for the
allocation of the scholarships will be the athletes’ level and past
sporting experience. To date BWF has assessed the following:

The pilot of the Player Pathway Programme was delivered in
partnership with our Pan Am Confederation in Guatemala, in October
2014. The course was attended by 14 Member Associations and
was exceptionally well received. The course is now ready for global
delivery in 2015.
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UNIVERSITY BADMINTON
STRATEGY

INTERNATIONAL SCHOOL
SPORTS FEDERATION (ISF)

•

Number of Participating Countries - 8
(Iraq, UAE, Bahrain, Morocco, Saudi
Arabia, Jordan, Sudan and Lebanon)

The goal is to make badminton a popular
university sport globally as a participation
sport and as a sport which has a more elite
player pathway for talented youth who are
also university students.

The MOU between BWF and ISF was officially
signed at the YONEX French Open World
Superseries tournament by the Presidents of
the two organisations. We are now exploring
ways to implement the cooperation, with the
key objective of badminton being one of the
most popular school sports and the use of
the BWF Shuttle Time Schools Badminton
Programme as a tool to achieve this goal.

•

Coaching expert – Ji Hyun Marr (KOR),
assisted by Joanne Quay (MAS)

•

Ambassador – Hadia Hosny (EGY)

•

Expert Technical Official Trainer
Nahathai Sornprachum (THAI)

•

At the official functions, BWF was
represented by Dagmawit Girmay
Berhane and Jassem Kanso from
the Council – and Thomas Lund. The
President of Peace and Sport was also
present together with Dubai VIPs at the
opening / closing.

The other key goal is to ensure badminton
becomes a Compulsory Sport in the Summer
Universiades.
To support this, badminton was represented
at the 2014 FISU Forum (International
University Sports Federation), held in Korea,
by our intern, Daniela Perez Mendez, who
from her previous experience with FISU, has
a considerable network of contacts within the
organization.
The Chair of the Development & Sport for All
Committee, David Cabello was also present
in his role as a FISU Council Member and
was able to support Daniela with her work.
The main activity was to ensure badminton
was represented at the FISU Fair which
accompanies the Forum. This year, the
fair gave the BWF the opportunity to
promote the new Shuttle Time course for
universities. Daniela was able to return with
many interesting contacts, both individual
and organisations, for the promotion of this
course in the various regions.

Haiti
Two activities took place during 2014, both
of which were delivered by French coach
Guillaume Gailly.

BWF / PEACE & SPORT
PROJECTS
The key goals of this programme are:
•

To work in partnership with Peace and
Sport and other partners (our Members,
Government and NGOs) to run a number
of projects in less developed badminton
countries and to use badminton as a
tool for change for youth in the most
vulnerable communities.

•

To work closely with the relevant CCs
and engage the National Badminton
Federations in the development activities.

•

To use the Peace and Sport initiatives
to help build the national badminton
structure and support grass roots
badminton development in the countries
where badminton projects are funded.

	
  

2014 Activities
Our main focus in 2014 was the organization
of the Peace and Sport Cup in Dubai, held
in April. The event was designed to promote
female sports participation in the Arab region.
The project consisted of a tournament and
training camp for talented female players,
which was run in parallel to training courses
for female coaches and female technical
officials from the region.

Our application to become a Compulsory
Sport in the Summer Universiade programme
was submitted in late 2014. We will have the
opportunity to present our dossier to the FISU
executive board in 2015, where a decision
will be taken regarding inclusion of sports for
the 2021 Summer Universiade.

–

In total, there were 33 participants:
•

Technical Officials - 10

•

Coaches - 7

•

Players - 16

The second of these activities was delivered
in the newly opened IOC Sport for Hope
centre to which badminton now has access.
Through our collaboration with IOC on this
project badminton now has a permanent
office and computer access in the Sport for
Hope centre which has enabled the Haiti
Badminton Federation, with the support of
BWF, to establish a more sustainable project
in Haiti.
During Guillaume’s course late in 2014, 22
sports animators received Shuttle Time
training, with over 40 children participating
in various badminton activities. Further
activities are being planned in partnership
with Badminton Pan Am, the Haiti Badminton
Federation and the Sport for Hope Centre.
Next Steps
Discussions have taken place with Peace
and Sport concerning a second phase of
support for our project in Colombia, which
Peace and Sport have confirmed is running
well and having a significant impact. There
are also plans to deliver a follow up activity in
Timor Leste during 2015.
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ARAB STRATEGY
As a result of the four year commitment
to hold the Destination Dubai BWF World
Superseries Finals in Dubai, BWF has
appointed a project manager to be based in
Dubai. The first part of the role focused on
offering support to the local organisers and
the Dubai Sports Council in the following
ways:
•

Promote the event to local stakeholders.

•

Offer badminton specific knowledge and
expertise.

•

Organize exhibitions and events
promote ticket sales for the Finals

•

Recruit a volunteer workforce to assist the
delivery of the Finals

to

The second part of the role is to work closely
with Dubai Sports Council to implement
Shuttle Time in the local schools and
generally promote badminton participation in
the region.
The person recruited for this role in 2014
is Jaffer Ibrahim who is already a qualified
Shuttle Time and Level 1 Tutor from Bahrain,
and was heavily involved in the organization
and delivery of the Peace and Sport Cup –
Women in Badminton event in April 2014
which was a first in this region.
Jaffer is responsible to our Development
Director, Ian Wright and a key part of his
role is to assist Dubai Sports Council to
implement grass roots badminton activations,
particularly Shuttle Time. Jaffer is well
qualified for the role and I am delighted to
welcome him to our team.
It is planned that the implementation of
Shuttle Time in Dubai will be used as a
model for the region and replicated in the

other Emirates. This project will also lead to
a National Association being formed, who will
then join the BWF family. Personnel trained
for this project will be used to spread the
project across the region and assist in gaining
new Members and increasing participation in
the region.
Dubai Forum
In conjunction with the Destination Dubai
BWF World Superseries Finals 2014 in
December, a forum was organized for
countries from the region with the objectives
to:
•

Provide new and existing Badminton
Associations from the Gulf Region details
of BWF’s development programmes and
Membership benefits. (Shuttle Time,
Coach Education, World Academy of
Sport Courses, benefits of Membership of
the BWF).

•

Build partnerships and relationships
between Badminton Associations from
the Gulf Region. This will support future
competitions in the region and shared
training camps.

•

Use the Destination Dubai BWF World
Superseries Finals as a mechanism to
popularise badminton throughout the Gulf
Region.

The Dubai Forum was attended by
representatives from Bahrain, Dubai, Kuwait,
Oman and Saudi Arabia.
The forum was delivered by the BWF
development team with the support of the
BWF President, Deputy President and Chair
and Deputy Chair of Development and Sport
for All Committee.

FACILITY GUIDELINES
The Development Department has been
working with Peter Emptage (Member of
BWF Seniors Working Group who is also
an architect) to develop guidelines suitable
to assist Members of various levels of
development who are planning to focus on
building or lobbying governments to build
badminton facility.
It is felt that although it is not BWF’s role to
give financial support to Members for facility

	
  

development, we can provide assistance by
preparing technical guidelines to facilitate
projects. The initial draft was distributed to
Members from different regions for feedback
and we anticipate being in a position to
publish a resource document in 2015.

NANJING 2014 YOUTH
OLYMPIC GAMES (YOG)
The Nanjing 2014 Youth Olympic Games
Badminton event was held from the 17 –
22 August 2014. In conjunction with the
Games, the BWF for the first time hosted a
Sports Initiation Programme where a series
of activities took place in association with
the YOG Cultural and Education Programme
(CEP).

Approximately 70 local students from various
Nanjing schools had the opportunity to visit
Nanjing Sports Institute and the Competition
Venue, where they had the opportunity to
watch ‘live’ top youth badminton matches.
Students and spectators were also treated
to autograph sessions by the Athlete Role
Models and former Chinese International
players.
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The highlights of the Sports Initiation
Programme were the Question and Answer
Forum and the Mix-and-Match activity where
the Athlete Role Models and former Chinese
Internationals shared their knowledge and
experiences with the YOG players and local
students. It concluded with a series of mixand-match games.
The Athlete Role Models were former World
Champion Nathan Robertson and former
World Championship bronze medallist,
Cheng Wen-Hsing.
The former Chinese internationals were 2009
BWF World Champion Lu Lan and 2009
World Championship silver medalist Cheng
Shu.
The two YOG Young Ambassadors were –
Monika Fasungova (Slovakia) and Bridget
Shamim Bangi (Uganda).
		

MemberSHIP SURVEY
2014
In 2010 the BWF carried out a survey of its
Members. A total of 120 countries completed
the 2010 survey. The number of countries
completing the 2014 Members Survey
increased to 142. The 2014 BWF Members
Survey was made available in three
languages; English, French and Spanish.
All three language versions were utilised,
with 110 Members completing the survey
in English, 16 in Spanish and 16 in French.
Members had the opportunity to complete
the survey manually or via an online survey
which was managed through the web service
Survey Monkey. In total three Members
completed the survey manually, while 139
completed using the online service.
Breakdown of Completed
Continental Confederation:
Africa

23

Asia

34

Europe

49

Oceania

9

Pan Am

27

Survey’s

by

The results will be used to plan needs
based training, education and development
activities regionally.

RIO LEGACY PROGRAMME

Considerable progress has been made with
our Rio 2016 legacy project. The three pillars
of the project are: 1) badminton events,
2) badminton development activities and

3) badminton activations and awareness
activities – which aimed to ensure positive
media and communication outcomes to raise
awareness of the sport locally in Rio and
across Brazil.
Our Rio Project Manager, Maria Van Grichen
was employed in July 2014, and as in Dubai
has a split role between supporting the
delivery of the badminton events, promotion
of badminton in the region and grass
roots development of badminton towards
a sustainable legacy post the Rio 2016
Olympic Games.
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Maria has been quick to form good working
relations with our local stakeholders and
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delivery of equipment and the roll out of the
Shuttle Time schools programmes with the
Rio Badminton Association.
Maria worked closely with the Rio Badminton
Association, the local badminton community
and Brazil Badminton Federation (CBBd) to
coordinate related badminton activities and
assist in maximizing exposure for badminton
in Rio and Brazil. This has included support
for:
•

Working closely CBBd and the Rio
Association to host the first ever Grand
Prix tournament in Brazil. The legacy we
hope is to have a permanent Grand Prix
hosted in Brazil after 2016.

•

Supporting Shuttle Time courses run by
the Rio Badminton Association.

•

Coordinating activations related to
the branded “Discover Badminton”
programme – including a campaign of
Badminton on the Streets which saw
badminton on the streets adjacent to
Copacabana. Activations have also taken
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More details of the project can be viewed in
the IOC & International Relations report.

•
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David Cabello, Chair
Chair - Development and Sport
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for the 2nd Summer Youth Olympic Games
in 2014 in Nanjing and Nominations
Commission.
BWF continued its representation at major
IOC and other international sports meetings,
including the SportAccord Convention Belek,
Turkey in April, the 126th IOC Session in
Sochi and 127th IOC Session in Monaco and
the International Federation Forum.

IOC /
INTERNATIONAL
RELATIONS

BADMINTON – A
PARALYMPIC SPORT

The Paralympic Movement generally had
an important year with the 25th Anniversary
of the IPC in Berlin in October together with
a Membership Gathering over three days
to review the IPCs strategic plan as the
movement looked towards Tokyo 2020.
7.

The year was a very productive one for
the IOC/International Relations Committee
and 2014 saw a number of important
achievements for BWF and for badminton.
These included:
1.
2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

The BWF President being confirmed as
an IOC Member at the 126th Session in
Sochi on 7 February 2014.
BWF successfully delivering the
inaugural Peace and Sport Cup Women in Badminton 2014 in Dubai
in April in partnership with Peace and
Sport and the Dubai Sports Council.
A
highly
successful
badminton
competition, with innovative “Mixed
- Mixed” format together with related
educational activities at the 2nd Summer
Youth Olympic Games in Nanjing, China
in August.
The implementation of the Rio 2016
Legacy Project which included the
employment of a Rio 2016 Project
Manager, engagement of an events,
communications and media company
in Rio and the delivery of a wide range
of badminton activations in Rio from
August 2014 to January 2015.
A range of successful badminton
competitions in multi-sport games - the
Commonwealth Games in Glasgow in
August, the Asian Games in September
and the Asian Para-Games in October
in Incheon, Korea in October.
Badminton included as a Paralympic
Sport for Tokyo 2020 when the IPC
announced the first 16 sports for the
Tokyo programme in early October.

BWF signing three MOUs – International
University Sports Federation (FISU),
the International Schools Sports
Federations (ISF) and the Federation
Fancaise de Badminton (FFBaD).
These agreements will further enhance
the development of badminton as a
global sport for all – a sport for everyone.

BADMINTON’S OLYMPIC
STATUS

One of the most important achievements of
2014 was the announcement that badminton
is now a Paralympic Sport and will debut at
the Tokyo 2020 Paralympic Games.
Badminton is a very inclusive sport – “a sport
for all - a sport for everyone” and achieving
Paralympic status adds significant value to
this message and to the international status
of the sport.

The IOC/International Relations Committee
continued to focus on the key objective of
solidifying the position of badminton and
BWF’s place within the Olympic Family.
With the election of Thomas Bach, IOC
President in September 2013, the IOC had
an important year in 2014 with a major review
of its agenda towards 2020. The 127th IOC
Session in early December 2014 adopted all
40 recommendations of the IOC’s Olympic
Agenda 2020 and this will have implications
for the Olympic Movement moving forward.
BWF continues to be well represented in the
Olympic Family with the BWF President PoulErik Høyer confirmed as an IOC member at
the 126th Session in Sochi in February 2014.
He joins Council colleagues Li Lingwei and
Dagmawit Girmay Berhane who are also IOC
members.
All three are active contributors on IOC
Commissions - Poul-Erik sits on the
Entourage Commission, Li Lingwei sits on
the Olympic Programme Commission, the
Entourage Commission, Olympic Solidarity
Commission and Coordination Commission
for the 3rd Summer Youth Olympic Games in
2018 in Buenos Aires while Dagmawit Girmay
Berhane is a member Women and Sport
Commission, Coordination Commission

The important development work completed
by the BWF over four years since 2010
positioned badminton and BWF very well for
the Tokyo 2020 application which was lodged
in late July. The President, Vice President
Para-Badminton and Director of Operations
attended the IPC Membership Gathering in
Berlin in early October and on 5 October,
made a presentation to the IPC Governing
Board as part of the application process.
The announcement of the first 16 sports to be
confirmed for Tokyo 2020 came on 7 October
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2020 which for the BWF was somewhat
unexpected. The IPC President, Sir Philip
Craven singled out badminton and BWF for
special mention in the announcement, on its
strong application following the unsuccessful
application in 2010 for the Rio 2016
Paralympic Games. The fact that badminton
was announced in the first round of 16 sports
announced in October told its own story
about the quality of the work that had been
done in the last four years.
Following the confirmation in October of the
first 16 sports, the IPC announced all 22
sports for Tokyo 2020 Paralympic Games
on 31 January 2015. The 22 sports included
are: athletics, archery, badminton, boccia,
canoe, cycling, equestrian, football 5-a-side,
goalball, judo, powerlifting, rowing, shooting,
sitting volleyball, swimming, table tennis,
taekwondo, triathlon, wheelchair basketball,
wheelchair fencing, wheelchair rugby and
wheelchair tennis.

RIO 2016 OLYMPIC GAMES
The 2016 Olympic Games in Rio is a significant
opportunity for badminton in Brazil and the
region. A key goal for the BWF is to ensure that
the badminton competition is successful and
that badminton leaves a significant legacy not
only in Rio, but also in Brazil and throughout the
South American region.

Now that badminton is a Paralympic Sport,
BWF applied to become a member of the
IPC. In January 2015 the IPC Governing
Board considered this and the BWF was
confirmed as a Provisional Member of the
IPC. This will now go forward to the General
Assembly in 2015 for confirmation by the
membership.
IPC President Sir Philip Craven, in
congratulating the successful sport said
“I’d like to pay testament to the sports of
badminton and taekwondo for the work they
have undertaken in securing their place at a
Paralympic Games for the first time”.

The BWF conducted a number of site visits
in 2014 to work with the Rio 2016 Olympic
Games Organising Committee and ensure
progress for the implementation of a
successful Games in 2016. This is reported
elsewhere in the annual report.

about ensuring not only a successful Games
but a significant legacy.

A Rio Working Group was established in
2013 to work on the legacy for these first
Games in South America. The group defined
key actions that would meet some of the
challenges of hosting our sport in a city which
does not have a strong badminton culture.
It was agreed that BWF would need to work
hard with its stakeholders in the region and
to set in place a range of strategies that were

Three pillars were identified:
1. badminton
events
(particularly
international competitions that could
generate opportunities for media
coverage and exposure for badminton
nationally/regionally)
2. badminton
development
activities
(Shuttle Time Schools Badminton,
coach education)
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3.

badminton activations and awareness
activities – which aimed to ensure
positive media and communication
outcomes to raise awareness of the
sport locally in Rio and across Brazil.

In 2014, the following was achieved:
1. Recruitment of a Rio based Project
Manager. Maria van Grichen joined
the BWF in July and works closely
with our communications agency, the
Rio Badminton Association, the local
badminton community and Brazil
Badminton Federation (CBBd) to
coordinate related badminton activities
and assist in maximizing exposure for
badminton in Rio and Brazil.
2. BWF worked closely with CBBd and
the Rio Association to host the first ever
Grand Prix tournament in Brazil. The
legacy we hope, is to have a permanent
Grand Prix hosted in Brazil after Rio
2016.
3. The signing of a two year agreement
with a Rio based events, media and
communications agency to plan and
deliver a wide range of activations to
raise awareness of badminton through
print media, television and social media.
Outcomes from August 2014 to January 2015
included:
1.

2.

3.

4.
5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

Significant media exposure around the
inaugural Grand Prix in Rio in July/
August.
Establishing a “Discover Badminton”
Facebook Page https://www.facebook.
com/DescubraOBadminton
“Badminton
in
the
Streets”
–
engagement with the public outdoors.
This included opportunities to come and
try on courts set up in squares, shopping
precincts, parks and included two days
along famous Copacabana Beach front.
Significant media exposure around the
São Paulo badminton event in January.
“Discover Badminton” at the Rio 2016
Sports Festival – launch of the Rio 2016
mascots and interaction of mascots with
badminton players.
Participation of Brazilian national
badminton athletes in a Globo TV multi
sports activation in São Paulo.
Integration in a major public skate
boarding event “Meu Ibira” where
national player Daniel Paiola played
badminton with the world champion and
iconic Brazilian surfer Gabriel Medina.
Television event – Brazils number one
women’s tennis player and number one
women’s badminton player share each
others sports at the Rio Open - ATP
Tennis tournament.
Courts set up and activations at
strategically located shopping centres
– March 2015.

YOUTH OLYMPIC GAMES
2014

The 2nd Summer Youth Olympic Games
(YOG) were held in Nanjing, China - 16-28
August 2014 and the badminton competition
and integrated educational activities for
players and entourage members were a
great successful.
The BWF introduced a new event for this
edition of the Games. Apart from the singles
competition (men / women) there was a
mixed doubles event - a “Mixed-Mixed”
event where players from different nations
were randomly drawn to play together (one
male and one female). This event built
on the theme of developing cooperation,
discipline and friendship through badminton.
The feedback was very positive from all the
players.
Following the end of the singles competition
there was a Sports Initiation Programme with
a series of activities engaging all the YOG
badminton players, local talent from local
badminton schools, Athlete Role Models and
Chinese International players.

MULTI-SPORT EVENTS

Universiades and World and Continental
University Championships, Continental MultiSport Games such as the All African Games,
Pan American Games, Asian Games, Pacific
Games as well as the Regional Multi-Sport
Games organisations who own Multi-Sport
events such as the Mediterranean Games,
SEA Games and Pan Arab Games.
There were a number of multi-sport events
in 2014 where badminton was included as
part of the programme - these are reported
elsewhere in the report.

•

13th FISU World University Badminton
Championships - Córdoba, Spain, July
2014

•

Commonwealth
Games,
Glasgow,
Scotland – 23 July – 3 August 2014

•

Asian Games – Incheon, Korea – 19
September – 4 October 2014

•

Asian Para-Games, Incheon, Korea – 18
– 24 October 2014

COLLABORATION
AGREEMENTS
The BWF signed MOUs with the following
organisations in 2014:

Badminton continued to be well presented
in multi-sport games where the BWF is not
the owner or organiser. The BWF continues
to build strong relationships with the key
organisations in order to promote badminton
and ensure it is on the programme of all key
multi-sport games.

Key amongst these are the Commonwealth
Games Federation (CGF), International
University Sports Federation (FISU) for

•

International University Sports Federation
(FISU) – to work closely with FISU on
promoting university sport, the Summer
Universiades and the Badminton World
University Games.

•

International Schools Sports Federations
(ISF) – to promote badminton as a
school sport, to promote Shuttle Time,
to promote inter-school competitions and
active participation of youth in sport.

•

Federation Fancaise de Badminton
(FFBaD) – to promote badminton in
French speaking territories, undertake
shared development initiatives in these
regions and to source French speaking
badminton expertise through FFBaD to
implement development initiatives in less
developed badminton nations in French
speaking territories.
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WOMEN IN BADMINTON
COMMISSION
The Women in Badminton Commission
hosted a range of activities and attended a
range of women’s forums and meetings in
2014 including:
•

Badminton Europe:
•

•

A very successful Women’s Forum in
Delhi in May with inspirational speakers
and presentations:
•

The Road to Everest & Beyond – A
Journey of Adventures- Susan Hunt

•

Athlete to Boardrooms- a personal
story - Claudia Bokel

•

Women in Badminton – a perspective
from India - Madhumita Bisht

•

Women in Sport in Afghanistan Mastora Arezo

•

Peace & Sport Cup 2014 – Women
in Badminton – Dubai 2014 – Hadia
Hosny

•

Opportunities and Barriers for Women
in Sport - Susan Hunt, Claudia Bokel,
Hadia Hosny, Nahathai Sornprachum

•

Being represented at the 6th IWG
World Conference on Women in Sport
– Helsinki 12 – 15 June 2014

Successful Women in Badminton initiatives
were completed by Badminton Europe and
Badminton Oceania who have active Women
in Badminton Committees / Commissions.

A breakfast with key note speaker on
Women’s Day – 8 March - held on the
side lines of the Yonex All England
Championships.
A second edition of the one day Women
in Badminton coaching conference (20th
July) held at the 2014 BEC Summer
School (19-26th July 2014). Coaching
Conference held in Vejen/Denmark
and women were invited to attend and
presentations focused on issues within
European Badminton of low levels of high
quality female coaches and world-class
female players.

Badminton Oceania:
•

•

Initiated
the
inaugural
Presidents
Oceania Women’s Award (POWA) which
honours the first Badminton Oceania
President Heather Robson. The Award
was announced in conjunction with the
Oceania Championships in Ballarat,
Australia, 14 February 2014. Members
in the Oceania region nominated women
who have contributed to the development
of the sport in a voluntary capacity and
who deserve recognition. Five finalists
were invited to attend the function at the
conclusion of the Oceania Championships
2014.
The guest speaker – Diane Gallagher who
is the Sport Manager of the Australian
Commonwealth Games Association –
made a key note speech on how women
can achieve in sport related roles other
than competition.
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TOKYO 2020 PARALYMPIC
GAMES APPLICATION
BWF’s vision to be part of the Tokyo 2020
Paralympic Games was realised when the
IPC announced on 7 October 2014, that
badminton was to be included as one of the
first 16 sports announced so far for the Tokyo
Games. A maximum of 23 sports can be
hosted in Tokyo.

PARA-BADMINTON

This outcome was particularly satisfying as
there had been significant effort since 2010
to integrate para-badminton into the BWF
governance structure, build the player base
and the competition structures, revamp the
classification system and to train and develop
people in the system.

structured training and development of
people in para-badminton - for classifiers,
technical delegates and officials.
•

OVERVIEW
2014 was another very busy year for
para-badminton with the Para-Badminton
Committee and Para-Badminton Commission
focusing on a wide range of projects and
activities. The year saw our most significant
achievement to date – badminton gaining
Paralympic Games status. Badminton will
have its debut at the Tokyo 2020 Paralympic
Games.

•

•
•

Key focuses and achievements for 2014
were:
•

International Competitions - three
firsts with Indonesia, Cuba and England
hosting their first ever BWF sanctioned
international para-badminton events.

•

Training people - focusing on the
technical support of events and the

•

Development Projects - successfully
completing three development training
camps for players and coaches in projects
in Canada, Cuba and Uganda.
Research – completing stage 1 of a long
term research project that aims to provide
data to support an evidence-based
classification system for para-badminton.

Promotion – showcasing inspirational
athletes’ stories on BadmintonWorld.TV

Tokyo
2020
Paralympic
Games
Application - the completion of all stages
of the application process culminated
in the presentation to the Governing
Board in Berlin on 5 October, and the
announcement two days later that
badminton was one of the sports for
Tokyo 2020.

Development Plan 2015 - 2020 – the
drafting and approval by Council of the
Para-Badminton
Development
Plan
2015 – 2020 which will guide the BWF
in prioritising activities and resources
towards Tokyo 2020.

BWF listened to and learned from the
feedback from the IPC following its
unsuccessful application in 2010, to get
badminton into the Rio 2016 Paralympic
Games. The BWF systematically focused on
a series of strategic goals in para-badminton
to position itself as one of the strongest sports
being presented for selection for Tokyo.
The BWF President, Vice President ParaBadminton and Director of Operations
attended the IPC Membership Gathering in
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Berlin in early October 2014, and presented
to the Governing Board, the final stage in
the process. The application and the bid
presentation which had a theme of One
Sport – One Team, went down very well,
both in terms of the technical documents
and the evaluation of these, but also the
systematic approach over four years since
the last application. This theme highlighted
badminton as a sport for all – a sport for
everyone, and the integration of athletes
with an impairment under the BWF and
badminton umbrella.
In making the announcement, Sir Philip
Craven, IPC President singled out badminton
and said “I would like to congratulate the 16
sports that we have already confirmed will
be included in the Tokyo 2020 Paralympic
Games, in particular badminton, who after
missing out four years ago, submitted a very
strong application”.
“The IPC looks forward to working with the
Badminton World Federation over the coming
years to manage their smooth transition into
the 2020 sports programme”.

Process Towards 2020
There is much work to do in the next six
years and the BWF will need to make some
decisions along the way before it is able to
define which Sport Classes it would host in
Tokyo.
There are six Sport Classes in parabadminton and eligible players with a
physical impairment are classified into one
of these classes for competition in men’s
and women’s singles, men’s and women’s
doubles and mixed doubles.
1. WH 1
2. WH 2
3. SL 3
4. SL 4
5. SU 5
6. SS 6

-

Wheelchair Class 1
Wheelchair Class 2
Standing Lower Class 3
Standing Lower Class 4
Standing Upper Class 5
Short Stature Class 6

If all Sport Classes have enough international
level players competing in each, parabadminton, in theory at least, could have a
maximum of 30 medal events (five events
- men’s and women’s singles, men’s and
women’s doubles and mixed doubles times

six Sport Classes - WH 1, WH 2, SL 3, SL 4,
SU 5, SS 6).
Not all of the 30 events will be put forward
to the IPC for inclusion in Tokyo 2020. There
will be a limited number of athletes per
sport and the BWF will have to make some
choices to meet the maximum number of
athletes allocated by the IPC. The goal is to
put forward a spectacular para-badminton
programme that showcases the best aspect
of the sport.
To do this, the BWF will use criteria to select
the medal events to propose to the IPC:
1. Essence of badminton – showcasing
the sport – singles, doubles, mixed
doubles play.
2. Showcasing excellence – this is about
world class performances.
3. High entertainment value – selecting
the events, Sport Classes that are most
entertaining and have the most value for
spectators and broadcast.
4. Equality = women & men – presenting
a programme which has equal numbers
of men and women.
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PARA-BADMINTON
CONTINENTAL
CHAMPIONSHIPS
Following the inaugural and highly successful
Para-Badminton Internationals in England
and Indonesia in June, the focus of the parabadminton world was on spreading even
further with three continental championships
by years end, together with development
initiatives in Africa and Pan America (both in
North America and South America).
Hosted every other year, the continental
championships are an opportunity for the
best in each region to battle it out for the title
of continental champion.

There are a number of stages BWF will follow
in the lead up to Tokyo 2020. These are:
•

Post Rio 2016 Paralympic Games, there
will be an evaluation of the Paralympic
Games sports programme.

•

In 2017, the IPC will announce the Tokyo
2020 Sports Programme and only then
will the BWF know the number of athletes
allocated for para-badminton.

•

The BWF will then be able to determine
the medal events and qualification
system.

•

In 2017 / 2018 the BWF will draft the
Tokyo 2020 Qualification Regulations and
these will be approved by the Council and
the IPC Governing Board.

PARA-BADMINTON
EVENTS 2014
The widening scope of para-badminton
internationally over the last few years,
underlines the sport’s growth, with various
tournaments and development activities
taking place this year.
The BWF sanctioned events attracting world
ranking point in 2014 were:
•

09-13 June – Indonesia Open ParaBadminton Championships 2014 –
Solo, Indonesia

•

24 – 29 June – England Para-Badminton
Championships 2014 – Loughborough,
England

•

09 – 14 September – European ParaBadminton Championships 2014 –
Murcia, Spain

•

18 – 24 October – Asian Para-Games
2014 – Incheon, Korea

•

10 – 14 December – Pan Am ParaBadminton Championships 2014 - La
Habana, Cuba

While the European fraternity had their
continental championships in Murcia, Spain
(9-14 September), the Asian Para Games in
Incheon, Korea was used as the Continental
Championships in Asia. Then, in December,
La Habana, Cuba, played host to the Pan
Am Continental Championships, the first
time Cuba had hosted a para-badminton
international.
European Para-Badminton Championships
- The European Championships were again
a highly successful event. Hosted at the
High Performance Center in Murcia, this
tournament showcased a very competitive
standard of play.
•

100 players (77 men and 23 women)

•

19 countries

•

16 medal events

•

Top two gold medal winning nations England and Switzerland

Asian Para-Badminton Championships –
the Championships, held in October, saw
para-badminton in a multi-sport environment.
Four years ago, badminton was on the
programme of the previous edition of the
Games in Guangzhou in 2010.
•

112 players (79 men and 33 women)

•

16 countries

•

15 medal events

•

Top two gold medal winning nations Korea and Indonesia

The quality of the competition was to a very
high standard and the event was a really
good opportunity to showcase the sport to
the many IPC Governing Board Members
and staff who attended the Games.
The largest number of players in parabadminton were from Japan with a team of
20 (12 men and 8 women).
Pan Am Para-Badminton Championships
- December saw Cuba hosting a parabadminton international for the first time, when
the Pan Am Para-Badminton Championships
were hosted in La Habana, with players from
eight Pan-American countries competing
in 11 medal events (six standing and five
wheelchair).
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coaches in the region. Lead by parabadminton coach, Kaity Hall from Scotland,
the workshops explored a range of practical
and theory sessions for coaches of parabadminton athletes.
Discover Para-Badminton 2 – Lugogo,
Kampala, Uganda – 5 – 6 January 2015

•

45 players (40 men and 5 women)

•

13 countries

•

11 medal events

•

Top two gold medal winning nations Brazil and Guatemala

Three countries entered players for the first
time in the Pan Am Championships – hosts
Cuba, Chile and Suriname .

Centre, Whitby, Toronto, Canada. The two
day event was attended by eight of Canada’s
National Badminton Coaches representing
seven Canadian Provinces out of 10 possible
and was designed to introduce coaches to
para-badminton coaching and competition.
Para-badminton players and their supporters
from the area attended the practical sessions
for players.

The second in the series of grass roots
para-badminton for players and coaches
was originally planned for December.
Attended by 18 players in addition to some
local coaches, the event was organised by
Badminton Uganda and supported by BWF.
Lead by para-badminton coach, Richard
Morris from England, the workshops were
designed to provide coaching for players and
introduce coaches to more technical aspects
of coaching para-badminton.

TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES
/ TRAINING CAMPS
Training - Technical Officials
BWF has structured training programmes for
technical delegates, referees and umpires.
Most of the training is integrated in with
para-badminton international events, and
appointments at events takes into account
the experience of the team officiating at
international competitions to ensure a
balance of experience.

As well as the international calendar of
events which attracted world ranking points,
some training and development activities for
coaches and players were supported by the
BWF in 2014. These included:
Discover Para-Badminton – Toronto,
Canada - 22 – 23 November 2014

Coaches Workshops – La Habana, Cuba
- 10 – 11 December 2014
Hosted in La Habana, Cuba just before the
competition started, the BWF supported two
days of workshops targeting para-badminton

Badminton Canada hosted a two day event
for coaches, athletes, parents and supporters
with Kaity Hall from Scotland leading the
practical and theory sessions at the Abilities

In 2014, the BWF had a structured training
programme for referees and technical
delegates, with the goal of increasing the
number of top level officials available for duty
on the international para-badminton circuit.
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PARA-BADMINTON
ATHLETES COMMISSION
In 2014, the Para-Badminton Athletes’
Commission continued to be active in
providing information to players through
social media and seeking athlete opinions on
various issues being discussed at the ParaBadminton Commission and Committee
levels
Para-Badminton
Athletes’
Commission
chair Richard Perot, is keen to ensure that
athletes have a voice, and he, together with
Yau Tiam Ann, and the other Members of the
Athletes’ Commission that sit on the ParaBadminton Commission are key to linking
the community of players with the technical
commission looking at the refinement of rules
of the game. The Commission Members are:
•

Richard Perot (FRA) – Chair (Wheelchair)

•

Antony Forster (ENG) (Standing)

•

Martin Rooke (ENG) (Wheelchair)

•

Yau Tiam Ann (MAS) (Standing)

The role of the Para-Badminton Athletes’
Commission is to:
•

liaise with players, organise players
meetings at tournaments and canvas
their views and opinions on rules and
regulations, development and direction of
para-badminton;

•

represent the views of para-badminton
athletes at Para-Badminton Commission
meetings through its representatives;

•

report back to the players on outcomes
of meetings and representations made
at the Para-Badminton Commission
meetings.

CLASSIFICATION &
CLASSIFIERS
Classification is a central component of parasport. Classification refers to the process by
which players are assessed by reference to
the impact of impairment on their ability to
compete in para-badminton events.

Classification is intended to provide a
framework for fair competition and to ensure
that the strategies, skills and talent of players
determine competitive success. Classification
is undertaken to both ensure that a relevant
level of impairment is present in a player, and
that impairment has a demonstrable impact
upon player performance in competition.
The six Sport Classes are:
1. WH 1 - Wheelchair Class 1
2. WH 2 - Wheelchair Class 2
3. SL 3 - Standing Lower Class 3
4. SL 4 - Standing Lower Class 4
5. SU 5 - Standing Upper Class 5
6. SS 6 - Short Stature Class 6
Training and development of the current
pool of 11 international classifiers was the
primary focus for 2014. Classifier training
was integrated into all those international
events where classification took place. The
goal is to ensure that the classification panels
have a range of experience and expertise on
the team at any one competition. The Senior
Classifiers are responsible for mentoring and
training of those who are less experienced.
National classification courses was another
focus whereby BWF classifiers are used
to train classifiers at a national level so
that national championships have more
experienced people to classify participants
for competition at a national level.

INTEGRATION
BWF works with a wide range of organisations
who service the needs of para-badminton.
In total, BWF works with 47 organisations
globally to promote, develop and regulate
para-badminton (25 BWF Members where
integration has taken place at a national level
, nine National Paralympic Committees and
13 national sports organisations for people
with an impairment. Where appropriate BWF
works with Continental Confederations to
implement Continental Championships and
regional development activities.
The goal for the BWF is to integrate para-

badminton into its Member Association
structures, however disability sport is
complex and it is acknowledged that full
integration into the badminton structures may
not always be possible for each Member.
In some national contexts, National
Paralympic Committees and other disability
sports
organisations
are
responsible
nationally for sport for people with a disability,
and this includes funding – so integrating
para-badminton into a national badminton
structure may not always be possible or the
best option in some contexts.

RESEARCH IN
PARA-BADMINTON

Research in para-badminton is important if
we are to fully achieve an evidence based
approach to classification in para-badminton.
BWF classifiers and sports experts are
working with Professor Dr Hanno Felder from
the Olympic Training Centre in Saarbruken,
Germany to undertake a long term project to
generate data to underpin the Classification
System, particularly where an athletes’
medical profile falls near the boundaries
between Sport Classes.
The multi-disciplinary approach involving
biomechanics, kinesiology, and physiology,
brings together medical experts (classifiers)
and applied researchers in badminton.
Data underpinning the Sport Class matrix,
particularly in the interface between Sport
Classes will be documented and this – as well
as new tools to assist classifiers in the Player
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Evaluation and First Appearance - will ensure
a more robust classification framework for our
classifiers and sports experts to work within.
In January 2015, the BWF supported a three
day training camp in Kuala Lumpur of 18 SL
3 and SL 4 players and ten coaches from five
Asian countries.

To date, the clips have had more than
316,000 views. These inspirational stories
are highlighted to promote para-badminton
and players as widely as possible across
BWF’s communications platforms.

1. Integration
To continue to integrate para-badminton
into the badminton structures and
systems at the world, continental and
national level.

Other strategies used in 2014 to get the
message out about para-badminton have
included:

The training camp had a research component
integrated into the camp and each individual
underwent a series of on-court tests to gather
information for the research. This project will
be followed up in Europe later in 2015.

•

Regular para-badminton articles in BWF’s
newsletter “Shuttle World”.

•

Paid articles and advertorials in
online international sports institutional
magazines.

•

PROMOTION AND
PUBLICITY

Regular memos and information sent out
to internal and external stakeholders.

•

Engaging official photographers at world
and continental championships to build
up a stock of visual imagery of the sport.

The BWF continues to put athletes at the
centre of the promotion of para-badminton.
BWF now has 42 para-badminton video clips
on its YouTube Channel BadmintonWorld.TV
and 36 of these are athletes’ personal stories.

Area of Focus,
Long Term Objective / Goals

2. Participation
To ensure a broad player base globally.
3. Performance
To increase the quality of elite play to
ensure world class performances across
all Sport Classes.
4. Competitions
To have a strong competition structure
with international events being hosted
regularly in each region.
5. Technical
To have a comprehensive rules system
and well qualified technical officials
to implement the rules governing
classification and competitions.

ANTI-DOPING TESTING
AND AWARNESS
Anti-doping education and testing is just
as important in para-badminton as it is in
badminton. With the implementation of the
new World Anti-Doping Code 2015, there
will be additional investment in education
and testing - both in-competition and out-ofcompetition.

6. Values of Sport, Ethics and Fair Play
To ensure a values based education
programme and an ‘intelligent’ anti-doping
testing programme – both in and out-ofcompetition.

BWF has a small number of top level parabadminton athletes on the Registered Testing
Pool and these players are targeted for
testing out-of-competition.
Anti-doping awareness messages are
integrated into all managers meetings
and players briefings at international
competitions.

7. Promotion
To raise the visibility of para-badminton
internally and externally and to promote
badminton as part of a sport for all, a sport
for everyone.

OUTLOOK AND PRIORITIES
FOR 2015
Overall in 2015, the BWF is aiming to:

PARA-BADMINTON
DEVELOPMENT PLAN
2015-2020
The BWF Council approved the plan at its
meeting in Lima on 14 November 2014. The
plan identifies key areas for training and
education and includes opportunities for
players, coaches, classifiers and other
technical officials, tournament organisers
and administrators in para-badminton.
The key goal is to “plan and support the
delivery of structured para-badminton
development programmes, projects and
activities that develop individual potential
and builds systems, structures and
pathways from beginner level to the
Paralympic Games”.
The key focuses and goals in the plan are
as follows:

•

Support the activation of funding for
national para-badminton programmes.

•

Encourage
programmes.

•

Continue to support the technical side of
international events.

•

Develop
further,
para-badminton
expertise in the system – classifiers,
technical
delegates
and
officials,
tournament organisers.

•

Increase the participation of female
athletes in para-badminton, especially in
the standing classes.

•

Increase the number of grass roots
development activities.

•

Encourage the integration of parabadminton at all levels within the BWF
structures - continental / regional, national
levels;

national

development

To achieve these, the BWF will continue to
work closely with BWF Members, National
Paralympic Committees and other national
or regional bodies responsible for sport for
people with a disability.
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in Lima. I wish to acknowledge and thank
Wayne Somers, Deputy Chair and all
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IMG MEDIA
During 2014, IMG Media – a division of IMG
Worldwide, the global sports, fashion and
media company – started a four-year (20142017) contract with BWF for the centralised
media rights of the BWF Major Events, the
BWF World Superseries and new BWF
Grand Prix Gold series.

marketing

This consolidation of BWF’s media rights
assets from 2014 onwards has given IMG
Media the exclusive rights to showcase all
of the best badminton action worldwide.
This includes the rights for the BWF Major
Events (World Championships, Thomas &
Uber Cup Finals and the Sudirman Cup),
the 12-stop BWF World Superseries tour
which culminates in the year-end BWF World
Superseries Finals and the newest circuit –
the Grand Prix Gold series. This is the first
full year that BWF has worked exclusively
with one global partner across all of its media
rights.
The deal, has increased BWF’s mediarights earnings significantly – a direct result
of badminton’s growth in popularity and the
demand for more broadcast product.

MARKETING THE BWF 2014

This partnership, which guarantees BWF and
tournament hosts higher revenues than ever
before for media rights, will also allow BWF
to explore interesting, new opportunities
regarding the improvement and expansion
of BWF’s brand and visibility through various
media streams. We have started to extend
live and delayed coverage of tournaments
into new markets and this is another aspect
we will keep exploring with IMG Media,
as well as considering how to continue
exploiting broadband technologies and use
data to engage more fans.

2014 was another exciting year for the BWF
from a marketing perspective, building on
the successes of previous years. Further
key partnerships were initiated and
decisions made that will continue to drive the
development of both the organisation and
badminton for generations to come.
The new centralised media-rights partnership
with IMG was in full swing in 2014 and has
been very beneficial commercially overall.
This, together with long-term sponsorship
for both the BWF World Superseries and
the Major Events, have given BWF a solid
platform from which to further promote and
develop badminton globally. In late 2014, the
BWF was also very proud to announce a new
Major Events Title Sponsor.
The successes of BWF’s commercial
initiatives plus badminton’s increasing
prominence and popularity in the sporting
world were underlined in October 2014 with
the International Paralympic Committee’s
announcement that badminton would also
have Paralympic status at the Tokyo 2020
Paralympic Games. This endorsement is
another incredibly positive boost for our sport
overall.

The aim throughout 2014, as underlined by
the work of our President, Poul-Erik Høyer
and the Council, has been to grow the
sport commercially which naturally includes
growing audiences, fans and participants in
the sport worldwide.
With the decision to separate the Marketing
and Communications Committee in 2013, the
two functional areas have continued to work
together closely and cooperatively, especially
in terms of advertorials, the BWF online
channel and television exposure throughout
2014.

In addition, work has begun on the next tier
opportunities now that most major monetary
contracts have been signed.

SPONSORSHIP
MAJOR EVENTS
In 2014, BWF secured its biggest partnership
to date in terms of sponsorship revenues
with the announcement of Total, the energy
giant, as the title sponsor of Major Events.
This landmark multi-million-dollar partnership
runs from 2015 until 2018, starting with the
2015 TOTAL BWF World Championships in
Jakarta, Indonesia and including the 2016
TOTAL BWF Thomas & Uber Cup Finals and
the 2017 TOTAL BWF Sudirman Cup.

BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2014
of a four-year deal to stage the seasonending spectacle in the iconic desert city.
In cooperation with Falcon & Associates
and Dubai Sports Council, the Finals is now
known as the Destination Dubai BWF World
Superseries Finals. The event, which took
place from 17-21 December at Hamdan
Sports Complex, was the most successful
finale in the history of the series. A more
detailed report on this can be found in the
Events report.

The deal, which also covers the MetLife
BWF World Superseries, broke new ground
for Total which has traditionally focused its
branding activities on the motorsports arena.
The new sponsorship is a “natural fit” and it is
significant that one of the major players in the
global energy industry will now be partnering
with badminton – the fastest racket sport
which also requires incredible stamina.
BWF is excited to announce this partnership
with an international company like Total,
entrusting badminton to convey its corporate
message and values and we are convinced
badminton will also benefit from this
association with Total’s strong principles and
corporate profile.
Both badminton and Total are expanding
globally and share core values such as equal
opportunity, local integration and continued
innovation. It is a partnership that appeals
to BWF on a strong philosophical level and
reflects how we want to portray badminton
in the corporate marketplace. BWF looks
forward to a long and fruitful relationship with
our newest partner.

BWF WORLD SUPERSERIES
The American insurance giant, MetLife,
completed its first full year of its four-year title
sponsorship (2014-2017) for the third edition
of the BWF World Superseries – the worldgoverning body’s flagship tournament circuit,
featuring 12 events and the year-end BWF
World Superseries Finals each December.
It is however important to note that
the agreement with Dubai has already
significantly raised the profile of the Finals,
not only because of the higher level of prize
money and an obvious elevation in the level
of event presentation, but also because of
significant communication and promotion
activities around the Finals.
MetLife was founded in 1868 and, through
its subsidiaries and affiliates, is a leading
global provider of insurance, annuities and
employee benefit programs, serving 90
million customers. Headquartered in one of
the world’s largest financial and commercial
capitals – the bustling metropolis of New
York – MetLife is continually spreading its
corporate wings globally. The company
has been in Asia for over 60 years and
has operations in ten Asian countries while
holding leading positions in the Americas,
Europe and the Middle East.
MetLife is keen to utilise sport sponsorship
to showcase its brand values and share in its
customers’ interests and passions.
	
  

This development – a formal association with
one of the world’s top five energy corporations
of Total’s calibre – is a clear signal about
the growth in recognition of our sport as a
commercial tool through which to deliver
marketing, sales and brand messaging,
through well-executed activations and
badminton-specific marketing strategies.
For 2015, the only exception to Total being
the title sponsor of a Major Event is that
for the Sudirman Cup, Vivo will be the title
sponsor, a significant partnership with one of
the BWF Major Events in itself, in the China
market.

DESTINATION DUBAI BWF WORLD
SUPERSERIES FINALS
The BWF World Superseries Finals were
hosted in Dubai in December 2014 as part

It has been a strategic objective for BWF to
boost the profile and the image of the Finals
and with Dubai being one of the best and
most attractive event destinations worldwide.

it will surely help the overall status of the
BWF World Superseries Finals.

Dubai has also taken on board the Shuttle
Time programme to develop badminton from
the grassroots up. Alongside the events and
grassroots development projects, both Dubai
and BWF have created a strong promotion
that all in all, has positively positioned
badminton in Dubai and the UAE, as well as
attracted a lot of interest from the rest of the
badminton world.
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2014 REVIEW AND GOING
FORWARD

Expected Prize Money –
BWF World Superseries

Major Events
In 2014 BWF staged two Major Events –
the BWF Thomas & Uber Cup Finals in
May in Delhi, India and the BWF World
Championships in Copenhagen, Denmark in
August 2014: a more detailed review of these
events can be found in the Events report.

Final

Yearly Total

2009

USD500,000

USD3,400,000

2010

USD500,000

USD3,700,000

2011

USD500,000

USD5,050,000

2012

USD500,000

USD5,250,000

2014

USD1,000,000

USD6,825,000

2017

USD1,000,000

USD7,675,000

Fan engagement and internal staff
programmes were the key focal points for
the new sponsor of the newly titled MetLife
BWF World Superseries. As a result,
MetLife’s global brand ambassador, Snoopy,
has become a recognisable character in
badminton and a key presence at World
Superseries tournaments and, given the
cartoon icon’s global appeal, has been
utilised in various ways, including making
court-side appearances, mingling with fans
and handing out gifts.
In November 2014, MetLife trialled a new
Community Programme at the Hong Kong
Open which has provided our partner with
the blueprint for a future roll-out in 2015 and
beyond.
The BWF Major Events for 2015 are the
BWF Sudirman Cup in Dongguan, China in
May and the BWF World Championships in
Jakarta, Indonesia in August.
The continued focus for BWF and both hosts
is clearly to create legacy impact, where
it is fundamental that good marketing and
communication strategies are developed to
ensure the involvement of both the badminton
community and population of the countries.
BWF is still focusing on making BWF Major
Events accessible and attractive products –
ones for which Members want to bid. Many
countries are making enquiries and showing
increased interest in bidding for BWF Major
Events, but it is still the bigger and more
established nations submitting bids. BWF is
confident the BWF Major Events can create
lasting legacies and an event platform to
popularize our sport in host countries and
regions.
At the same time, hosting BWF Major
Events can be a chance for new countries
to develop even higher organisational skills,
so this should serve as a call to all Members
to consider hosting a BWF Major Event
and discuss this option with the national
governments and sport-events organisations.
BWF WORLD SUPERSERIES
The third cycle of the BWF World Superseries
saw MetLife enter as title sponsor and built
on the success of the first two phases (20072010 and 2011-2013).

The aim is to introduce children from the
local environs in our host countries to meet
top badminton athletes to highlight the clear
relationship between good health and a
sporty and active lifestyle.
The World Superseries has at the same time
expanded its geographical footprint with
the addition of Australia as one of the 12
tournament hosts. This is clearly proof that
badminton is growing at the highest level
but, at the same time, we are conscious of
focusing on the existing strong markets which
are clearly just as integral to badminton’s
further success.
The hosts in the present cycle are:
•

World Superseries Premier: China,
Denmark, England, Indonesia and
Malaysia.

•

World Superseries: Australia, France,
Hong Kong, India, Japan, Korea and
Singapore.

•

World Superseries Finals: Dubai.

One of the successes for the BWF World
Superseries remains the prize money. The
chart below shows the increasing trend in
the prize pool available to players over the
coming years. Both the tournament hosts
and BWF are working tirelessly to improve
the revenue generation to be able to allocate
more prize money to the players in the
tournaments.

To achieve these higher goals it is extremely
important that BWF, Tournament Hosts and
players work closely together to present our
sport as professionally as possible. With
the growth in prize money and earnings, it
is also clear that all stakeholders are faced
with more obligations to sponsors and
broadcasters, and especially the players
with them becoming more in demand. This is
only a natural part of a sport becoming more
professional and in time the hard work from
all parties – especially the players – will pay
off and create an even better platform for
their earnings.
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THE GRAND PRIX GOLD
SERIES
The successful development of media
revenues and exposure of the BWF Major
Events and BWF World Superseries has
led to the BWF creating another tier of
tournaments packaged for international
broadcast by IMG Media.
In 2013, a decision was taken to centralize
the media rights for a new series of 11 events
– the BWF Grand Prix Gold. Beginning with
the India Grand Prix Gold in January 2014, all
GPG tournaments will have a minimum of two
days’ live coverage – semi-finals and finals –
thereby adding to the live badminton content
globally, which fans have been demanding.
BWF’s aim is to improve the quality and
quantity of television production across
the GPG landscape. Previously, some
tournaments had individual broadcast
contracts for domestic and, in some instances,
international broadcast while others had
none. It is also hoped this structure will help
improve general tournament presentation
at GPG level and boost the image value of
these events.
The GPG circuit is being integrated into the
distribution strategy for BWF’s international
media rights and, over the coming years,
BWF looks forward to seeing the value of
these tournaments grow.
GPG Branding/Identity 2014
The Grand Prix Gold series is uniquely
identifiable by a series logo in various colour
schemes to allow for more flexible use,

depending on tournament colours. Various
host have effectively implemented exposure
for the Series and thereby creating a stronger
position for their own event being part of a
world wide series. In the long term, it is
envisaged this collective branding will make
the GPG strong enough to stand alone.

TELEVISION EXPOSURE IN
2014 - OUR BROADCAST
FOOTPRINT
BROADCAST
Thanks to the new four-year centralised
deal with IMG Media, BWF’s media-rights
relationship now boasts a household reach in
excess of 500 million.
BWF constantly strives to improve the
TV broadcast distribution in terms of
geographical spread, and big improvements
have been achieved during recent years with
more delivered in 2014.
We have managed to break into new markets
in different continents, but it still proves difficult
to enter certain markets where badminton is
not a traditionally strong TV sport. Although
exposure of some tournaments has been
achieved across all continents, it has been
challenging to create sustainability around the
exposure in the lesser developed badminton
countries. To create such sustainability
it is crucial that parallel efforts are made
by Member Associations themselves to
develop communication programmes and
seek to popularize badminton more, as this
can clearly support the efforts to create
more sustainable and consistent broadcast
exposure. Any assistance from Members to
“open doors” would be much appreciated,
and this is already happening in a range
of countries and has been paying off with
resulting broadcast agreements.
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In 2014, BWF televised Event content was
distributed to:
•

55 Territories

•

In excess of 500 million households were
reached, up from 300 million in 2013

•

970 matches were produced for TV

BWF STREAMING CHANNEL
One prominent aspect of the agreement
with IMG which quickly gathered momentum
in 2014 was the weekly magazine show –
Badminton Unlimited – featuring players and
the sport in general.

from BWF tournaments, with the Grand Prix
Gold series. This is now packaged for global
broadcast joining the BWF Major Events and
the MetLife BWF World Superseries.
Videos on demand include all of the
“Badminton Unlimited” shows, Coach
Education (Levels 1 & 2), Para-Badminton,
Shuttle Time and top-flight tournaments.
These have attracted countless fans to the
website.

The new iteration of the show first began
airing in January 2014 and is designed to
attract more fans to badminton and, with
its diverse content, help BWF penetrate
unconquered markets.

Not surprisingly, peak online viewing took
place in May, August and December around
the dates of the BWF Thomas & Uber Cup
Finals, the BWF World Championships and
the Destination Dubai BWF World Superseries
Finals respectively. The continuous growth of
the channel underlines the fact that it will be
one of the primary sources for fans accessing
badminton content for years to come.
BWF is constantly trying to improve the
visibility of badminton through the bespoke
channel which was launched in cooperation
with Google/YouTube.
BadmintonWorld.TV provides the possibility
for a wider range of countries to follow live
badminton. In locations which receive live
feed on TV it will often not be possible to
watch the live feed on the streaming channel
simultaneously, as the increased revenues
and broadcast commitments from TV
broadcasters entitles them to the live feed
exclusively. However, the delayed feed is
available on the channel for all to watch, after
the tournament.
In 2014:

52 episodes of 26 minutes each were
produced in 2014, on time, every week.
When compared with the 12 shows in 2013,
not only is that dramatically more production
but also far greater opportunity to attract
and keep audiences who may not be seeing
events live in their territories.
All of the major braodcasters carry
Badminton Unlimited and the content is also
broadcast on BWF’s very popular online
channel (www.BadmintonWorld.tv) which
has been boosted with more live streaming

BWF AGENCY PARTNER

BWF has streamlined its relationships within
the commercial sector, having brought its
media partnership for 2014-2017 inclusive
under the centralised umbrella of IMG Media.
ESG remains BWF’s commercial partner,
overseeing its sponsorship properties and
advising BWF on the best way forward to
optimize commercial value and exposure
for the sport. ESG successfully negotiated
the agreement with the new BWF World
Superseries Title Sponsor, MetLife and are at
the same time assisting in the broad range of
implementation responsibilities we are faced
with from our sponsorship partnerships.
Repucom was appointed in 2014 to deliver
broadcast and data analysis reports to
BWF. These reports have proven extremely
useful to our hosts and sponsors as well as
providing BWF with an insight into where
trends are moving in sport, viewership and
fan expectations.
The partnership between the BWF
Commercial Department and its agency
partners is extremely important for the
successful development of our commercial
events and properties, and the agency
partnerships develop very positively year by
year.

•

The channel boasted more than 223,000
subscribers

•

16,500,000 million videos were viewed

•

A total of 183,300,000 million minutes of
BWF content were viewed on YouTube

I would like to thank all our agency partners
for the cooperation throughout 2014 and look
forward to further developing BWF’s market
position in the years to come.

In addition, BWF appointed a company called
Rightster, an expert in the YouTube arena.
Their role starting in 2015 is to dramatically
grow the YouTube platform for BWF,
including subscribers, views and ultimately
the ability to commercialise the channel to
generate increased exposure for badminton
and create higher levels of income.

BWF Internal Marketing
Organisation
With the growing number of BWF sponsors,
agency partners, commercial stakeholders
and commercial activities, it has become clear
that more resources are needed to service
and deliver the many commercial obligations
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that follow the many new agreements.
In October 2014, Owen Leed was invited
to join BWF as the Commercial Director to
work closely with the Secretary General to
ensure delivery and further development
of the commercial area. At the same time
a Marketing Manager position has been
formed to support the extensive activities
within this area.
To make this process complete, a department
has later been formed around the Commercial
Director position being responsible for
the day-to-day operations around both
commercial and communication activities.
There is a naturally close connection
between commercial, marketing, promotion
and communication activities, so this new
set-up is expected to further strengthen the
development of these areas.
Continental Confederation
Marketing Grants
In 2014 a marketing grant was introduced to
support Continental Confederations in their
efforts to develop higher levels of exposure
for their events and to increase revenue
generation.
The Continental Confederations mainly
focused the marketing grant in 2014 around
online streaming activities to provide stronger
platform for selected level 4 events to develop
their ability to generate increased revenues.
Other activities such as development of an
online Fantasy App was also part of the
marketing grant program for 2014, and all
activities are being evaluated in the first part
of 2015 to ensure the ongoing marketing
support to Continental Confederations is set
up in an optimal way.
The marketing grant for 2015 is however
to a larger extent focused on supporting a
number of more specific activities to create
learnings across the different confederations
and for BWF to be able to provide a more
focused follow-up and support.
BWF Corporate Profile
Over the last five years significant work has
been done to strengthen the corporate profile
of BWF. This has resulted in a new corporate
BWF logo and also new designs of series
logos and BWF Major Events logos.
Another step has been taken to streamline
the corporate profile of BWF by entering into
an agreement with Guangdong Evergreen
Garment Co Ltd and the brand V.E Delure,
to provide corporate clothing for all BWF
Council and staff to ensure a consistent,
fashionable and streamlined presentation of
BWF representatives.
I would like to thank Guangdong Evergreen
Garment Co Ltd for their partnership to help
BWF optimize our image through a corporate
clothing policy and design line.

FUTURE STRATEGIES

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

BWF’s marketing strategies are guided by
the 2012-2016 Strategic Plan approved by
Council in 2011.

On behalf of the BWF, I would like to express
my sincere appreciation to the following
commercial and media partners:

We have made significant progress in the
marketing sphere, and many new initiatives
have been decided. Although we must
constantly strive for higher achievements,
2015 will undoubtedly be a year with
focus on implementing the new marketing
initiatives related to both the commercial and
media area, and all primarily connected to
the different events – Major Events, World
Superseries and Grand Prix Gold.
We are, however, also looking forward to
the Rio 2016 Olympic Games where BWF
is working to raise badminton’s profile
and position in South America. It’s a great
challenge but also an extremely interesting
opportunity to use the 2016 Rio Olympics
as a platform to increase the popularity of
badminton on that continent.

A new IT project was also started in 2015 with
the aim to significantly strengthen the BWF
online platform and at the time of writing
this report a new BWF World Superseries
website has already been launched (http://
bwfworldsuperseries.com). This has a
much higher level of functionality and draws
more attention to the tournament series,
the players, the individual events and our
partners in a more prominent way.
During 2015, the IT project will provide a
comprehensive network of websites focused
on different target groups – especially the
many badminton fans – and will provide
a strong communication and promotion
platform for BWF events, the many
development activities and BWF’s corporate/
institutional profile.
The IT project has also lead to a decision to
open a Chinese version of the BWF website,
which can “speak” to fans of Chinese origin –
both in China and in the many countries with
Chinese-speaking populations with a high
interest for badminton.
BWF has engaged with a professional
communication agency in China, Shankai
Sports, to ensure the communication
platform and editorial content is optimized.
This will include servicing the website and
communicating through various social-media
channels. Together with IMG Media, BWF
is also seeking a solution to facilitate online
streaming of more tournament content in
China, as the BWF YouTube Channel is not
accessible in that vital market.

•

MetLife

•

Li-Ning

•

Total

•

Chery

•

RedBull

•

Google

•

IMG Media

•

Enterprise Sports Group (ESG)

•

Repucom

•

Badminton Photo

•

Visual Reality

•

Guangdong Evergreen Garment Co Ltd

I would also like to thank the 2014 hosts of the
BWF Major Event, BWF World Superseries
and Finals and the Grand Prix Gold hosts
for their close cooperation and partnership
in creating strong events within the three top
event concepts and ensuring good exposure
of badminton worldwide.
A general thanks and appreciation should
however be sent to all organizers of
international events, who are all an important
part of generating exposure and awareness
of the sport we are all passionate about.
A huge thanks to all the Marketing Committee
Members for their contribution and support.
A special thanks goes to the Events Committee
for their cooperation and collaboration, as
most of the work in Marketing is closely
connected with the Events portfolio.
Last but not least, I also wish to acknowledge
the work of the BWF staff under the leadership
of Secretary General, Thomas Lund, and all
the efforts being made in the Marketing area
by Commercial & Communications Director,
Owen Leed and his team – and very much
supported by Events Director Darren Parks
and the Tournament Management team.
NIGEL SKELT
MARKETING COMMITTEE
Nigel Skelt (Chair)
Etienne Thobois (Deputy Chair)
Chipo Zumburani
Jassem Kanso
Gregory Verpoorten
Emma Mason
Akhilesh Das Gupta
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The blend of print and broadcast
communications – together with social media,
online placements, press conferences,
sponsor-related activities and targeted
interviews – has served the organisation
well and continues to allow BWF to reach
audiences of all persuasions globally.

PRINT & PUBLICATIONS
The main focus of BWF’s print and publication
output in 2014 was to support the application
to get badminton (para-badminton) onto
sports programme of the Tokyo 2020
Paralympic Games.

COMMUNICATIONS
& MEDIA

Seizing every opportunity to promote the
great attributes of badminton for athletes with
impairments, the BWF profiled players as
well as the significant developments in parabadminton since 2010 when that bid proved
unsuccessful. This entailed highlighting the
sport’s entertainment and competitive value
and the fact that more and more athletes
with impairments are playing para-badminton
worldwide.

OVERVIEW
It was another busy year as the BWF’s
Communications & Media department
stepped up its key role in publicising growth,
development and other relevant news
throughout Badminton World Federation’s
many spheres. Virtually every aspect of
BWF’s mandate involves communication
and, with an ever-increasing workload and
more initiatives being implemented (plus
a hectic tournament schedule), one of the
priorities coming into 2014 was to bolster
the communications portfolio with more
manpower to boost output.
In January, Dev Sukumar joined the
organisation as Communications Officer and
has fitted into his role well. By the end of
2014, the communications function assumed
a new look within a restructured BWF setup which saw Owen Leed become the BWF
Commercial & Communications Director to
spearhead a team of four persons, including
Jessy Sung as BWF Marketing Manager
and Gayle Alleyne as BWF Communications
Manager. Given the natural inter-connection
of these areas – commercial, communications
and marketing – the Members of this unit are
expected to work very closely and obviously
keep well informed about what is happening
in other departments while determining the
required communications output.
Coming into 2014, there were some
important strategic objectives on which
BWF’s communications agenda focused –
primarily:
• supporting the application to get
badminton (para-badminton) onto the
sports programme of the Tokyo 2020
Paralympic Games;
•

collaborating with IMG Media to produce
a weekly badminton television show
(Badminton Unlimited);

•

continuing to enhance our President’s
international profile in his first year in
office and further highlighting badminton’s
rising prominence within the global
sporting community.

Video news releases with new title sponsors
MetLife (BWF World Superseries) and
TOTAL (Major Events) plus celebrating the
80th anniversary of badminton’s worldgoverning body (previously known as the
International Badminton Federation) which
was established on 5 July, 1934, were other
notable highlights. An advertorial displaying
a timeline of events since the federation’s
inception was compiled to mark the occasion.
Our accustomed coverage of BWF events
has extended to the new Grand Prix Gold
circuit which, like the BWF Major Events
and MetLife BWF World Superseries, is now
televised around the world, answering our
fans’ call for more live badminton action.

Among strategic platforms utilised to
showcase these positives were leading
institutional websites such as Around
the Rings and Inside the Games with
advertorials, banner advertising and editorial
content. Additionally, para-badminton content
on BWF’s online channel, BWF’s corporate
website and other avenues (including Shuttle
World newsletter) was increased to heighten
awareness.
BWF’s print outreach also continued to
present a panoramic perspective of the
organisation’s growth and progress, covering
several topics: anti-doping, the Athletes’
Commission, coaching, governance, instant
review system, Peace and Sport projects,
research, the scoring system, Shuttle Time,
sponsorship and Women in Badminton. A
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snapshot of BWF’s growth and success was
presented in a special SportAccord magazine
put together by Inside the Games, under the
banner “Badminton…All Together”, with a
pictorial showing BWF’s universality.
Naturally, there was also great focus on
events, with BWF Major Events and the
MetLife BWF World Superseries taking
centre stage. The announcement of the
four-year BWF Destination Dubai World
Superseries Finals also garnered much
public interest and received the appropriate
coverage across BWF’s print and publication
spectrum.
In 2014, forty-one (41) press releases were
issued while the BWF’s quarterly newsletter
(Shuttle World) became more prominent
in breaking key news stories, including
the Dubai partnership, plans for a new
digital museum and, at year-end, the multimillion-dollar deal with TOTAL for the title
sponsorship of BWF Major Events.

The print media remains integral to BWF’s
communications agenda and the decision to
introduce a network of websites, covering the
scope of the federation’s mandate, indicates
this focus will be important well into the future.

BWF WEBSITES
The much-awaited transformation of BWF’s
online landscape began late in 2014,
with the first of six new websites being
unveiled. Showcasing player profiles,
statistics, tournaments, sponsors and other
information, this vibrant, contemporary BWF
World Superseries website will be followed
by a fans’ site and a new corporate site in the
first quarter of 2015.
Thereafter, three more sites – world
championships, training & education (with
Shuttle Time sub-site) and the digital museum
– will come online, catering to specific
aspects of the BWF’s work and mandate.
Over time, www.bwfbadminton.org will be
phased out and replaced by the fan-friendly

network of sites which BWF believes will be
the primary avenue for “all things badminton”.
The new structure will make it easier for
persons with particular interests to navigate
directly to what they are seeking.
Statistics:
1 January - 31 December, 2014
www.bwfbadminton.org
Visits

8,782,951

Unique Visitors

3,241,218

Pageviews

22,352,176

Cumulative Pageviews
(Start date: May 4, 2009)
www.bwfbadminton.org
Dec 2011

6,485,800

Dec 2012

37,001,827

Dec 2013

53,698,531

Dec 2014

76,050,707
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Additionally, having acknowledged the
Chinese market requires special attention,
the BWF will soon optimize its presence
among that Asian demographic with a
Mandarin website. The intention is to use this
platform not only to feature news but also
to drive social-media messaging on Weibo,
WeChat and other China-centric portals
and to give the Chinese audience access
to content to which are currently restricted,
including YouTube channel and other multimedia material. BWF is developing this area
with IMG Media and Shankai Sports.

SOCIAL MEDIA
The BWF’s presence on Facebook and Twitter
continues to increase the organisation’s
profile among badminton fans who are active
on social media.
Linkages between our websites (including
YouTube) and social-media platforms have
proven successful and the benefits of sharing
news, photos, videos and other information
on these “instant news” portals are borne out
by the growth of likes/followers. The table
below shows the related increases.
As indicated earlier in this report, BWF is
implementing a strategy for badminton’s
Chinese audience which will encompass
various social-media platforms, including
Weibo and WeChat. These should be up and
running in a few months and by next year we
will be able to quantify their impact in helping
to spread BWF’s message within that target
market.
Platform
Facebook
Twitter

Player response was very receptive with some
athletes asking questions and indicating they
are looking forward to benefiting from the
whole programme which has eight modules.
It is envisaged this initiative will help players
be more confident and appreciative of
what media as well as sponsors (corporate
partners), fans, BWF and other vital
stakeholders want/expect from them – and
how their stardom can help badminton to
develop and prosper.
The aim is now to have a grand launch of
the programme in May 2015 after which it
will be tailored to smaller groups of players,
preferably by country given language
considerations.

Jan 2014

Feb 2015

106,000 Likes

158,465 Likes

27,200 Followers

36,400 Followers

BWF PLAYERS’ MEDIA &
EDUCATION PROGRAMME
In May 2014, BWF presented its plans for the
BWF Players’ Media & Education Programme
to a widespread audience of players at the
BWF Athletes’ Commission meeting in Delhi,
India.
BWF officials (including Secretary General
Thomas Lund) stressed the importance of
helping players improve their media relations
and hone other skills which would be useful
to them as successful professional athletes
and possibly when their playing careers are
over.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
BWF’s communication team has had another
good year and the work done has benefited
the organisation and the development of
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Ranjit De Silva; other committee Members
and the BWF Council for their input and
suggestions during 2014.
My appreciation also goes to all other
committees whose work and decisions
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which we communicate to our stakeholders;
both internally and externally.
Finally, I wish to acknowledge the contribution
of the BWF staff under the leadership of
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new BWF Commercial & Communications
Director, Owen Leed. Thanks to our
Communications Manager, Gayle Alleyne,
Communications Officer, Dev Sukumar, and
the new Marketing Manager, Jessy Sung.
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Lawrence Chew
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events

‘the hard way,’ beating world number three,
Wang Yihan, the gifted Tai Tzu Ying, and the
Olympic Champion Li Xuerui on her way to
the title.
The two major BWF events in 2014 were
the Li-Ning BWF World Championships in
Copenhagen, Denmark and the Li-Ning BWF
Thomas and Uber Cup Finals in New Delhi,
India.
2014 also marked the start of a remarkable
four year partnership for the BWF with the
stunning city of Dubai as the hosts and title
sponsors of the BWF Destination Dubai
World Superseries Finals. It was widely
agreed that the 2014 finals were the best
ever held in terms of player experience,
television production and prize money.
The BWF World Championships held at
the Ballerup Super Arena in Copenhagen
presented a ground breaking show for
badminton fans with its innovative sports
presentation. The strongest memory for many
fans however would be Carolina Marin’s
courageous performances as she took the
women’s singles world championship title

In addition fans witnessed one of best ever
men’s doubles finals as Ko Sung Hyun
and Shin Baek Choel of Korea overcame
compatriots Lee Yong Dae and Yoo Yeon
Seong in a thriller. Chen Long’s victory for
China in the men’s singles final prolonged
the great Malaysian singles star Lee Chong
Wei’s wait for his first (and Malaysia’s) world
championship title.
The Thomas & Uber Cup Finals held in
Siri Fort Complex, New Delhi were notable
for a number of firsts; the first time the
event had been held in India, the first time
a city had hosted the new 16 team format,
(which soon proved a robust and effective
format for the oldest of the BWF team world
championships), and the first time that Japan
had won the Thomas Cup.
Japan’s stunning victory over China in
the semi-final of the Thomas Cup threw
the competition wide open and in another
upset Malaysia blitzed through neighbours
Indonesia 3-0 to face Japan in the final.
Badminton fans were then lucky to witness
one of the most compelling finals ever with

Japan and Malaysia slugging it out match
for match and game for game until the final
game of the final match, where young star
Takuma Ueda clinched the title 21-17 against
Daren Liew. This was a great achievement
for Japan and also for coach Park Joo Bong,
whose achievements as a coach match his
legendary status as a player. Park also led his
women’s team past a spirited performance
by the hosts in the semi-final and into the
Uber Cup Final against China. China utterly
deserved their Uber Cup victory however
efficiently dealing with all their opponents
without losing a match until the final 3-1
victory over Japan.
The BWF World Superseries 2014 in addition
to the new partnership with Destination Dubai
saw some significant changes in the new
cycle including the global brand of American
insurance giant MetLife becoming title
sponsor. The Australian Open became part
of the circuit after a very competitive bidding
process, adding both a third continent to the
Superseries representation and a significant
prize fund (the second highest in the Series.)
They came in for China Masters who continue
to deliver a very strong tournament as part of
the BWF Grand Prix Gold Series. The 2014
MetLife BWF World Superseries achieved
an increase in both television coverage and
prize money as the Superseries continued to
grow from strength to strength.
The Finals held in Dubai, the first ever
international tournament held in the United
Arab Emirates, proved to be both an
outstanding experience for the players
and major progress for the sport as all the
glamour and quality of that iconic location
was added to the first $1,000,000 prize fund
for a Finals, top quality television production
and ambitious sports presentation.
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BWF MAJOR EVENTS
Li-Ning BWF World
Championships 2014
The Li-Ning BWF World Championships
2014 was notable for the host’s ambitious and
ground breaking sports presentation, excellent
organisation and Carolina Marin’s remarkable
victory as the first player for many years to win a
world title from outside the larger well-resourced
nations who dominate the sport. Badminton
Denmark and the City of Copenhagen also set
a new record as the first city and country to host
four World Championships (1983, 1991, 1999
and 2014).
BWF and the hosts were also proud and happy to have big support
from the BWF long term commercial partners title sponsors Li-Ning,
RedBull and Chery Car. In addition a one off commercial agreement
was made with Jati Rice.
The Championships fulfilled the BWF strategic objectives of
showcasing and promoting badminton to an ever increasing worldwide
television audience with good spectator attendances and high quality
television production. The television production in particular also
featured the best ever use of ultra slow motion cameras in badminton,
with the use of two specially adapted cameras. BWF would like to
thank Viasat for delivering a strong TV-production setup.

•

Successful implementation of complex commercial partnerships

•

Smooth presentation of matches onto court in multi court stages
integrated with television production

BWF would like to thank Badminton Denmark for delivering a great
BWF World Championships and setting a mark for other Member
Associations to aspire to.
Events

Gold

Silver

Men’s
Singles

Chen Long
(CHN)

---

Viktor Axelsen
(DEN)
Tommy
Sugiarto (INA)

Women’s
Singles

Carolina
Marin (ESP)

Li Xuerui
(CHN)

Mitani Minatsu
(JPN)
P.V Sindhu
(IND)

Men’s
Doubles

Ko Sung
Hyun &
Shin Baek
Choel (KOR)

Lee Yong
Dae &
Yoo Yeon
Seong (KOR)

Kim Ki Jung &
Kim Sa Rang
(KOR)
Matthias Boe
& Carsten
Mogensen
(DEN)

Women’s
Doubles

Tian Qing &
Zhao Yunlei
(CHN)

Wang Xiaoli &
Yu Yang (CHN)

Lee Hee So &
Shin Seung
Chan (KOR)
Reika Kakiiwa
& Miyuki
Maeda (JPN)

Mixed
Doubles

Zhang Nan/
Zhao Yunlei
(CHN)

Xu Chen &
Ma Jin (CHN)

Liu Cheng &
Bao Yixi (CHN)
Joachim
FischerNielsen &
Christinna
Pedersen
(DEN)

Strong features of the Li-Ning BWF World Championships 2014
included:
•

Filmed and available to broadcasters in 16:9 HD

•

High quality television production including use of Ultra Slow
Motion cameras

•

Innovative sports presentation utilizing theatrical lighting, special
LED screens, light projection and music

•

Successful implementation of ‘fine dining’ VIP catering adjacent
to field of play

Bronze
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Li-Ning BWF Thomas and
Uber Cup Finals 2014

	
  

Results - Final Ranking Order
Thomas Cup

Uber Cup

1. Japan

1. China

2. Malaysia

2. Japan

3. China

3. Korea

3. Indonesia

3. India

5. Denmark

5. Denmark

5. France

5. England

5. Korea

5. Indonesia

5. Thailand

5. Thailand

9. Chinese Taipei

9. Chinese Taipei

9. Hong Kong China

9. Hong Kong China

However the event was not the great showcase of badminton it could
have been due to lower than expected spectator attendance, and this
only improved on the final days of the event.

9. India

9. Malaysia

9. Singapore

9. Singapore

Strong features of the Thomas & Uber Cup Finals 2014 included:

13. England

13. Australia

13. Germany

13. Canada

13. Nigeria

13. Germany

13. Russia

13. Russia

The Li-Ning BWF Thomas & Uber Cup Finals
2014 proved to be a landmark event in the history
of the sport marking up a number of ‘firsts’. It was
the first time 16 teams in each event had played
in the finals, the first time that teams qualified
solely through the world rankings, the first time
the event had been held in India, and the first
Thomas Cup victory for Japan.
The finals were safely and competently delivered by the hosts and
again with successful partnerships with BWF commercial partners:
title sponsors Li-Ning, RedBull and Chery Car.
The Championships fulfilled the BWF strategic objectives of
showcasing and promoting badminton to an ever increasing worldwide
television audience. The television production in particular featured
some innovative uses of virtual graphics (‘pop up’ player profiles) and
using a jimmy jib camera across both TV courts. BWF would like to
thank Star TV for their strong commitment to deliver a high level TVproduction.

•

Filmed and available to broadcasters in 16:9 HD

•

Innovative television production using virtual graphic pop up
player profiles and dual court jimmy jib camera

•

Use of event concept to create look and feel identity

•

Successful implementation of complex commercial partnerships

•

Smooth presentation of matches onto court in multi court stages
integrated with television production

BWF would like to thank Badminton Association of India for helping to
deliver a very memorable and notable edition of the Thomas & Uber
Cup Finals. A worthy successor to the many editions that have gone
before since 1948.
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JATI BWF World Junior
Championships 2014
The Jati BWF World Junior Championships for the
Suhandinata Cup 2014 (team event) and the Eye
Level Cups (individual events) 2014 took place in
the northern Malaysian city of Alor Setar for the
second time. The event was successfully hosted
there in 2009. BWF were grateful to the support
extended by Badminton Association of Malaysia
and Kedah Badminton Association (KBA) in the
delivery of the championships after no formal
bids to host the event had been received through
the bidding process. The Championships was
also a key qualifying event for the Nanjing 2014
Youth Olympic Games.

BWF World Junior Championships – Final Ranking
order of Suhandinata Cup 2014
	
  

The hosts with support from the Kedah state government were able to
refurbish the stadium, Stadium Sultan Abdul Halim, to an international
standard to meet the demands of the event.
BWF once again invested in making available a USD $100,000 fund
to support participation at the BWF World Junior Championships
and participation grants were paid to 17 teams - Australia, Armenia,
Botswana, Bulgaria, Canada, Czech Republic, Egypt, Netherlands,
Mongolia, Macau, Spain, South Africa, Sri Lanka, Slovenia, USA,
Uzbekistan and Zambia.
A total of 33 teams took part in the Suhandinata Cup 2014; a slight
increase on the 32 teams who participated in 2013. A total of 41 member
associations were represented in the individual championships.
The championships were very well presented on eight competition
courts. There was also an outstanding welcome dinner at which
players from various MA’s shared the limelight on stage. RTM
broadcast three hours live of the individual events.
A two day development coaching clinic was organized by BWF for
players who were available after the second round onwards in the
individual events. BAM doubles coach Tan Kim Her was engaged to
conduct the coaching clinic and players from 14 member associations
took part (49 players).
A cultural and educational program was organised for the players and
officials on 12 April 2014. The cultural tour covered a visit to the Paddy
Museum, The Royal Palace, the former Prime Minister Tun Mahatir
Mohammed’s birth place and the National Mosque.
China dominated in the finals of the Suhandinata Cup defeating
Indonesia 3-1 while in the individual events, the medals were shared
by China - winning three gold medals (men’s singles, women’s
doubles and mixed doubles), Japan - who won the women’s singles
and Thailand - who won the men’s doubles. The prize presentations
were carried out efficiently and the Royal Crown Prince of Kedah state
presented the men’s singles medals and championship trophy to the
winners.
Team Officials were invited daily to the Kedah Badminton hospitality
suite for meals and refreshments. Many of the team officials
commented on the hospitality provided.
Players Scholarship Fund
A sum of USD $36,000 was given away as scholarship awards to the
winners of the Eye-Level Cups. This prize fund was contributed by
the past BWF president Dr. Kang Young Joong as a legacy from the
BWF Presidents Fund established by Dr Kang in the first term of his
presidency.

	
  

	
  

	
  

1

China

12

Vietnam

23

Australia

2

Indonesia

13

India

24

Botswana

3

Thailand

14

Russia

25

Sri Lanka

3

Japan

15

Philippines

26

Slovenia

5

Korea

16

Spain

27

Egypt

6

Malaysia

17

England

28

South Africa

7

Chinese
Taipei

18

Netherlands

29

Czech
Republic

8

Hong Kong

19

Canada

30

Uzbekistan

9

Denmark

20

USA

31

Armenia

10

Singapore

21

France

32

Mongolia

11

Germany

22

Bulgaria

33

Macau

BWF World Junior Championships - Individual Medal
Winners for the Eye-Level Cups
Alor Setar , Malaysia 2014
LIST OF MEDAL WINNERS
Men’s singles
Gold
Silver
Bronze

Women’s singles

Gui Pu Lin (CHN)

Akane Yamaguchi (JPN)

Yuqi Shi (CHN)

Bing Jiao He (CHN)

Jun Peng Zhao (CHN)
Ginting Anthony (INA)

Qin Jinjing (CHN)
Aya Ohori (JPN)

Men’s doubles

Women’s doubles

Gold

Puavaranukroh Dechapol
/Ketlen Kittinupong (THA)

Qingchen Chen/
Yi Fan Jia (CHN)

Silver

Masahide Nakata/
Katsuki Tamate (JPN)

Apriani Apriani/Rosyita
Eka Putri Sari (INA)

Jae Hwan Kim/Jung
Ho Kim (KOR)
Muhammad Rian
Ardianto/Hendrik
K Clinton (INA)

Yue Du/Yin Hui Li (CHN)
Binbin Jiang /Pingyang
Tang (CHN)

Bronze

Mixed doubles
Gold

Kaixiang Huang/Qingchen Chen (CHN)

Silver

Muhammad Rian Ardianto/
Rosyita Eka Putri Sari (INA)

Bronze

Yuta Watanabe/Arisa Higashino (JPN)
Kyung Hoon Park/Keun Hye Park (KOR)

BWF would like to thank the host Badminton Association of Malaysia
and Kedah Badminton Association for supporting BWF in delivering a
very memorable BWF World Junior Championships 2014.
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BWF DESTINATION DUBAI WORLD
SUPERSERIES FINALS 2014
The BWF World Superseries Finals were hosted in Dubai for the first
time, 17-21 December 2014, the first of a four year partnership. The
prize money offered was $1,000,000 - the highest ever for a BWF
World Superseries Finals.
BWF wishes to thank Falcon and Associates and the Dubai Sports
Council for their vision, ambition and major contribution in making the
Finals such a successful event in year one.
The title winners were as follows:

METLIFE BWF WORLD SUPERSERIES 2014
The 2014 season was the first in a new cycle (2014-2017) with new
hosts Australia, replacing the China Masters, and IMG (already BWF’s
partner with the Major Events) taking over as BWF’s media partner
for the series. In addition Malaysia took on Premier Superseries
status in place of Korea who reverted to the Superseries level. Global
insurance brand MetLife became the new series title sponsor after a
successful three years with OSIM. The hosts of the series continued
to build on the good progress made on commercial and technical
delivery and their sports presentation.
Hosts of the 12-leg MetLife BWF World Superseries for 2014 were:
Victor Korea Open, Superseries

07-12 January

Maybank Malaysia Open,
Superseries Premier

14-19 January

Yonex All England Open,
Superseries Premier

04-09 March

Yonex Sunrise India Open Superseries

01-06 April

OUE Singapore Open, Superseries

08-13 April

Yonex Japan Open, Superseries

10-15 June

BCA Indonesian Open,
Superseries Premier

17-22 June

The Star Australian Open, Superseries

24-29 June

Yonex Denmark Open,
Superseries Premier

14-19 October

Yonex French Open, Superseries

21-26 October

Thaihot China Open, Superseries Premier

11-16 November

Yonex Sunrise Hong Kong
Open Superseries

18-23 November

A total sum of USD $5,150,000 in prize money was distributed for the
12 Superseries events in 2013 and this was raised to $6,825,000 in
2014.

Men’s Singles

Chen Long (CHN)

Women’s Singles

Tai Tzu Ying (TPE)

Men’s Doubles

Lee Yong Dae & Yoo Yeon Seong (KOR)

Women’s Doubles

Misaki Matsutomo & Ayaka
Takahashi (JPN)

Mixed Doubles

Zhang Nan & Zhao Yunlei (CHN)
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BWF GRAND PRIX GOLD SERIES

YOUTH OLYMPIC GAMES

In 2014 BWF, in conjunction with BWF’s media partner IMG, launched
the BWF Grand Prix Gold Series. The objective of the series
synchronized well with BWF’s Strategic Plan (2012-2016) goals of
increasing television and media coverage of the sport, as each host
organizer was obliged to deliver a minimum of two days televised
coverage and achieve at least a minimum quality standard (such as
using a minimum of six cameras and having an ENG (electronic news
gathering) crew on site.) for the broadcast.

The second Youth Olympic Games took place 17-22 August in
Nanjing, China and included a brand new event for badminton with
the introduction of the innovative ‘mixed-mixed doubles’. This third
gold medal event was added for badminton in addition to the men’s
and women’s singles which had already been on offer at the inaugural
Games in Singapore in 2010. This additional mixed doubles event
was unique however in that the players from the men’s and women’s
singles were paired together in a random draw to take part in a mixed
nationality and mixed gender event. This event matched the spirit of
this ambitious IOC festival of youth sport.

In addition, a progressive and improving Grand Prix Gold series
increases the opportunity for players to earn more prize money,
encourages improvements in
tournament presentation and
organisation, and grows the fanbase of spectators as more people
around the world get a chance to see more and better quality televised
badminton.
The concept has proved immediately popular with Member
Associations with the total hosted in 2014 (10) growing to 14 or 15
tournaments in 2015.
Tournaments hosted in 2014 were:

2nd Youth Olympic Games - Medal Winners
Men’s Singles
Gold

Shi Yuqi (CHN)

Silver

Lin Gui Pu (CHN)

Bronze

Anthony Ginting (INA)

Women’s Singles

Syed Modhi India
International, Lucknow

21-26 January

German Open, Mulheim der Rhur

25 February-02 March

Swiss Open, Basel

11-16 March 2014

Malaysian Masters, Johor Bahru

25-30 March

China Masters, Changzhou

15-20 April

Gold

Cheam June Wei (MAS) & Ng Tsz Yau (HKG)

USA Open, New York

08-13 July

Silver

Kanta Tsuneyama (JPN) & Lee Chia Hsin (TPE)

Chinese Taipei Open, Taipei City

15-20 July

Indonesia Masters, Palembang

09-14 September

Bronze

Sachin Angodavidanalage (SRI) & He Bing Jiao
(CHN)

Bitburger Open, Saarbrucken

28 October-2 November

Macau Open, Macau

25-30 November

Gold

He Bing Jiao (CHN)

Silver

Akane Yamaguchi (JPN)

Bronze

Busanan Ongbumrungpan (THA)

Mixed Doubles

Unfortunately for very different reasons, the proposed Grand Prix
Gold tournaments in Bangkok and London were cancelled.
The BWF Grand Prix Gold series provided a total prize fund of USD
$1,420,000.

OTHER MULTI-SPORT GAMES
BWF GRAND PRIX
In 2013 there were 18 Level three events, (both Grand Prix Gold and
Grand Prix). In 2014 with the creation of the ten BWF Grand Prix Gold
series, an additional nine Grand Prix events were also held. The 19
level three tournaments held were therefore a slight increase on the
tournament provision in 2013. These included the first ever Grand
Prix level tournament in South America as Brazil, with support from
BWF and Pan Am Continental Confederation, hosted the Brazil Open
Grand Prix in August. Grand Prix tournaments play a vital part in the
providing a varied competition opportunity for players and a chance
to progress up the performance pathway to the highest pinnacles of
the sport.
The BWF Grand Prix tournaments provided players with the
opportunity to win a combined total prize pool of USD $450,000.

There were two major regional Multi Sport Games that took place
in 2014. The Commonwealth Games in Glasgow, Scotland, and the
Asian Games in Incheon, Korea.

Asian Games
The 17th Asian Games event was held 	
  
in Incheon, South Korea 19 September
– 4 October 2014. Badminton men’s and
women’s team events were held in the
Gyeyang Gymnasium, 20 – 23 September,
while the individual events were held 25
– 29 September. Twelve countries took
part in the men’s and women’s team
event: China, Chinese Taipei, Hong
Kong, India, Indonesia, Japan, Macau,
Malaysia, Maldives, Nepal, South Korea,
and Thailand. The results and the winners
were as follows:
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Men’s Team

XX Commonwealth Games 2014

Country

Medals

South Korea

Gold

China

Silver

Malaysia

Bronze

Chinese Taipei

Bronze

Australia, Barbados, Canada, England, Falklands, Ghana, Guernsey,
India, Jamaica, Jersey, Kenya, Malaysia, Mauritius, New Zealand,
Norfolk Island, Northern Ireland, Scotland, Seychelles, Singapore,
South Africa, Sri Lanka, Uganda and Wales.

Country

Medals

Mixed Team

China

Gold

South Korea

Silver

Japan

Bronze

India

Bronze

The XX Commonwealth Games badminton championships was held
in Glasgow, Scotland at Emirates Arena 24 July – 3rd August 2014. In
total, 23 badminton nations took part in the mixed team and individual
Championships:

Women’s Team

Individual Events
Nineteen countries participated: Afghanistan, China, Chinese Taipei,
Hong Kong, India, Indonesia, Iran, Japan, Macau, Malaysia, Maldives,
Mongolia, Nepal, Pakistan, Qatar, Singapore, South Korea, Thailand
and Vietnam. The results were as follows:

Country

Medals

Malaysia

Gold

England

Silver

Singapore

Bronze

Individual Events
Men’s Singles

Country

Medals

K. Parupalli

India

Gold

Derek Wong

Singapore

Silver

Rajiv Ouseph

England

Bronze

Bronze

Women’s Singles

Country

Medals

Country

Medals

Michelle Li

Canada

Gold

Wang Yihan

China

Gold

Kristy Gilmour

Scotland

Silver

Li Xuerui

China

Silver

Tai Tzu Ying

Chinese Taipei

Bronze

P.V. Sindhu

India

Bronze

Bae Yeon Ju

Korea

Bronze

Men’s Doubles

Country

Medals

Men’s Doubles

Country

Medals

Goh V Shem/Tan Wee Kiong

Malaysia

Gold

Mohammad Ahsan/ Hendra
Setiawan

Indonesia

Gold

Singpore

Silver

Lee Yong Dae/Yoo Yeon Seong

Korea

Silver

Danny Chrisnanta/Chayut
Triyachart

Goh V Shem/Tan Wee Kiong

Malaysia

Bronze

Chris Langridge/Peter Mills

England

Bronze

Kim Gi Jung/Kim Sa Rang

Korea

Bronze

Women’s Doubles

Country

Medals

Women’s Doubles

Country

Medals

Greysia Polii/Nitya Krishinda
Maheswari

Indonesia

Gold

Vivian Kah Mun Hoo/Wong
Khe Wei

Malaysia

Gold

Ayaka Takahashi/Misaki
Matsutomo

Japan

Silver

Jwala Gutta/Ashwini Ponnappa

India

Silver

Vivian Hoo Kah Mun/Woon
Khe Wei

Malaysia

Bronze

Gabrielle Adcock/Lauren Smith

England

Bronze

Zhoa Yunlei/Tian Qing

China

Bronze

Mixed Doubles

Country

Medals

Mixed Doubles

Country

Medals

Zhang Nan/Zhao Yunlei

China

Gold

Chris Adcock/Gabrielle Adcock

England

Gold

Ahmad Tontowi/Liliyana Natsir

Indonesia

Silver

Chris Langridge/Heather Olver

England

Silver

Xu Chen/Ma Chin

China

Bronze

Praveen Jordan/ Debby
Susanto

Indonesia

Bronze

Robert Blair/Imogen Bankier

Scotland

Bronze

Men’s Singles

Country

Medals

Lin Dan

China

Gold

Chen Long

China

Silver

Lee Chong Wei

Malaysia

Bronze

Wei Nan

Hong Kong

Women’s Singles
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13TH WORLD UNIVERSITY
BADMINTON CHAMPIONSHIPS
The
13th
World
University
Badminton
Championship was held in Cordoba, Spain, 23
- 29 July 2014. The championships consisted of
team and individual events and BWF supported
the event with provision of a technical delegate
and provided consultation and advice on
competition regulations.

	
  

Sixteen countries participated in the mixed team
championships from 23 – 26 while individual
championships took place from 27 – 29 July
2014. Australia, Brazil, Canada, China, Chinese
Taipei, Germany, India, Japan, Korea, Malaysia,
Russia, Sri Lanka, Spain, Switzerland, Thailand,
and United States of America.
The sixteen teams were divided into four groups of four teams.
Results were as follows:
Mixed Team championships
Placing

Country

Champions

China

Runners up

Malaysia

Joint third place

Chinese Taipei

Joint third place

Korea

Joint fifth place

Switzerland

Joint fifth place

Thailand

Joint fifth place

Japan

Joint fifth place

Germany

9th

Russia

10th

Spain

11th

Canada

12th

Australia

13th

India

14th

Brazil

15th

USA

16th

Sri Lanka

Results of Individual Events
Events

Players/Country

Men’s Singles

Huan Gao (CHN)

Women’s Singles

Yu Po Pai (TPE)

Men’s Doubles

Mohamad Arif Ab Latif/ Iskandar
Zulkarnain Zainuddin (MAS)

Women’s Doubles

Dongni Ou/Yuanting Tang (CHN)

Mixed Doubles

Cheng Liu/Yuanting Tang (CHN)

BWF Level 4 Events
The number of Level 4 tournaments held once again increased in
2014 to 78 sanctioned tournaments (up from 72 in 2013). This ever
increasing programme provides a competition pathway for emerging
international players prior to tackling the higher levels of international
competition.

Level 4 Events

2013

2014

International Challenge

32

33

International Series

27

42

Future Series

13

3

Total

72 (3 others
cancelled)

78 (3 others
cancelled)

In 2014 the total prize pool was USD $768,000. In 2014 BWF initiated
a Tournament Grant, to be distributed through the Continental
Confederations. This funding aims to assist in driving the development
of level 4 tournaments in each region. The aim is not only to improve
prize money but to improve the delivery and presentation of the
events themselves which will in turn give hosts more chance to attract
commercial investment and grow further.

EXPERIMENTAL SCORING SYSTEM
TEST EVENTS
Following previous discussions, test sessions, and formal consultation
with both Athletes Commission/Players and Member Associations,
BWF Council at its meeting on Friday 30 May 2014 agreed to introduce
a period of testing of a new experimental scoring system. The testing
period began 1 August 2014 and ended Sunday 2 November 2014.
One BWF Grand Prix tournament (Brazil), 18 level 4 tournaments and
12 international junior tournaments were held using the experimental
scoring system.
The system tested involved the best of 5 games to 11 points without
‘setting’ and with ‘in game’ intervals only taking place in any fifth and
final game.
The data collected in the testing period was discussed at the BWF
Council meeting on 14 November 2014. BWF Council agreed that a
new scoring system, such as best of 5 games to 11, had the potential
to improve the sport, to make it more dynamic, exciting and attractive
to broadcasters, media and commercial partners. However more
testing to include some kind of ‘two clear points’ or ‘tie break’ options
when the score reaches 10-10 were needed. The Council decided
that any change to the scoring system should be made after the
2016 Olympic Games and provided a period of further testing of the
experimental scoring with setting before the qualifying period.

LAWS OF BADMINTON & COMPETITION
REGULATIONS CHANGES IN 2014
BWF Council at its meetings on 30 May in New Delhi, India and 14
November 2014 in Lima, Peru agreed to recommend changes to a
number of laws to the BWF AGM 2015 and a number of decisions
relating to RTTO’s, General Competition Regulations, and specific
competition regulations. These included:
Laws
Changes were recommended to BWF AGM 2015 to Law 9.1.1, Law
9.1.2, Law 16.7.1.2 and deletion of Law 13.3.2.
In addition amendments were approved by BWF Council to Appendix
7 - Instant Review System.
Recommendations to Technical Officials (RTTO’s)
BWF Council agreed changes to Sections 3.3 (During the match),
3.4. (Line calls), 3.7 (Misconduct), and 5.3 (Approved hand signals).
General Competition Regulations
Changes to the following General Competition Regulations were
agreed:
•

Grand Prix (Level 3) and Level 4 tournaments - prize money
thresholds to increase each year from 2016.
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•

Procedures and consequences of players
tournaments in the same week made clearer.

entering

two

•

GCR Appendix 11 – table of offences and penalties updated.

•

Separation of entries procedure clarified.

•

Regulations on clothing updated including clarification that players
are allowed to wear headscarves and turbans on court and that
players must wear the same colour and design of shirts and shorts
(or equivalent allowed articles of clothing) throughout a match.

•

Clarification that retiring from a match shall not be considered a
withdrawal and procedures around ‘no show’s including that a ‘no
show’ penalty will be added to the withdrawal penalty not replace
it.

•

In Appendix 2 – Specifications for International standard facilities it
was made necessary to have a wooden sprung floor, or equivalent
surface for level 3 tournaments (previously only mandatory for
level 1 and 2).

•

World Ranking system – revision of Continental Championships/
Continental multi-sport games individual championships points
allocation so that Asian Championships receive BWF World
Superseries level points and African Championships receive
International challenge points. The other Championships
remaining the same.

•

Adjustment to Appendix 8, date lines for tournaments, all dates
adjusted to be one week earlier.

•

Revised and clarified Appendix 10 BWF Sanctioning Policy
to show how different levels of tournament may use different
titles and that only the highest ranking tournament offered by a
Member Association may use the title ‘Open’. Also clarified various
principles of sanctioning such as level 3 grand prix tournaments
are no longer allowed to be scheduled to overlap with level 2
events.

•

Regulations for the Thomas & Uber Cups were revised to allow
for the re-introduction of Continental Confederations qualifying
tournaments and also changes as a consequence to the
composition of teams for the Finals.

•

BWF Council agreed regulations for Badminton competition
– Rio 2016 (Section 5B) and the Statement of Badminton’s
Requirements for Rio 2016 (Section 5C). In addition the principle
was agreed that BWF may use group play in the Brazil Grand
Prix 2015 (Rio 2016 test event), if required to fully simulate the
competition conditions for the results service providers OMEGA.

•

•

New Regulations for Superseries were agreed that included the
introduction of a bonus incentive scheme for player’s ranked top
ten in the BWF World Superseries standings in return for fulfilling
their playing commitments and various media obligations. Also it
was agreed that from 1 January 2015 BWF will grant wild card
invitations to reigning world champions in non-Olympic years (in
Olympic year the reigning Olympic Champions) to the Superseries
Finals if they do not qualify as of right via the Superseries standings
list and if they are in the top 20 of the World rankings on the date
of invitation by BWF. A maximum of two players from that Member
Association in the event would be observed and also the number
of players/pairs in the event will not exceed eight.
It was agreed to include in the BWF Equipment approval scheme
that for level 1 to 3 tournaments, court mat run-off areas will be
recommended to be at least 1 metre from the baselines, and 0.5
metres from the sidelines. All level 1 to 3 tournament courts to fully
comply by 2020.

•

The number of mandatory doping tests to be conducted at Grand
Prix tournaments was increased to a minimum of six.

•

BWF Council agreed a policy on the redistribution of medals
and the world ranking system for suspended players, such
as those who fail a test for a banned substance, for the World
Championships and Olympic Games (and world rankings system
process for retired players).

TECHNICAL OFFICIALS
Badminton Technical Officials Strategic Plan
In 2014, BWF started work on an overall Technical Officials (TO)
strategic plan that is intended to create a ‘road map’ matched with
resources for TO development at member association, continental
confederation, and BWF levels. The objective is to improve the overall
size and quality of the workforce. This strategic plan is scheduled to
be completed in 2015.
BWF is already taking steps towards this objective with the role
of Umpire Assessors expanded to take on a mentoring and
educating role through appraisals alongside their existing assessor
responsibilities. At many of our BWF major events and MetLife BWF
World Superseries events the Umpire Assessors held a workshop
for umpires in addition to completing appraisals with all the assigned
BWF umpires, and, upon request, any CC or MA umpires who also
asked for feedback. Their role at the event includes one-on-one
mentoring and sharing of a formal appraisal evaluation post-match.
Umpire Assessors completed appraisals at the following events in
2014
•

Korea Open

•

All England Championships

•

Australian Open

•

Indonesia Open

•

BWF Thomas & Uber Cup Finals

•

BWF World Championships

The BWF Technical Official Commission, chaired by Torsten Berg met
on 28 August 2014 in Copenhagen alongside the Li-Ning BWF World
Championships.
Referees Upgraded to BWF Accredited Level
•

Jeff Bell (CAN)

•

Chris Lawrence (USA)

•

Yogen Bhatnagar (AUS)

•

Julie Carrel (NZL)

Umpires Upgraded to BWF Certificated Level
(Assessment made at Thomas & Uber Cup Finals 2014)
•

Fine C. Dathan (IND)

•

Gerald Arsenault (CAN)

•

Henrik Boas Olsen (DEN)

•

Hidetomo Kasahara (JPN)

•

Janelyn Fundal (PHI)

•

Marcel Schmit (SUI)

•

Trish Gubb (NZL)

•

Teo Kian Joo (MAS)

Umpires Upgraded to BWF Accredited Level
(Assessment made at the Li-Ning BWF World Championships 2014)
•

Jiten Bhatt (AUS)

•

Telly Rumate (INA)
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BWF International Line Judges
BWF International line judges took part in the following events:

Senior Badminton Working Group

•

•

Peter Tarcala, Chair

•

Peter Emptage (ENG)

•

Wu Jun (TPE)

•

Loke Poh Wah (AUS)

•

Charlotte Ackermann (USA)

Li-Ning Thomas & Uber Cup Finals 2014 - eight officiated from
Belgium, England, Germany, Japan, Malaysia, Mauritius and
Thailand.

•

Li-Ning BWF World Championships 2014 – 10 officiated from
Australia, Brazil, China, France, Germany, Hungary, India,
Malaysia, Netherlands, and South Africa.

•

Jati BWF World Junior Championships 2014 - 10 officiate from
Denmark, England, Germany, Hong Kong, India, Netherlands,
Philippines and Thailand.

•

Destination Dubai BWF World Superseries Finals Dubai, UAE 10 officiated from Denmark, England, France, Japan, Malaysia,
Thailand, Philippines, United States of America, Australia and
Brazil.

•
•

Events Committee
•

Peter Tarcala, Chair

•

Li Ling Wei, Deputy Chair

•

Nora Perry

•

Liu Fengyan

Youth Olympic Games - eight officiated from England, India,
Korea, Malaysia, Netherlands, Philippines and Thailand.

•

Emma Mason

XX Commonwealth Games – 10 officiated from Australia,
Barbados, Botswana, England, India, Malaysia, New Zealand,
Singapore and Sri Lanka.

•

Geraldine Brown

•

Ng Yoke Weng

•

Raj Gaya

•

Lawrence Chew

•

Akhilesh das Gupta

Events Technical Workshop
An Events Technical Workshop was held on 5th March 2014 in
Birmingham, England. Attendees were:
•

Peter Tarcala, Chair of BWF Events Committee

•

Emma Mason, Chair of Athletes Commission

•

Torsten Berg, Chair of Tournament Officials Commission

•

Simon Mugabi, Badminton Confederation Africa Representative

•

Rudy Roedyanto, Badminton Asia Representative

•

Jimmy Andersen, Badminton Europe Representative

•

Loke Poh Wong, Badminton Oceania Representative

The workshop proved a valuable ‘sounding board’ and discussion
group for a range of technical initiatives concerning tournament
draws, entries and major event qualification procedures.
Events Continental Confederation Workshop
An Events Continental Confederation workshop was held at BWF
headquarters on 11 September 2014. The workshop was chaired
by the BWF Chair of Events Committee, Peter Tarcala, and it was
attended by a combination of CC’s Secretary Generals , chair of event
committees and event managers. Building on the good progress
made in 2013, the aim of this workshop is to provide information on
BWF activities, share knowledge, expertise and good practice and
help in the implementation of BWF and CC programmes.
MEETINGS OF WORKING GROUPS
The Events Committee met twice in 2014 in New Delhi, India in May
and in Lima, Peru in November.
The composition of the Events related Committee’s and Commissions
is as follows:
Technical Officials Commission
•

Torsten Berg, Chair

•

Peter Tarcala, Chair of Events Committee

•

Jean Guy Poitras, Badminton Confederation Pan America

•

Peter Cocker, Badminton Oceania

•

Diraj Gooneadry, Badminton Confederation Africa

•

Ewald Cejnek, Badminton Europe

•

Nahathai Sornprachum, Badminton Asia

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The BWF Events Committee, BWF Council and staff wish to
acknowledge the tremendous support and contribution of tournament
organisers, technical officials, and volunteers, throughout the year and
throughout the world without whose love and passion for badminton
many of the international events would not happen.
To the members of the Events Committee, BWF Events team and
everyone who has contributed their valuable time and precious
knowledge over the last year in meetings, and workshops, and at
events, I sincerely thank youfor your valuable contributiom.
We need your knowledge and expertise and hope you will continue to
support us for many years to come.
PETER TARCALA
EVENTS COMMITTEE CHAIR
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The Athletes’ Commission was pleased that
during the final BWF Council meeting of 2014
the Council listened to the player’s feedback
and chose to reassess the proposed 5 x
11 scoring system and the implementation
timeline. The Athletes’ Commission looks
forward to continuing to work closely with the
BWF Council and players on future scoring
proposals.

Athletes’
Commission

INTRODUCTION
2014 was a very important year for badminton
and the Athletes’ Commission as the sport
took the decision to evaluate its current
scoring system and trial a new 5 x 11 format.
The Athletes’ Commission worked with the
BWF office and the BWF Council to ensure
that the player’s opinion’s on the new scoring
system were heard.
The Athletes’ Commission also held a
player’s meeting during the Thomas and
Uber Cup Finals in Delhi and established an
Athlete Career Working Group within BWF
Council to discuss pertinent player issues.
2014 was also a hugely exciting year for our
para-badminton players as they learned that
para-badminton would be included in the
Tokyo 2020 Paralympic Games, an outcome
which the Athletes’ Commission is delighted
with.

•

In conjunction with the BWF Events
Committee, implementing an increase in
prize money and a better defined minimum
standard for flooring requirements at all
BWF sanctioned events.

•

Continued to increase communication
with players via the Athletes’ Commission
social media sites.

•

Two
Members
of
the
Athletes’
Commission participating in the BWF
Destination Dubai World Superseries
Finals in December.

Scoring System
After the BWF Council decision that it would
look to trial a new 5 x 11 scoring system, the
Athletes’ Commission worked hard to ensure
that the players, as those directly affected by
any change to the scoring system, were given
the opportunity to test the new system and to
give their feedback to the BWF Council and
Office.

ACTIVITIES & OUTCOMES
FOR 2014
The Athletes’ Commission’s main activities in
2014 were:
•

Assisting the BWF Council and BWF
Office in collecting and evaluating player
opinions on the 5 x 11 scoring system.

•

Holding a players’ meeting during the
Thomas and Uber Cup Finals.

The players were able to speak directly to
the Members of the Athlete’s Commission
and BWF Secretary General Thomas Lund
about the trial scoring system at the Athletes
Commission Players’ Meeting held during the
Thomas and Uber Cup Finals in New Delhi.

The players’ meeting held in New Delhi came
about as a result of the Commission’s goal
to increase the opportunities for the players
to communicate with their representatives.
This was the first Players’ Meeting held
since 2010 and a number of different nations
attended and had the opportunity to meet
their representatives, hear the issues that
they were working on and hear presentations
by Thomas Lund and Gayle Alleyne on
the proposed scoring system change and
the BWF media education programme
respectively.
While the Athletes’ Commission was pleased
that a number of players and nations
attended the Players’ Meeting there were
a significant number who failed to attend
despite the meeting being advertised. The
Athletes’ Commission intends to hold an
annual players’ meeting and believe that it
is important that the players are informed of
and encouraged to attend all future meetings
by their Member Associations. The Athletes’
Commission would greatly appreciate the
Member Associations support in this initiative.
Price Money
During 2013 and 2014 the Athletes’
Commission received a number of comments
from the players that they would like to see
an increase in prize money to reflect the
increased investment in badminton from
sponsors and commercial partners.
In March 2014, Emma Mason represented
the Athletes’ Commission at the inaugural
Events Technical Workshop where it was
agreed to propose an increase in prize
money at International Series, International
Challenge and Grand Prix level to BWF
Council. During the May 2014 BWF Council
meetings, the increase in prize money was
approved and is to be implemented from
2016 onward. The Athletes Commission is
pleased to have been involved and that the
players will benefit from this.
Flooring – Minimum Standards
In July 2014, the Athletes Commission
received a number of complaints from
players regarding the concrete flooring at
the Yonex Canada Open. It is very important
for the health and safety of the players that
a suitable wood-sprung floor or equivalent
is used at tournament venues. The Athletes’
Commission therefore worked with the BWF
Events Committee to propose a change
to the General Competition Regulations
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that requires all BWF or BWF sanctioned
tournaments to use a wooden-sprung floor
or equivalent. The proposal was approved
by BWF Council during the November 2014
Council meetings.

Anti-Doping and Integrity of
Badminton
2014 was also an important learning year for
our sport in terms of anti-doping and integrity
of sport.

From May 2015 there will be three new
Members elected to the Athletes Commission
and I look forward to seeing who will be
representing the players for the next two
years.

The Athletes Commission is pleased to have
been involved in a change that will protect the
players health and safety going forward.

During 2014 two top players were in the
spotlight for apparent breaches of the BWF
Anti-Doping Regulations and two other
players appeared on Danish TV to discuss
the fact that they had been approached and
asked to fix matches for money.

As always, the Athletes’ Commission will
continue to be a voice for the players at BWF
level and we would encourage any players
to contact us with any issues they may have
either directly via email or via our private
Facebook page:
https://www.facebook.com/groups/AthletesCommission.BWF/

During 2014 the Athletes’ Commission
continued to work hard to improve their
communication with and feedback to the
athletes through continued use of the
Athletes’ Commission social media platforms
and surveys.
Destination Dubai
In December 2014 Emma Mason represented
the Athletes’ Commission as part of the BWF
Council Members who attended the inaugural
BWF Destination Dubai World Superseries
Finals. The Finals were a very important
moment in our sport as they showcased the
best players in the world and represented
the increased attractiveness of our sport
as a new and exciting destination – Dubai
- had chosen to invest on a long-term basis
for the opportunity to host the BWF World
Superseries Finals.

The Athletes’ Commission would like to take
this opportunity to thank the BWF President
Poul-Erik Hoyer, the BWF Council and the
BWF office for continuing to challenge,
support and guide the Athletes’ Commission.
Without this, the Athletes’ Commission would
not be able to achieve its important mandate
to represent the player’s views at BWF level.

Both anti-doping and integrity of sport are key
issues to be aware of for all players and their
entourages and the BWF office, Council,
the Athletes’ Commission and the Member
Associations have a duty to ensure our
players are as well educated on these issues.
The Athletes’ Commission was therefore
delighted with the announcement in
November 2014 that the BWF had signed
up to the IOC’s Integrity Betting Intelligence
System (IBIS) that would be effective from
January 2015 onward.

The Finals were also incredibly successful
for two of the Athletes’ Commission Members
as Lee Yong Dae took the men’s doubles
title with his partner Yoo Yeon Seong and
Vice-Chair Hans-Kristian Vittinghus was
narrowly defeated by Chen Long in the final
of the men’s singles. As current Chair of the
Athletes Commission I would like to take this
opportunity to congratulate both players and
to reinforce the importance of having worldclass players on the Athletes’ Commission to
represent their peers.

The Athletes Commission will continue
to work with BWF to provide educational
opportunities on anti-doping and integrity in
sport for the players and would like to remind
the Member Associations of the importance
of ensuring their players are given all possible
information on these topics.
Looking Ahead - 2015
2015 is going to be a very busy year for
the Athletes’ Commission. A number of the
activities the Athletes’ Commission will work
on are:
•

Holding
the
biannual
Athletes
Commission elections during May 2015 at
the Sudirman Cup and appointing a new
Chair and Vice-Chair

•

Hosting a second annual Players’ Meeting

•

Continuing to work closely with BWF on
anti-doping and match fixing

The Athletes Commission remains focused
on improving our communications with the
players to ensure that their voices are heard
at the highest level of decision making in
badminton.

The Athletes’ Commission would also like to
take the opportunity to congratulate former
Chair Kaveh Mehrabi on his appointment
as the IOC’s Head of Athletes Programmes.
This is a fantastic personal achievement for
Kaveh, as well as a significant appointment
for a Member of the badminton family, and
the Athletes’ Commission is certain that he
will excel in this role.
On a personal note and as this will be my final
report as Chair of the Athletes’ Commission,
I would like to thank the players for their
comments and feedback that they have
taken the time to send to me during my term.
Player interaction and feedback with the
Athletes’ Commission is essential to ensure
that the BWF is aware of the issues that are
affecting the players and are therefore able to
ensure that decisions affecting our sport are
always taken with the players in mind.
I am proud of what the Athletes’ Commission
has achieved during my term and I have
no doubt that the next Chair and Athletes
Commission will successfully continue
the important role of being the voice of the
players at the BWF level.
Finally, I would like to thank all my fellow
Athletes’ Commission Members for their
continued support and enthusiasm in their
roles. They have worked diligently throughout
my term as Chair and a special mention must
go to my Vice-Chair Hans-Kristian Vittinghus
who has taken the Athletes’ Commission’s
communication with the top players to the
next level. I am positive that the players will
be in good hands after the elections in May
2015.
Emma Mason
Athletes Commission
Emma Mason (Chair) (SCO)
Hans-Kristian Vittinghus (Vice-Chair) (DEN)
Rodrigo Pacheco (PER)
Yuhan Tan (BEL)
Greysia Polli (INA)
Lee Yong Dae (KOR)
Pedro Yang (GUA) (Ex-officio Member)
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Grand Prix events with Technical Officials
as well as BWF managers to ensure the
obligations of commercial and media
agreements of our partners were delivered.
BWF again invested in the BWF World Junior
Championships. In 2014, the Jati BWF World
Junior Championships was underwritten
by a total of US$229,000, including a travel
grant of US$97,000 to selected participating
teams.

DEVELOPMENT

finance
report

BWF continued its commitment to supporting
the five Continental Confederations with
development grant funding of US$2.214
million to help them develop badminton
within their respective regions and to support
the staffing and general operational costs.

The BWF continues to do very well on the
above and the BWF has a positive reserve of
US$21.9 million as at the year ended 2014.

OVERVIEW
This second year of the Olympic cycle has
been a very busy and successful year again
with the events area continuing to drive
the income side of the business with the
commercial and media rights underpinning a
strong financial position.
We are pleased to report the following
highlights:
•

In 2014, the BWF in partnership with its
Members successfully hosted a range of
major events which were commercially
successful – the MetLife BWF World
Superseries; the Li-Ning BWF Thomas &
Uber Cup Finals in Delhi; the Li-Ning BWF
World Championships in Copenhagen
and the inaugural Destination Dubai BWF
World Superseries Finals in Dubai.

•

This was the second year of our four year
Olympic cycle, we are on target with our
priorities and expected outcomes as we
look towards Rio 2016 Olympic Games.

•

Our main objectives for the Finance
Committee are:
•

•

To maximise income and ensure
efficient and prudent spending to
maximize outcomes for the BWF,
including seeking ways to achieve
efficiency gains where possible.
To build sufficient reserves to ensure
the long-term future and stability of the
BWF and the sport.

The overall performance for the year
compared favourably against the budget.

INCOME
In the area of events, there was additional
revenue of more than US$1.04 million from
media, sponsorship rights, sanctioning and
income from the equipment approval scheme
compared to the budgeted income.
The BWF investment income is derived from
short-term deposits. The BWF does not
presently hold any other investment portfolio.
The short-term deposit interest income for
the year was US$215,000.

EXPENDITURE
During the past year, BWF continued to
support and invest in a number of key areas.

EVENTS
This was done primarily through upgrading
the quality of our BWF Major Events and the
BWF World Superseries. BWF has continued
to invest in two key areas in events and
this has been the continuing investment
in the Instant Review System, following its
introduction in late 2013 and in the consistent
branding of events.
The BWF continued in 2014 to support the
staffing of all BWF Major Events, the BWF
World Superseries, Grand Prix Gold and

Shuttle Time and coaching programmes
continued to be strategic priorities for
development and BWF spent US$192,000
in these two areas while US$227,000 was
invested in the second year of the player
development strategy. This was provided
in grants to the Continental Confederations
to assist in the development of talented
players from developing and less developed
badminton nations.
BWF invested a significant amount in
developing resources and piloting these
that aimed to increase the capacity of BWF
Members to better govern, manage and
develop the sport. In 2014 a total of $212,000
was invested in stage one of the project
which focused on resource development and
piloting these.
The BWF will invest more than $3.6 million in
development overall in 2015 and this will be
continued annually until 2017.

RIO 2016 LEGACY
The BWF committed in 2014 to the
implementation of the Rio 2016 Legacy
Project which included the employment of
a Rio 2016 Project Manager, engagement
of an events, communications and media
company in Rio and the delivery of a wide
range of badminton activations in Rio. This
strategy is to ensure that there is a really
good awareness of the sport in Rio and Brazil
– and to leave a legacy locally and regionally
for post Rio 2016 Olympic Games.
The strategy is a significant investment for
the BWF and in 2014, the BWF committed
US$545,000 to the first phase of the project.

PARA-BADMINTON
The investment in para-badminton continued
in 2014 as BWF moved forward with the
application for badminton to be included
into the Tokyo 2020 Paralympic Games.
BWF’s investment in 2014 of US$255,000
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included support for para-badminton events,
development, training and education of
personnel and for the costs of the bid and
application process with the IPC as well as
the overall operations of the sport.

BWF AGM AND FORUM
BWF provided a significant amount of funding
(US$162,000) to subsidise the airfare and
hotel accommodation for all our Members in
order to encourage greater participation in
our Annual General Meeting and Member’s
Forum.
This was the second year of the Travel
Support Grant to attend the AGM and this
initiative will continue in the future.

DIGITAL PLATFORM
One other major project undertaken in 2014
was the IT / Digital Platform Project designed
to deliver seven new websites for the BWF
and extranet that aims to increase efficiency
in workflows across BWF and its internal
stakeholders. 2014 saw an investment of
US$245,000 and BWF will continue with the
investment in 2015 to ensure a successful
roll-out.

LOOKING AHEAD
BWF has been fortunate to sign up a Major
Events Title Sponsor for a period of four
years. The partnership with Total, the global
energy giant, is a significant one for the
BWF. Over the next four years, the income
from all our commercial, media and sponsor
partnerships will steadily increase each year.
The result is that we continue to have a
significant cash reserve and we will diversify
our investment portfolio to minimise our risk
and yet remain aggressive enough to capture
capital appreciation. The BWF still intends to
invest in an office property in Kuala Lumpur
BWF, however this will only be realised once
the registration status as an international
organisation in Malaysia is secured.
Finally, I would like to thank the Finance
Committee Members and the Committee
Chairs for their hard work in creating a strong
financial position for BWF.

DATO’ WIRA LIM TEONG KIAT
FINANCE COMMITTEE
Lim Teong Kiat (Chair)
Chipo Zumburani (Deputy Chair)
David Cabello
Mehdi Karbasian
Paul Kurzo
Ng Yoke Weng
Nigel Skelt
Wayne Somers
Peter Tarcala
Etienne Thobois
Vishu Tolan
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budget

INCOME ACCOUNTS IN USD ‘000

BUDGET
2014
COUNCIL
0514

ACTUAL
2014
31.12.14

BUDGET
2015
COUNCIL
1114

FORECAST
2016
COUNCIL
1114

OLYMPIC
OLYMPIC INCOME

-

-

-

14,800

IF Development Fund & Olympic Solidarity

79

50

50

50

OLYMPIC INCOME & DEVELOPMENT GRANT TOTAL

79

50

50

14,850

14,944

13,904

14,957

12,472

Membership Subscriptions

216

186

216

216

Office Location Grant

158

150

150

-

ADMINISTRATION INCOME TOTAL

374

336

366

216

210

10

60

60

5

-

-

-

215

10

60

60

15,612

14,300

15,433

27,598

EVENTS
BWF Tournaments and Open Badminton Events ( include other income )
EVENTS INCOME TOTAL
ADMINISTRATION

FINANCE
Investment Income
Late Payment Interest
FINANCE INCOME TOTAL
TOTAL INCOME
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EXPENDITURE ACCOUNTS IN USD'000

BUDGET
2014
COUNCIL
0514

ACTUAL
2014
31.12.14

BUDGET
2015
COUNCIL
1114

FORECAST
2016
COUNCIL
1114

OLYMPIC

-

-

-

500

PARALYMPIC

0

-

-

100

7,926

8,189

9,642

10,110

EVENTS
BWF Tournaments Expenses
Technical Officials & Technical Equipment
Medical / WADA Anti-Doping
CC Events Workshop
EVENTS TOTAL

219

323

316

316

59

230

217

217

22

53

32

32

8,226

8,795

10,207

10,675

DEVELOPMENT & SPORT FOR ALL
CC Grants
Continental Development grants
Contestable Funds - Project Funding by Application
CC Subscription Grants

1,273

1,295

1,295

1,295

751

1,180

1,330

1,140

190

167

194

194

2,214

2,642

2,819

2,629

Coaching Resources Project

88

169

105

80

Coaches Conferences / Master Class

19

72

96

88

9

27

27

27

116

268

228

195

Coaching

Olympic Solidarity Course
Other Development Activities
Special Development for World Junior Championship

8

10

10

10

143

212

210

210

Schools Badminton Projects - implementation

76

110

132

132

University Badminton

11

10

6

15

Capacity Building - Membership development

212

200

200

200

Reseach Projects - Sports Science

101

80

80

80

-

130

100

50

551

752

738

697

Special Projects

Outdoor Shuttlecock Development Project
Continental Confederation Workshops
DEVELOPMENT & SPORT FOR ALL TOTAL

21

32

32

34

2,902

3,694

3,817

3,555

86

55

70

70

112

124

243

243

PARA-BADMINTON
Para-Badminton Commission
Para-Badminton World Championships/
Continental Champ.
Paralympic 2020 application

42

20

-

-

Para-Badminton Development

15

136

214

214

PARA - BADMINTON TOTAL

255

335

527

527

Women In Badminton Project

53

122

109

107

Multi Sports Events Support

4

20

10

10

IOC AND INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS

23

10

19

19

Rio Project

Peace & Sport

545

440

550

510

IOC AND INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS TOTAL

625

592

688

646
70

ADMINISTRATION
BWF Player of the Year Gala Awards Night

31

65

110

Other Awards - certificates, momentos, ceremonies

1

5

5

5

Resource Centre

-

3

5

5

24

25

10

-

-

-

50

-

56

98

180

80

Digital museum project
Match Fixing
ADMINISTRATION TOTAL

69

70
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EXPENDITURE ACCOUNTS IN USD'000

BUDGET
2014
COUNCIL
0514

ACTUAL
2014
31.12.14

BUDGET
2015
COUNCIL
1114

FORECAST
2016
COUNCIL
1114

MARKETING
Marketing Exp, Brochure & PR Gift / Souvenir

-

21

21

21

Marketing strategy activation - brand

-

25

10

10

45

50

90

60

Media production: Profile/Life Style
footage - Series PR support

Media statistics - Global Badminton Report

-

100

120

120

China Marketing Initiative

-

-

75

60

Trademark of BWF logo's/names

4

-

-

-

Digital media archive

-

10

10

10

Monitoring of Betting - players education

-

10

-

-

Speedminton

-

-

20

-

Marketing Staff Travel
MARKETING TOTAL

-

-

30

30

49

216

376

311

-

20

40

30

COMMUNICATION
Media Education programme
Newsletter

7

10

10

10

Tournament Media relations

0

15

25

25

Institutional communication plan

41

50

50

50

Institutional Media subscription

8

8

10

10

Media Equipment

-

-

8

8

Staff travel

9

5

10

10

65

108

153

143

COMMUNICATION TOTAL
GOVERNANCE
AGM
Subsidies to MA for travel to BWF
Members Forum / AGM
BWF Members Forum ("Congress") ( incl hotel subsidy)

24

78

96

76

120

300

282

273

42

60

79

96

Council and Committee Meetings

753

1,192

1,281

1,280

GOVERNANCE TOTAL

939

1,630

1,738

1,725

1,907

2,172

2,417

2,620

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
INCLUSIVE STAFF COST

292

300

347

362

FINANCE CHARGES

PROFESSIONAL AND OTHERS TOTAL

34

25

28

31

TAXATION

50

10

10

10

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

15,400

17,975

20,488

21,285

TOTAL INCOME

15,612

14,300

15,433

27,598

212

(3,675)

(5,055)

6,313

CAPITAL (RESERVES) AS AT 1ST JANUARY

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

21,779

21,779

21,991

16,936

CAPITAL (RESERVES) AS AT 31ST DECEMBER

21,991

18,104

16,936

23,249

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

212

(3,675)

(5,055)

6,313

CONTINGENCY FUND

-

-

-

-

-

(4,000)

(4,000)

-

212

(7,675)

(9,055)

6,313

Investment in Property - Office Space
PROJECTED SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)
CAPITAL (RESERVES) AS AT 1ST JANUARY

21,779

21,779

21,991

12,936

CAPITAL (RESERVES) AS AT 31ST DECEMBER

21,991

14,104

12,936

19,249
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Badminton World Federation
(Registration No. 1983-05-5)
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of Badminton World Federation, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2014, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 77 to 99.
Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Council of the Federation is responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to give a true and fair view in accordance
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the Constitution of the Federation, and for
such internal control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Registration No. 1983-05-5
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Federation as of 31 December 2014 and of
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International
Financial Reporting Standards and the Constitution of the Federation.
Other Matters
This report is made solely to the members of the Federation, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other
person for the content of this report.

KPMG
Firm number: AF0758
Chartered Accountants
Petaling Jaya,
Date: 20 April 2015
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Statement of Council responsibilities
For each financial year, the Constitution of the Federation requires the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Federation and of its financial performance and cash flows for that period to be prepared. In preparing those financial statements,
the Council has decided to:
•

select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

•

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

•

state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and,

•

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Federation will continue in
business.

The Council has general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to it to safeguard the assets of the Federation and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Badminton World Federation
(Registration No. 1983-05-5)
Statement by the Council
In our opinion, the financial statements set out on pages 77 to 99, are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the Constitution of the Federation so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Federation as of 31 December 2014 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

……………………………………
President
Poul-Erik Høyer

……………………………………
Finance Committee Chair
Dato’ Wira Lim Teong Kiat

Date: 20 April 2015
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Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2014
Notes

2014
$

2013
$

$

$

GROSS INCOME
-

Olympic income

1,343,754

78,866

97,067

14,742,020

10,666,893

Subscriptions

215,800

215,400

Office location support

157,750

164,825

Olympic development grants

3

BWF tournaments and open badminton events

Other gross income

4

Total Gross Income

202,373

43,879

15,396,809

12,531,818

Other income
Reversal of impairment loss

-

18,650

Total OTHER INCOME

-

18,650

Expenditure
Events
Olympic expenses
BWF tournaments expenses

442

-

8,226,207

5,564,035
8,226,649

5,564,035

Development
Continental grants

5

Continental Confederation workshop

2,213,801

1,908,450

20,715

31,129

Coaching development

6

115,707

53,372

Other development activities

7

551,421

157,429
2,901,644

2,150,380

Para-Badminton

8

254,777

229,650

IOC & International Relations

9

624,529

58,270

Administration
Awards, archives and statute books

25,163

17,118

Players of the Year Gala Awards Night

31,047

49,352
56,210

66,470

Communication and Marketing
Marketing and media publications

64,629

64,172

Marketing consultancy and strategy activation

44,515

71,590

4,335

Trademarks

113,479

135,762

AGM, Council and Committee Meeting
144,399

Annual general meeting
BWF members’ forum
Council and committees

10

239,767

41,425

43,875

753,107

605,769
938,931

General and Administrative Expenses
Sub-total

11

889,411

1,907,418

1,267,477

15,023,637

10,361,455
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Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2014
(continued)
Notes

2014
$

2013
$

Sub-total

$

$

15,023,637

10,361,455

Professional and Others Fees
Insurance
Legal and professional charges

12

Audit fee

92,277

96,365

51,500

70,004

22,000

21,497

773

-

Bad debts written off
Depreciation
Net unrealised currency exchange loss

16,558

15,471

104,918

32,629

3,489

Net realised currency exchange loss

Finance costs
TOTAL EXPENDITURE
OPERATING SURPLUS
Interest income

13

238,067

34,137

23,506

15,349,289

10,623,028

47,520

1,927,440

209,838

141,596

5,399

Late payment interest
SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation

2,101
291,515

21

Total SURPLuS FOR THE YEAR

The notes on pages 81 to 99 are integral part of these financial statements.

6,157
215,237

147,753

262,757

2,075,193

50,455

38,803

212,302

2,036,390
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Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2014
Note

2014

2013

$

$

17,820

13,957

17,820

13,957

Trade and other receivables

2,582,209

4,654,838

Less: Impairment loss

(755,350)

(755,350)

1,826,859

3,899,488

87,039

225,695

Non-current assets
Equipment

14

Current assets

15
Prepayments

25,665,646

25,204,610

Total current assets

27,579,544

29,329,793

Total assets

27,597,364

29,343,750

10,000

10,000

Cash and cash equivalents

16

Funds
F S Coaching Fund

17

World Junior Championships Fund

18

317,966

317,966

Dr. Kang Young Joong’s Fund

19

338,293

371,789

666,259

699,755

21,779,372

19,742,982

Capital reserves
At beginning of year
Surplus for the year
At end of year

212,302

2,036,390

21,991,674

21,779,372

22,657,933

22,479,127

4,891,617

6,834,623

Current liabilities
Payables and accruals
Provision for tax
Total liabilities
Total funds and liabilities

20

47,814

30,000

4,939,431

6,864,623

27,597,364

29,343,750

Statement of recognised gains and losses
For the year ended 31 December 2014
The Federation has no recognised gains and losses other than the income and expenditure recognised for the year.

The notes on pages 81 to 99 are integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2014

Note

2014

2013

$

$

Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus before taxation

262,757

2,075,193

16,558

15,471

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of equipment
Net unrealised loss/(gain) in currency exchange differences
	Operating profit before changes in working capital
Trade and other receivables and prepayments
Payables and accruals
Dr. Kang Young Joong’s Fund
	Cash generated from operations

104,918

(32,629)

384,233

2,058,035

2,172,655

(882,922)

(1,943,006)

2,489,331

(33,496)

(120,258)

580,386

3,544,186

Tax paid

(32,641)

(8,803)

Net cash generated from operating activities

547,745

3,535,383

Addition of equipment

(20,421)

(12,616)

Net cash used in investing activity

(20,421)

(12,616)

527,324

3,522,767

Cash flows from investing activity

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

(66,288)

32,629

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

25,204,610

21,649,214

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

25,665,646

25,204,610

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash and bank balances

16

14,743,286

11,138,874

Deposits placed with financial institutions

16

10,922,360

14,065,736

25,665,646

25,204,610

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The notes on pages 81 to 99 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

Badminton World Federation is a Federation incorporated under the Societies Act, 1966 and domiciled in Malaysia. The address of its registered
office and principal place of business is as follows:
Registered office and principal place of business
Unit 17.05, Level 17, Amoda Building
22 Jalan Imbi
55100 Kuala Lumpur
Registration No. : 1983-05-5
The Federation is principally involved in administrating, promoting, developing and popularising the sport of Badminton throughout the world.
The financial statements were approved by the Council on 20 April 2015.
1

Basis of preparation
(a)

Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Federation have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the Constitution of the Federation.
The following are accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that have been issued by the Malaysian
Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) but have not been adopted by the Federation:
MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

•

Amendments to MFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (Annual Improvements 20112013 Cycle)

•

Amendments to MFRS 2, Share-based Payment (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle)

•

Amendments to MFRS 3, Business Combinations (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle)

•

Amendments to MFRS 8, Operating Segments (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle)

•

Amendments to MFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle)

•

Amendments to MFRS 116, Property, Plant and Equipment (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle)

•

Amendments to MFRS 119, Employee Benefits – Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

•

Amendments to MFRS 124, Related Party Disclosures (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle)

•

Amendments to MFRS 138, Intangible Assets (Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle)

•

Amendments to MFRS 140, Investment Property (Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle)

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
•

Amendments to MFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations (Annual Improvements 20122014 Cycle)

•

Amendments to MFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle)

81

82

BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2014
1

Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

Statement of compliance (continued)

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
(continued)
•

Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and MFRS 128, Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures – Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

•

Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, MFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and
MFRS 128, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures – Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

•

Amendments to MFRS 11, Joint Arrangements – Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

•

MFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts

•

Amendments to MFRS 101, Presentation of Financial Statements – Disclosure Initiative

•

Amendments to MFRS 116, Property, Plant and Equipment and MFRS 138, Intangible Assets – Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

•

Amendments to MFRS 116, Property, Plant and Equipment and MFRS 141, Agriculture – Agriculture: Bearer Plants

•

Amendments to MFRS 119, Employee Benefits (Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle)

•

Amendments to MFRS 127, Separate Financial Statements – Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

•

Amendments to MFRS 134, Interim Financial Reporting (Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle)

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
•

MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
•

MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014)

The Federation plans to apply the abovementioned accounting standards, amendments and interpretations, where
applicable:
•

from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2015 for those accounting standards, amendments or interpretations
that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014;

•

from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2016 for those accounting standards, amendments or interpretations
that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016;

•

from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2017 for those accounting standards, amendments or interpretations
that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017; and,

•

from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2018 for those accounting standards, amendments or interpretations
that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
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1

Basis of preparation (continued)
(a)

Statement of compliance (continued)
The initial application of the above accounting standards, amendments and interpretations are not expected to have any
material financial impact to the current period and prior period financial statements of the Federation.

(b)
		
(c)

Basis of measurement
The financial statements of the Federation have been prepared on the historical cost basis, unless otherwise stated.
Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements of the Federation are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The Federation’s financial statements are presented in US Dollar ($),
which is the Federation’s functional currency. All financial information is presented in $, unless otherwise stated.

(d)

Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with MFRSs requires the Council to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.
There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

2

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements, unless
otherwise stated.
(a)

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Federation at exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period are retranslated to the
functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are not retranslated at the end of the reporting date
except for those that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date
that the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(b)

Financial instruments
(i)

Initial recognition and measurement
A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only when,
the Federation becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial instrument is recognised initially, at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial instrument not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial instrument.
An embedded derivative is recognised separately from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative if, and
only if, it is not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract and the host contract
is not categorised at fair value through profit or loss. The host contract, in the event an embedded derivative is
recognised separately, is accounted for in accordance with policy applicable to the nature of the host contract.

(ii)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement
The Federation categorises financial instruments as follows:
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables category comprises debt instruments that are not quoted in an active market.
Financial assets categorised as loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
All financial assets, are subject to review for impairment (see Note 2(e)(i)).
Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

(iii)

Derecognition
A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire or control of the asset is not retained or substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred to another party. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received (including any new asset
obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.
A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2014
2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c)

Equipment
(i)

Recognition and measurement
Items of equipment are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located.
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment.
When significant parts of an item of equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major component) of equipment.

(ii)

Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing a component of an item of equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it
is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the component will flow to the Federation and its
cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised to profit or loss.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii)

Depreciation
Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an item of equipment from the date
that they are available for use.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
•

Office furniture and office equipment			

3 years

•

Computer equipment and software				

3 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at end of the reporting period, and adjusted
as appropriate.
(d)	Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks and highly liquid investments which
have an insignificant risk of changes in fair value with original maturities of three months or less.
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2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e)

Impairment
(i)

Financial assets
All financial assets are assessed at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events having an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset. Losses
expected as a result of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognised.
An impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables is recognised in profit or loss and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account.

(ii)

Other assets
The carrying amounts of other assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash-generating unit.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the cash-generating unit (groups of
cash-generating units) on a pro rata basis.
In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of each
reporting period for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognised. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year
in which the reversals are recognised.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(f)

Employee benefits
(i)

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and sick
leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans
if the Federation has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii)

State plans
The Federation’s contributions to statutory pension funds are charged to profit or loss in the year to which they
relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Federation has no further payment obligations.

(g)

Income recognition
Tournament
Tournament income is recognised when the respective tournaments are held.
Olympic income
Olympic income is recognised on an accrual basis.
Subscription
Subscription income is recognised on an accrual basis.
Interest
Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method.
Dividend
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Other gross income
All other gross income is recognised on an accrual basis.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h)

Taxation
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous financial
years.
Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not recognised for the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets,
and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities,
but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised
simultaneously.
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of the reporting period and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

(i)

Fair value measurement
Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for share-based payment and lease transactions, is determined as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.
For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Federation uses observable market data as far as possible.
Fair value are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the input used in the valuation technique
as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Federation can access at
the measurement date.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.
Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The Federation recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfers.
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Olympic development grants
2014

2013

$

$
8,866

27,067

70,000

70,000

78,866

97,067

Olympic solidarity fund
International Federation Development Fund

4

Other gross income
Other gross income consists mainly of income earned from the equipment approval scheme.

5	Continental grants

Continental development grant
Returns of subscription

2014

2013

$

$

1,465,590

1,431,858

189,954

192,045

99,257

116,547

Player development

226,500

168,000

Tournament grants

175,000

-

57,500

-

2,213,801

1,908,450

Equipment – shuttle time

Marketing grants

Continental development grant relates to grants to the five Continental Federations to support the development of badminton in those
regions as follows:
2014

2013

$

$

Badminton Confederation of Africa

246,874

245,342

Badminton Asia Confederation

328,376

320,789

Badminton Europe

514,097

441,647

Oceania Badminton Confederation

128,031

132,429

Badminton Pan American Confederation

248,212

291,651

1,465,590

1,431,858

2014

2013

$

$

6	Coaching development

Coaches education
Olympic solidarity courses

106,389

42,852

9,318

10,520

115,707

53,372

89
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Other development activities
2014

2013

$

$

Special development for World Junior Championship
School project

76,332

60,400

100,917

23,932

Continental Special Project

143,385

63,097

10,556

-

Capacity Building – Membership Development

211,951

-

551,421

157,429

Para-Badminton

Para-badminton Commission
Para-badminton Championship
Paralympic 2020 Application
Para-badminton Development

9

10,000

Sports Science
University Badminton

8

8,280

2014

2013

$

$

85,474

78,984

112,080

150,666

42,344

-

14,879

-

254,777

229,650

IOC & International Relations
2014

2013

$

$

Women In Badminton Project

52,678

26,941

Peace in Sports

23,356

31,329

3,529

-

Multi Sports Events Support
Rio Project

544,966

-

624,529

58,270

10	Council and committees

Council
Executive Committee
President and Deputy President’s expenses

2014

2013

$

$

573,224

281,664

-

137,523

4,738

16,500

Administration Committee

16,205

26,778

Development Committee

27,978

34,647

Events Committee

44,589

35,911

160

555

Marketing Committee

24,078

10,218

International Olympic Committee/International Relations Committee

44,099

51,586

Finance Committee

Athlete Commission

18,036

10,387

753,107

605,769
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The general and administrative expenses can be analysed as follows:
2014

2013

$

$

1,368,960

998,166

47,404

33,431

7,602

12,134

Office general administrative expenses

67,364

40,009

Other office, property and utilities costs

81,602

85,923

334,486

97,814

1,907,418

1,267,477

Staff costs (see Note 11.1)
Other staffs cost including recruitment cost
Staff travelling and expenses

Computer consumables and network maintenance inclusive web
project cost

11.1

Staff costs
Number of employees
2014

2013

19

Full time

18

2014

2013

$

$

Employee costs
Wages and salaries

1,324,487

959,019

1,914

3,735

Social Security Contribution
Employees’ Provident Fund

12

35,412
998,166

Legal and professional charges
2014

2013

$

$

43,995

67,494

Tax consultant fees

4,095

1,310

Other professional fees - service tax

3,410

1,200

51,500

70,004

Legal fees

13

42,559
1,368,960

Interest income
2014

Bank interest
Fixed deposit interest

Dr. Kang
Young
Joong’s
Fund

WJC
Fund

$

$
-

2013

-

Other

Dr. Kang
Young
Joong’s
Fund

WJC
Fund

Other

$

$

$

$

333

-

-

144

2,504

2,290

209,505

5,934

4,197

141,452

2,504

2,290

209,838

5,934

4,197

141,596

91
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Equipment
Office
furniture
and office
equipment

Computer
equipment
and
software

Total

$

$

$

Cost
At 1 January 2013

47,172

158,560

205,732

Additions

-

12,616

12,616

Write off

-

(9,976)

(9,976)

47,172

161,200

208,372

963

19,458

20,421

(20,445)

(18,708)

(39,153)

27,690

161,950

189,640

At 1 January 2013

43,899

145,021

188,920

Charge for the year

2,548

12,923

15,471

-

(9,976)

(9,976)

46,447

147,968

194,415

1,045

15,513

16,558

(20,445)

(18,708)

(39,153)

27,047

144,773

171,820

At 31 December 2013/1 January 2014
Additions
Write off
At 31 December 2014
Accumulated Depreciation

Write off
At 31 December 2013/1 January 2014
Charge for the year
Write off
At 31 December 2014
Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2013

15

3,273

13,539

16,812

At 31 December 2013/1 January 2014

725

13,232

13,957

At 31 December 2014

643

17,177

17,820

Trade and other receivables
2014

2013

$

$

Trade
Trade receivables
Less: Impairment loss

2,296,729

4,490,013

(755,350)

(755,350)

1,541,379

3,734,663

285,480

164,825

1,826,859

3,899,488

Non-Trade
Other receivables
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2014

2013

$

$

Cash and bank balances

14,743,286

11,138,874

Deposits placed with financial institutions

10,922,360

14,065,736

25,665,646

25,204,610

Included in cash and bank balances are cash held for the FS Coaching Fund (Note 17), World Junior Championships Fund (Note 18)
and Dr. Kang Young Joong’s Fund (Note 19) of US$666,259 (2013: US$699,755).
17

F S Coaching Fund
The F S Coaching Fund represents a gift of US$10,000. Interest generated by this fund is used for coaching.

At beginning and end of year
18

2014

2013

$

$

10,000

10,000

World Junior Championships Fund
During 1992, the Federation received US$300,000 from the sponsors of the first World Junior Championships. Income generated by
this fund is to be used for the championships.

At beginning of year

2014

2013

$

$

317,966

317,966

2,290

4,197

(2,290)

(4,197)

317,966

317,966

Interest on fund (Note 13)
Transfer to tournament income
At end of year
19	Dr. Kang Young Joong’s Fund

From 2006 to 2013, the Federation received funds from Dr. Kang Young Joong. The Fund and the income generated from this Fund
is to be used for:
1)

assisting Continental Confederations in their development activities;

2)

assisting in developing badminton for the disabled;

3)

assisting events development/ activities and prize money; and

4)

assisting other projects as defined by Dr. Kang Young Joong.

At beginning of year
Interest on fund (Note 13)

2014

2013

$

$

371,789

492,047

2,504

5,934

-

9,808

Fund distributed during the year

(36,000)

(136,000)

At end of year

338,293

371,789

Fund received during the year

93

94

BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2014
19

Dr. Kang Young Joong’s Fund (continued)
In 2014, the Council approved the use of US$36,000 (2013: US$136,000) from Dr. Kang Young Joong’s Fund to provide one-off
scholarship to all medallists for World Junior Individual Championships for Eye-Level Cups 2014.

20

Payables and accruals
2014

2013

$

$

Current
Other payables
Accruals and deferred income

1,780,887

298,093

3,110,730

6,536,530

4,891,617

6,834,623

Included in other payables is US$1,060,825 (2013: US$184,845) owing to members/players for outstanding prize monies.
21

Taxation
2014

2013

$

$

Current tax expense
- Current year provision
- Under provision in prior year

47,814

30,000

2,641

8,803

50,455

38,803

262,757

2,075,193

Tax calculated using Malaysia tax rates

61,044

535,728

Non-deductible expenses

33,542

62,743

(45,589)

(572,511)

(1,460)

9,030

277

(4,990)

47,814

30,000

Reconciliation of tax expense
Surplus before taxation

Tax exempt income
Change in unrecognised temporary differences
Other items
Under provision in prior year

2,641

8,803

50,455

38,803

Tax exemption
In 2014, the Federation successfully obtained the tax exemption granted by the Ministry of Finance. The tax exemption is granted for
the statutory level on all income of the Federation’s official activities (except for income on dividends) for a period of 2 years beginning
year of assessment 2014 to 2015.
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Taxation (continued)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

Tax loss and unabsorbed capital allowance carry-forward
Deductible temporary differences

2014

2013

$

$

2,429,000

2,429,000

(10,828)

(4,990)

2,418,172

2,424,010

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the Federation can utilise the benefits there from.
22

Financial instruments
22.1	Categories of financial instruments
The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments of the Federation categorised as loans and receivables and
financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
Carrying amounts
2014

2013

$

$

Financial assets
Trade and other receivables

1,826,859

3,899,488

Cash and cash equivalents

25,665,646

25,204,610

27,492,505

29,104,098

(1,780,887)

(298,093)

Financial liabilities
Other payables
22.2

Net gains and losses arising from financial instruments
2014

2013

$

$

110,173

113,010

Net gains/(losses) on:
Loans and receivables
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

22.3

(3,343)

13

106,830

113,023

Financial risk management
The Federation has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
•

Credit risk

•

Liquidity risk

•

Market risk
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Financial instruments (continued)
22.4	Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Federation if the counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations.
Receivables
Risk management objectives, policies and process for managing the risk
The Federation has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.
Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from receivables is represented by the
carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.
Management has taken reasonable steps to ensure that receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are stated at
their realisable values. The Federation uses ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of the receivables and monitors
them individually.
Impairment losses
The ageing of receivables as at the end of the reporting period was:
Note

Individual

Collective

Gross

impairment

impairment

Net

$

$

$

$

2014
Not past due
Past due 1 - 60 days
Past due more than 61 days
15

519,538

-

-

519,538

72,781

-

-

72,781

1,989,890

(755,350)

-

1,234,540

2,582,209

(755,350)

-

1,826,859

1,536,430

-

-

1,536,430

2013
Not past due
Past due 1 - 60 days
Past due more than 61 days
15

479,443

-

-

479,443

2,638,965

(755,350)

-

1,883,615

4,654,838

(755,350)

-

3,899,488

For balances which are past due but not impaired, management is monitoring individual balances closely and is confident
of repayment based on subsequent collections after year end and past repayment trends of these counterparties.
The movements in the allowance for impairment loss during the year were:

At 1 January
Reversal of impairment loss
At 31 December

2014

2013

$

$

755,350

774,000

-

(18,650)

755,350

755,350
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Financial instruments (continued)
22.5

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Federation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Federation’s
exposure to liquidity risk arises principally from its various payables.
The Federation maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and bank facilities deemed adequate by the management
to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due.
Maturity analysis
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Federation’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting year
based on undiscounted contractual payments:
Carrying

Contractual

Contractual

Under 1

amount

interest

cash flows

Year

$

rate

$

$

2014
Other payables

1,780,887

-

1,780,887

1,780,887

298,093

-

298,093

298,093

2013
Other payables

22.6	Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates and foreign exchange rates, will affect the
Federation’s financial position or cash flows.
22.6.1

Interest rate risk
The Federation’s cash and bank balances, deposits and short-term receivables and payables are not significantly exposed
to interest rate risk.

22.6.2	Currency risk
The Federation is exposed to foreign currency risk on investment in structured investment, deposits and income and
expenditure that are denominated in a currency other than US Dollars. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
Ringgit Malaysia, Danish Krone, Pounds Sterling and Swiss Franc. Currently, the Federation does not hedge these
exposures. However, the Council keeps this policy under review.
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities held in currencies other than US Dollars, the Federation ensures that
the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term inbalances.
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Financial instruments (continued)
22.6	Market risk (continued)
22.6.2	Currency risk (continued)
Exposure to foreign currency risk
The Federation’s exposure to foreign currency (a currency which is other than the functional currency of the Federation)
risk, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period was:

MYR

DKK

GBP

CHF

Others

US $

US $

US $

US $

US $

2014
Trade and other receivables

285,480

-

70,981

-

-

Cash and cash equivalents

693,732

264,958

1,285

8,720

12,297

Net exposure

979,212

264,958

72,266

8,720

12,297

2,347

-

76,887

4,783

-

2013
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

1,113,517

104,354

633

10,143

2,240

Net exposure

1,115,864

104,354

77,520

14,926

2,240

Currency risk sensitivity analysis
A 10% (2013: 10%) strengthening of the US Dollar against the following currencies at the end of the reporting period would
have increased/(decreased) the total surplus for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remained constant and ignores any impact of forecasted sales and purchases.
Surplus/(Deficit)
2014

2013

$

$

MYR

(97,921)

(111,586)

DKK

(26,496)

(10,435)

GBP

(7,227)

(7,752)

CHF

(872)

(1,493)

(1,230)

(224)

Others

A 10% (2013: 10%) weakening of US Dollar against the above currencies at the end of the reporting period would have
had an equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables
remained constant.
22.7

Fair values of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short-term receivables and payables reasonably approximate fair
values due to the relatively short-term nature of these financial instruments.
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Operating leases
Leases as lessee
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

Less than one year
Between one and five years

2014

2013

$

$

24,466

62,540

-

26,058

24,466

88,598

The Federation leases its head quarters under operating leases. The leases typically run for a period of two years, with an option to
renew the lease after that date.
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Members

MEMBER ASSOCIATIONS (182 – INCLUDES SEVEN ASSOCIATE MEMBERS)
AFRICA - ( 38 )

ASIA - ( 43 )

EUROPE - ( 52 )

Algeria,
Benin,
Botswana,
Burundi,
Cameroon, Central African Republic, Congo,
Congo Kinshasa, Egypt, Equatorial Guinea,
Eritrea, Ethiopia, Ghana, Ivory Coast, Kenya,
Lesotho, Madagascar, Malawi, Mauritanian,
Mauritius, Morocco, Mozambique, Namibia,
Nigeria, Saint Helena, Seychelles, Sierra
Leone, Somalia, South Africa, Sudan,
Swaziland, Tanzania, Togo, Tunisia, Uganda,
Zambia, Zimbabwe.

Afghanistan, Bahrain, Bangladesh, Bhutan,
Brunei, Cambodia, China, Chinese Taipei,
DPR Korea, East Timor, Hong Kong,
India, Indonesia, Iran, Iraq, Japan, Jordan,
Kazakhstan, Korea, Kuwait, Kyrgyzstan,
Laos, Lebanon, Macau, Malaysia, Maldives,
Mongolia, Myanmar, Nepal, Pakistan,
Palestine, Philippines, Qatar, Singapore,
Sri Lanka, Syria, Tajikistan, Thailand,
Turkmenistan, Uzbekistan, Vietnam.

ASSOCIATE MEMBER Ligue de Badminton Réunion.

ASSOCIATE MEMBERS - Saudi Arabia,
United Arab Emirates.

Albania, Armenia, Austria, Azerbaijan,
Belarus, Belgium, Bosnia & Herzegovina,
Bulgaria, Croatia, Cyprus, Czech Republic,
Denmark, England, Estonia, Faeroe Islands,
Finland, France, Georgia, Germany, Gibraltar,
Greece, Greenland, Hungary, Iceland,
Ireland, Israel, Italy, Latvia, Liechtenstein,
Lithuania, Luxembourg, Macedonia, Malta,
Moldova, Monaco, Montenegro, Netherlands,
Norway, Poland, Portugal, Romania, Russia,
Scotland, Serbia, Slovakia, Slovenia, Spain,
Sweden, Switzerland, Turkey, Ukraine,
Wales.

OCEANIA - ( 15 )

PAN-AMERICA - ( 34 )

Australia, Cook Islands, Fiji, Guam, Kiribati,
Nauru, New Zealand, Norfolk Island, Samoa,
Tahiti, Tonga, Tuvalu.

Argentina, Aruba, Barbados, Bermuda,
Brazil, Canada, Cayman Islands, Chile,
Colombia, Costa Rica, Cuba, Curacao,
Dominican Republic, Ecuador, El Salvador,
Falkland Islands, Grenada, Guatemala,
Guyana, Haiti, Honduras, Jamaica, Mexico,
Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Puerto Rico, St.
Lucia, Surinam, Trinidad & Tobago, USA,
Uruguay, Venezuela

ASSOCIATE MEMBERS Solomon Islands, Northern Marianas, New
Caledonia

ASSOCIATE MEMBER Ligue de Badminton de Martinique
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NOTICE OF
ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING 2015

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Badminton World Federation will be held at the Kande International Hotel
Dongguan, China on Saturday 16 May 2015 at 1000 hours.
1.

2.

PRELIMINARY BUSINESS
1.1

President’s Remarks

1.2

Appointment of scrutineers

1.3

Roll call

MINUTES
2.1

3.

4.

To confirm the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on Saturday 24 May 2014 (Annexure A).

COUNCIL REPORT
3.1

To receive the Report of Council and its Committees, and other reports for the year ending 31 December 2014.

3.2

To adopt the Financial Statements, duly audited, for the year ended 31 December 2014.

3.3

To receive the 2015 budget and the provisional budget for 2016.

PROPOSALS – BWF COUNCIL
The Council of the BWF proposes the following to the membership for approval.
4.1

Council Proposal 1 - Amendments to the Constitution

To approve and adopt the proposed amendments to clause 8 and clause 9 of the BWF Constitution as presented below.
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Rationale for Proposed Amendments
For clause 8: To provide clarity on the process for determining how constitutions are assessed to be consistent with the principles,
purposes and goals of the BWF - both for new applications for membership (Clause 8.3) and for on-going membership obligations
(Clause 8.3.1). Furthermore the amendments to Clause 8.5 now detail what actually happens as part of the process of application –
ie the formal undertaking to be bound by the BWF anti-doping rules.
For Clause 9: To provide greater clarity on the role of the Continental Confederations and to ensure clauses under Clause 9
Continental Confederations are more consistent with clauses on Members (Clause 8). The amendments provide greater alignment
to the roles of the three organisation – Members, Continental Confederations and the BWF.
BWF Constitution – Clause 8 and 9 - [Proposed amendments are in red]
SECTION 2 – Membership
8.

MEMBERS
Members and all applicants for membership of the Federation shall fulfil the following criteria:
8.1

8.2
		

be formally recognised by the Council as the overall governing body for Badminton in the country;
cover the territory of a country that is recognised as such and recognised as an independent and
sovereign state by the international community;

8.2.1
			

Clause 8.2 shall not apply to Members who were admitted to the Federation before
31 December 2005.

		
8.2.2
			

Clause 8.2 shall not apply to territories, which have their own National Olympic Committee
recognised by the IOC.

8.3
		
		

have a Constitution that is consistent with that of the Federation and its principles, purposes and
objectives as per the guidelines approved by Council, and provide a copy to the Federation for its
records;

		8.3.1
			

provide details of any subsequent amendments to the Constitution not later than one
calendar month after the general meeting at which such amendments were approved.

8.4
		

be a legally registered body and/or can satisfy the Federation that it has the legal and administrative
ability to administer the sport to an acceptable standard;

8.5
		

give a formal undertaking to be bound by the Anti-Doping rules consistent with the requirements of
Clause 28.

8.6

give a formal undertaking to observe the Statutes of the Federation;

8.7

undertake to recognise CAS as the only external judicial authority to which an appeal can be made;

8.8
		

subject only to appeal to CAS, undertake to accept as binding and final the decisions of the competent
authorities within the Federation and to be subject to such binding and final decisions;

8.9
undertake to make every reasonable effort to impose the obligations in Clauses 8.5 to 8.7 upon its
		
affili¬ated clubs and associations and their members in all those areas where the Federation has
		authority;
8.10
undertake to adhere to Clause 5 with regard to the autonomy of international sport and the autonomy
		of Members.
9.

CONTINENTAL CONFEDERATIONS
The Federation has endorsed the formation of Continental Confederations for Africa, Asia, Europe, Oceania
and Pan America, in accordance with the division recognised by the IOC. The Continental Confederations shall
promote, develop and regulate Badminton as agents of the Federation in their respective continent and in
mutual cooperation and will be supported and encouraged in that process by the Federation who shall cooperate with them in all matters.

9.1
		

The Continental Confederation’s Constitution, general principles principles, purposes and objectives
and rules must conform to those of the Federation as per the guidelines approved by Council.

9.2
The strategies and policies of the Continental Confederations are required to fulfil the objectives of the
		Federation.
9.3
		
		

Each Continental Confederation shall provide the Council Federation with a copy of its Constitution
and with details of any subsequent changes not later than one calendar month after the meeting at
which they are made.
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9.4
On election as a member, each Member or Associate Member also automatically becomes a member
		
of the Federation’s Continental Confederation which corresponds to the Member’s Olympic continental
		organisation.
		

9.4.1 Continental Confederations may accept other Associate Members without voting rights.

9.5
		

With the acceptance of the parties concerned, an Annual General Meeting has power to vary the
Continental Confederation to which a Member belongs.

9.6
Parts of a Member which lie wholly within a Continental area other than that in which the Member
		
is situated may, with the permission of the Council and the consent of their Member, be attached to
		
the Continental Federation in whose area they lie for the purpose of competition and the encouragement
		of Badminton.

4.2
		

Council Proposal 2 – Amendments to the Laws of Badminton.
4.2.1

To approve and adopt the proposed amendments to the Laws of Badminton as presented below;

			Rationale for Amendments
			
Clause 9 – Service. To bring greater clarity to clause 9.1.1. There is no wording changes here – just separating
			
clause 9.1.1 into two parts. This makes it clearer as 9.1.1 is called by the Umpire and second part (the new
			
clause 9.1.2) is called by service judge.
			
			

Clause 13 - Faults: To clarify the wording of clause 13 and delete clause 13.3.2 as this is already covered by
13.3.3 (now new clause 13.3.2).

			

Clause 16 – Continuous Play: To ensure clarity and greater consistency of terminology around Para-badminton.

			
			

Clause 16.7 – Administration of breach (clause 16.7.1.2): To clarify the wording of 16.7 with regards to how many
faults constitute a persistent offence.

			
			

Appendix 7: To provide greater clarity on the acceptable time frame players must use in order to challenge a line
judge call.

Laws of Badminton – [Proposed amendments are in red]

PART II, SECTION 1A - Laws of Badminton
9. SERVICE
9.1

In a correct service:

		
9.1.1
			

neither side shall cause undue delay to the delivery of the service once the Server and the
receiver are ready for the service.

		9.1.2
			

on completion of the backward movement of the server’s racket head, any delay in the start
of the service (Law 9.2) shall be considered to be an undue delay;

			

[NOTE - All subsequent points to be renumbered accordingly - so 9.1.9 becomes 9.1.10].

13.

FAULTS
It shall be a ‘fault’:
13.1

if a service is not correct (Law 9.1);

13.2

if, in service, the shuttle:

		

13.2.1

is caught on the net and remains suspended on its top;

		

13.2.2

after passing over the net, is caught in the net; or

		

13.2.3

is hit by the receiver’s partner;13.3

		

13.3.1

lands outside the boundaries of the court (i. e. not on or within the boundary lines);

if in play, the shuttle:

		13.3.2
passes through or under the net;
		
13.3.2
fails to pass over the net between the netposts;
[NOTE - 13.3.2 is deleted, 13.2.3 is renumbered – re-numbering continues to 13.3.10 which becomes
		13.3.9]
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16.

CONTINUOUS PLAY, MISCONDUCT & PENALTIES
16.3

Suspension of Play

		
16.3.1
			

When necessitated by circumstances not within the control of the players, the umpire may
suspend play for a period as the umpire may consider necessary.

		
16.3.2
Under special circumstances the Referee may instruct the Umpire to suspend play.
			In Para-Badminton repair of player equipment may be considered a special circumstance.
			In Para-Badminton, repair of additional equipment for para-badminton (Law 5.2) may be
			
considered a special circumstance.
		
16.3.3
If play is suspended, the existing score shall stand and play shall be resumed from that
			point.
_______________________________________________________________________________________________
16.7
		

Administration of breach
16.7.1

			

The umpire shall administer any breach of Law 16.4.1, 16.5.2 or 16.6 by:
16.7.1.1 issuing a warning to the offending side;

			
16.7.1.2 faulting the offending side, if previously warned. Two One such faults followed by
				
a warning by a side shall be considered to be a persistent offence; or
_______________________________________________________________________________________________
PART II, SECTION 1B - APPENDIX 7 – Instant Review System
2.

PLAYER CHALLENGE

2.1
The challenge must be made immediately after the shuttle has landed and the call made, and before
		the commencement of the serve for the next rally.

5.

2.2
		

On receiving the player’s challenge the Umpire will signal the Referee who will review the line call
using the Instant Review system.

2.3
		

If the call by the line-judge or overrule by the Umpire is deemed incorrect, the players challenge is
successful, and the decision by the line-judge or Umpire is reversed.

SUBSCRIPTION
To consider Council’s proposal that the unit of subscription for the year 2016 should be set at US$200 per unit (unchanged).

6.

AUDITORS
Council proposes that the services of KPMG Malaysia be maintained.

7.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

8.

NEXT MEETING
The next Annual General Meeting is proposed to be held in May 2016 in conjunction with the 2016 Thomas & Uber Cups.
The exact date will be announced to the membership, not later than 30 September 2015.

By order of the Council of the Federation.
Thomas Lund
Secretary General
27 March 2015
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